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Wolseley is the world’s
number one distributor
of heating and plumbing
products to the
professional market
and a leading supplier
of building materials

The future is about
focus and execution to
create sustained and
profitable growth, both
acquisitive and organic,
across Europe and
North America

>




2006

This has been our
10th record-breaking
yedar in succession

Group revenue*

£14.2 billion

Trading profit*

*Figures in accordance with IFRS for 2006 and 2005, all other years under UK GAAP. Trading profit is as defined on page 88.

£882 million
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Financial highlights

Driving ahead

+25.8%

Group revenue up to £14.2 billion

+24.7%

Trading profit up to £882 million

+18.8%

Operating profit up to £834 million

+11.2%

Basic earnings per share up to 90.77 pence

+19.7%

Earnings per share before amortisation of
acquired intangibles up to 98.90 pence

+11.4%

Increase in total dividend for the ysar

+18.8%

Return on gross capital employed*

*Return: on gross capital employed is as defined on page 23.
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But now it’s about the
next phase of Wolseley’s
growth, with a new Group
Chief Executive and a
renewed commitment to
ensuring that Wolseley is
‘“the name the world
builds on”
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Our key brands

Delivering through local
trusted brands

Wolseley is an international
business, operating more
than 4,650 branches
across 19 countries in
Europe and North America
and employing more than
70,000 people

Although the Wolseley name is well-known amongst

our investor community, it is not universally familiar to

all of our customers. That is because our strength is

to operate leading national businesses in home markets,
with strong local brands supported by continent wide
infrastructures and to continually exceed customer
expectations through ever wider product ranges and
superior service. The brands you see here are all
recognised and trusted in their home markets.
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Chairman’s statement

Staying ahead

An intemational group
committed to improving

performance

Whilst we continued cur record of substantial organic
growth, especially in the US, we also recorded our
highest-aver spend on acquisitions in 2005/6. Added
to this, shortly before the financial year closed,

we agreed to buy, subject to competition approval,
DT Group, the Nordic region’s leading distributor of
building materials. The Board is delighted with this
acquisition, particularly as it dermonstrates our clear
commitment to the European business while also
delivering an excellent balance between our operations
in North America and Europe.

There has been a marked shift in the characteristics

of the Group in recent years. Wolseley is now a
genuinely internaticnal company, with ieadership

from the corporate centre complemented by talented
management throughout the European and North
American organisations, ably supported by high quality
teams in the operating companies.

Crganisational culture has evolved to reflect the
Group’s increasingly international position. Today,

our managers across the world identify with the
Wolseley name. They remain committed to improving
the performance of their own operating companies,
but they also recognise the opportunities availabte
internationally.

We now, therefore, have a Group where the sum of
the parts is truly greater than the indivicual components.
We have established significant leadership capabiities
both centrally and regicnally in areas such as [T,
Procurement, Human Resources, Mergers &
Acquisitions and Strategy, supporting not only our
ongoing businesses, but also increasing our capability
to add value to acquisitions going forward.

Further, two successful debt issues confirmed
Wolseley's status as & soundly financed, well-
respected international group. In November 2005,

the Group completed the largest ever US$ Private
Placement, followed by a bank syndication in May
2006 which was heavily over-subscribed by Wolseley's
relationship banks.

Dividend

With our earnings per share before intangibles rising
19.7% to 98.9 pence, the Board is recommending a
final dividend of 19.55 pence, which represents a total
dividend for the year of 29.4 pence. This is an increase
of 11.4% over the total dividend paid last year.
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The Board

The handover of Group Chief Executive responsibilties
frorn Charlie Banks to Chip Hornsby proceeded to
plan, with Chip being succeeded by Frank Roach

as Chief Executive, North America. Frank joined the
Board in December 2005 and has already made a
significant contrioution to our deliberations.

t would like to thank Charfie Banks not only for

the efficient handover but also for the leadership,
axperience and good humour he displayed throughout
his five years as Group Chief Exacutive. Charlie made
a major contrioution to the Group and during his

time at the helm we witnessed a marked change

in management mindset to a more international
perspective. We saw Group sales rise by 96.8%

and the share price by 144%. |, and the whele Board,
wish him every happiness in retirement.

Chip Hornsby has made an excellent start as Group
Chief Executive and | look forward to working closely
with him in the coming years. He spent the first three
months of this calendar year building on his already
solid knowledge of our European businesses and the
following three months acguainting hirmsetf with matters
at the Corporate level.

As Chip makes clear elsewhers in this Report,
Wolseley has delivered excellent performances
over many years — but now it is time to encourage
& step-change and to push forward to fully realise
Wolseley's true potential.

In conclusion, | wish to thank our customers,

suppliers, investors anc debt providers for their
unswerving support over the last year. But of course
the year’s achigvements would not have been possible
without the skills and unyielding commitment of

meore than 70,000 people and to each of them |
extend our wholehearted thanks.

The Board looks ahead with confidence. The proven
strategy we have followed in recent times will continue,
sustaining our record of growth and business
development. We have achieved a great deal, but
there remains much to do. The Board is confident that
Chip and his team will lead Wolselsy to new and even
greater heights.

John W Whybrow
Chairman




Group Chief Executive’s review

An impressive year

This has been another
outstanding 12 months
for the Group, with record
results for the 10th year
In succession. We are
positioning ourselves

to make further progress

| was delighted and honoured t¢ take over as
Wolseley’s Group Chief Executive on 1 August 2008.
We enjoved a great run under Charlie Banks'
ieadership and | want to put on record my admiration
for his tremendous achievements.

Charlie established some fine foundations which are
reflected in the figures you see in this Report, with
2005/6 characterised by excelent growth in North
America, strong market outperformance in the UK,
good performances in Holland, Switzerland and Italy
and broadly satisfactory resuits elsewhere in the Group.

in North Armerica, Stock Building Supply achieved
excellent results, outperforming the market and growing
sales by 27.4%. Towards the end of the year a
reducticn in housing starts and a fall in the price

of timber affected revenue and this is likely to be
confinued into the current financial vear, Ferguson
saw outstanding growth, with a 35.1% increase in

top line performance and 40.4% botiom line growth
driven by some of the highest fill rates in the industry,
our ongoing distribution centre strategy, our markst
focus and a clutch of successful acquisitions. Wolseley
Canada recorded a solid performance and again
delivered double-digit growtn.

Despite major changes to our UK business, which
included the completion of a comprehensive
restructuring, the business performed wel in a
challenging market, with good acquisition performance
criving sales up by 14.4%. In continental Europe, the
highlights included good progress in Switzeriand and
Italy, the Benelux countries and alsc a rewarding
performance from our French business, PBM. The
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resuits from Wolseley Austria and Brossette were less
satisfactory, atthough we remain confident that both
these businesses wil deliver improved performance in
the coming 12 months.

This time next year, | expect to be reporting results
from three new Wolseley countries, after the completion
of our acquisition of DT Group, which was agreed just
before the vear end. At just over £1.3 billion this is the
largest single acquisition in Wolseley's history so far.
DT Group is the Nordic region’s leading distnbutor of
building materials, with a strong presence in Sweden,
Norway, Finland and Denmark and significantly
broadens our European reach.

Just as the DT Group acquisition will take us into
new geographic areas, others have taken us into
new product areas. For example, during the year
Wolseley UK bought Wiliam Wilson and AC Electrical
to move into the electrical distribution sector for the
first time and moved further into the insulation
materials market through the acquisition of Encon.

In the USA, Stock Building Supply also entered into
the electrical products and services market and
strengthened its position In installed services, mesting
a clearly emerging need from our major home
construction custormers.

We invested £914 milllicn on a total of 53 acqguisitions
in seven coluntries during the year, as follows:

North Arnerica Europe
Number of acquisitions 31 22
Total consideration for
acquisitions £497m £417m

—




Our European market: At the end of the
financial year we had operations in 13 European
countries, having moved into Belgium for the
first ime. As the new year opened, we were
finalising our acquisition of BT Group which
gives us a major presence in Sweden, Norway,
Finland and Denmark.

Historically, acquisitions have delivered around half
of our annuai growth and this is an area where our
management team are strong. In industry at large,
there is always concern that acquisitions fail

to deliver the anticipated benefits; at Wolseley &
rigorous assessment process and skilful integration
Into the Group ensures that acquisitions perform in
line with expectations and deliver shareholder value.

A simple business model, executed with
commitment and focus

A distribution business like ours is not an overly
complex model.

What makes us different is the way in which we focus
on our markets and execute our business model.
That's the competitive advantage behind our growth
- and we're not about to radically change such a
proven strategy.

So the future is about evoiution not revolution. The
emphasis remains on growth, through acquisitions
and through organic growth driven by our capabilties
in four key areas which are at the heart of our success:

Peaple

We invest in - and support - the most important
resources that we have: our people. Cur customer
axpetience is based on interaction with our 70,000
plus pecple and customer service is at the heart

of every recruitment we make and every training
programme we launch. Our commitment is to recruit
and train the best people available throughout our
industry that have a particular eye on previding
outstanding customer senvice. This includes the way
we assist customers in al aspects of their business,
by providing the right products at the right time, as
well as being knowledgeable in all aspects of their
particular needs.

Product

We continue to offer more products and services to
more customers in more sectors in more countries.
We buy the right products at the right specification
and the right price. Our objective is to have the widest
product offering of anyone in the industry, so we

can fulfil alt of our customers' particular needs. This
includes carrying some of the most recognised brands
in each of our business sectors to allow us to support
our custormers in each specific area.

Distribution

We buy our products wel and provide those products
and services reliably, efficiently and quickly to our
customers, Qur logistics infrastructure allows us to
ensure that our size translates directly intc better,
faster service. Our objective is to have the highest
order fill rates of anyone in the industry, as this will be
of great benefit to our customers so that they consider
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us to be not only relisble, but also, more importantly,
a frue partner in their business.

Service

We shape our business 1o meet our customers’
needs in whatever way is most advantagecus for
them. We go out of our way to make it easy for
customers to choose Wolseley — whether that's
through deliveries, collaction services, online shops,
shared branches or any cther initiative. Since the
largest majority of our business is transacted at the
local level, through more than 4,650 locations across
Europe and North America, our objective is to lead
the industry when it comes tc access and availability
of product.

You can read practical examples of our model in
getion on pages 12 t0 19.

A track record of success and a
focused future

We have demonstrated year after year that by

doing it our way, we can consistently deliver excelfent
performance. In this, our tenth successive year of
delivering record results, we have again demonstrated
that, despite facing socme challenging market
conditions, we can continue to grow and in most
cases have been able t¢ outperform both the market
and the competition.

So our emphasis remains on profitable growth driven
by an ever stronger focus on the core competencies
that underpin the execution of our business and
some key factors that we believe give us true
competitive advantage.

QOur structure is designed to keep the right activities

at the right level in the Group - the continental groups
are directly responsible for the profits of the cperating
companies they oversee. This is their key priority and
area of focus. In addition, they are responsible for
organic growth; being same branch sales, new branch
openings, expansion into new geographies, as well as
expansion into new customer types throughout their
areas of responsibility.

At the Group and continental levels we also focus on
the strategy and our five core competencies, which
feed into the operating companies and underpin their
ability to grow.

Human resources and leadership development
Customer service is why we exist as an organisation.
Identifying and training the top talent within our
industry therefore not only impacts customer service,
but also our ability to support double-digit growth,
Whilst we recognise that people are a large componant
of our costs, we strive to identify and train people as
one of our most valuable investments.




Our North American market: We have an
extensive branch presence across the continent,
served by our impressive Distribution Centre
network. During the year we continued to grow

our leading positions in both the building materials

and the plumbing and heating markets in the US

and Canada.

Charlie Banks retires

Charlie Banks retired at

the end of the financial

yean, following 39 years with
Ferguson and Wolseley, the
last five as Group Chief
Executive. Here is his parting
message.

“It has been an honour and a
privilege to have been associated
with Wolseley for so many years.
In my time as Group CEO, we
saw sales almost double in size
and both the share price and
EPS rise dramatically. It has
been an amazing journey.

None of our achievements would
have been possible without the
continued support of our
shareholders and debt providers.
| am also grateful to the Board for
giving me the opportunity o lead
this great company and to our
employees, without whose
unswerving commitment we
would not have been able to
execute our strategy and deliver
such axcepticnal growth.

| know that we have laid the
foundaticns for continued
success in the coming years and
| have total confidence in Chip
Hornsby and his team to lead
Wolseley {0 new and even
greater heights.”

Organic growth and acquisitive growth

We have just appointed Adrian Barden, previously
Managing Director of our UK business, to a newly
created position to lead our global M&A efforts.

This will bring even more focus to our acquisition
processes, in a more competitive market, inciuding
developing a target base of acquisition opportunities
on both continents, establishing a formalised
integration process of acquisitions into the Group and

refining our post acquisition performance review process.

Sourcing

We are elevating sourcing to a higher level to deliver
the right products to our customers. This will include
responsibility at the Group level for the top 30-50
suppliers, which wil be coordinated with both the
continental groups.

We want to identify and drive low cost country/own
brand/proprietary brands throughout the entire Group
s0 that this will be a significantly iarger portion of our
business within the next two to thres years. indirect
spend initiatives will alse deliver cost savings across
our business.

Supply chain

We are developing a format such that supply chain
becomes a distinct competitive advantage across the
Group. Simply put, our intent is to have the broadest
product offering with the highest fill rates of anyone in
the industry. We believe that the right combination of
sourcing and supply chain will become a significant
competitive advantage.

Business improvement

Cur aim over the next several vears is to continually
improve cur net margin by focusing on a number

of growth and cost reduction initiatives. In locking

at the longer term, increased focus on efficiency and
productivity throughout the entire Group will bring great
benedit in improving our overall net margin. The utlisation
of information for the benefit of customer service and
productivity wilk be at the forefront of this intiative, but
tt is certainly not imited to that aspect alcne.

The future

So what are my objectives for our organisation in the
immediate future? We are still focused on delivaring
double-digit sales growth — but now with a greater
emphasis on margin improverment and the new
leadsrship structure is designed to alkow us to build
oh our experience and our scale.

Qur custemer base rung into millions - every one of
them with individual needs, being serviced by our front
line staff, Above all, this is a relationship business and
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the only way to make it work is by serving local
customers, locally. We wil continue to go out of our
way to try and help our customers succeed - we
make their problems our problems and we work with
them 10 find sclutions. Loyal customers provide repeat
business and increasingly more business, as the
amount of product they buy fom us increases.

We are also making it easier 10 do business with us

at all levels. In the USA and the UK we have structured
our branches into focused “business groups” (USA)

or “core brands” (UK) to put a real emphasis on a
particular sector, customer or proguct range.

Results from the businesses structured this way

show significant organic growth, so it’s a model we
are extending across the Group. This single point
focus on specific custorner groups, be they plumbers,
slectricians, roofers, or general contractors, means our
customers know what they can expect. Our team of
people are real subject and product experts, the
products are relevant to the requirement and the
custormer remains loyal.

Looking ahead

We have huge potential for further growth. As you wil
see in our Parformance review on pages 20 to 41 the
size of our potential market is vast and cespite cur
succass we stil have only a relatively small share.

Look across the 19 countries where we currently
operate and you'll find that we are in just about every
sactor of construction materials somewhere — but we
don't as yet provide a complete offering anywhere.
Even without moving beyond Eurgpe and North
America, there are significant epportunities for our
businesses to share knowledge and learn from sach
other's experiences in order to extend our product
range and introduce curselves to new customers.

In conclusion, | would like to thank the Beard and you,
our shareholders, for giving me the ¢pportunity tc lead
this great company. | believe we have a tremendous
future ahead of us and with the continued ioyal
commitment ¢f our outstanding 70,000 plus strong
teamn, without whom we would be nothing, we can
look to the future with confidence. We are committed
to making Wolseley “the name the world builds on”.

Chip Hornsby
Group Chief Executive




Looking
ahead




Thomas Kopsa, Amy Beal and Jason Powers,
Ferguson Trainees in Raleigh Durham, USA

> Investing in people

People — we’ll continue to create and develop " reeolrie

exciting and innovative programmes to attract s,
high quality employees into the Group. o et and hr
But we’ll also increasingly invest in training

and development programmes which are

designed to help all our people fulfil their —

and our — potential.
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> Delivering to the customer
We work hard to ensure that
our recruitment programmes
are geared to identify
customer-focused people
with the passion to deliver.

Duncan Fellows, British Gas Engineer, Cheltenham Spa, UK

In North America, Ferguson is widely respected for
market-leading graduate programmes that once again
brought people into the organisation in 2005/6 and
has recently seen them recognised by Business Week
magazine as one of the top 50 places in the USA to
start and build a career. People don't just join Wolseley
companies — they stay at Wolseley companies for long-
term careers. Qur new Group Chief Executive, the
head of our North American organisation and the
President and CEQ of Ferguson, along with countless
other members of our leadership team, each have
over 20 years' service with the Group.

The European Graduate Programme {"EGP"} delivers
a pipeline of internationally-minded graduates who
can move effortlessly between cultures as well as
languages. The programme, which provides a mix

of on-the-job training with formal residential courses,
has proved popular with trainees and managers alike.
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Across the Group, the EGP is complemented by

a wide range of Innovative activities, ranging from
established programmes at Stock Building Supply to
the new Groupwide Internationa! Leadership
Deveiopment Programime, among cthers.

During the last year we invested £21 million on
142,000 days of training and development.

This investment in our people alows us to deliver the
services our customers need. Far example, British
Gas service engineers are able to get on with their
jobs, thanks to an innovative agreement with Wolselay
UK. A single national account means that engineers
can collect products and spare parts from any of our
branches throughout the UK, with just a signature,
meaning better and more Immediate service for British
Gas customers.




’ Today >

Earth wire sold by William Wilson, UK

> Today’s trends

Product — we’ll continue to introduce new We belleve that we

offer the broadest product

products to our existing customers, giving et oroomicss
them the Opportunity to buy more gOOdS branches across 19 countries,

and services from us. But we’ll also use our
understanding of industry trends to identify
emerging demands and win new customers
in new sectors.
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> Tomorrow's advantage
We're always looking for
new opportunities where
our expertise and experience
can provide customers with
more products at the right
specification and the
right price.

Tomorrow

Charles Evans and Ronnie Patterson, Stock Building Supply, North Carolina, USA

In the UK, we moved into the electrical distribution
sector for the first time, through the purchases

of Wiliam Wilsen and AC Electrical. In the USA,

we followed suit with the acquisition of Efficient,

an electrical supplier based in Las Vegas. In both
instances, we're giving customers more cpportunities
to become — and remain — Wolselsy customers.

In the Spring, Brossette and PBM opened a joint
facility “Batipcle” in Lannion, France, alowing
customers to purchase from one location building
materials from PBM's Reseau Pro brand, electrical
products from Brossette’s COL brand and plumbing
and heating equipment from Brossette. The French
businesses will continue to innovate to find ways to
mest their customers’ needs.
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High volume, production builders in the western States
of the USA are increasingly demanding a turnkey
installation service from suppliers — they need the
peocple who provide the frames fo also install
equipment throughout the build project.

Stock Building Supply evolved its business model

to meet this new demand, shaping its service to win
business from 2 new set of customers by providing
the products and services they need, how and where
they need them.




Wolseley UK's new DC, Royal Leamington Spa, UK

Distribution — we’ll continue to roll out our ””v“fog;gd“‘"c«
proven Distribution Centre (“DC”) strategy, ova iy o s

using our expertise and financial strength to
set the industry standard in logistics. But we’ll
also develop initiatives at the sharp end of
the supply chain, creating new ways to get
products to customers, with increased speed
and reliability.
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> Less hassle and cost
We constantly search for
innovative ways, such as
our “branch within a branch”
concept, to take more

proeducts to more customers.

Our DCs have helped to transform the Ferguson
business in the US. DCs don't only save costs — they
also have impact on customer satisfaction. Fill rates
out of the US DC facilities regularly exceed 94% and
are amongst the highest in our industry.

Now we're rolling out the DC model across Europe.
The new Naticnal Distribution Centre cpened in the UK
in August 2006 and the halian DC will follow towards
the end of the vear. Plans are already advanced to
open sirmilar facilities in other countries.

Through the “branch within a branch” initiative, we

establish a counter from one brand in the premises of
another, thereby increasing the branch’s total product
offering without increasing the size of the branch itself.
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Simplicity

Wasco branch, Diest, Belgium

Al the Wasco branch in Diest, Belgium, we have gone
ane step further — implanting not one but two new
product areas within the tranch. So in addition to
their regular plumbing and heating supplies, Wasco
custormers can now access spare parts from a Parts
Center area and specialist fixings from a Unifix area,
all under a single rocf. These additional product areas
are also introducing a new customer base to the
Wasco brand,




Convenient >

Tobler's innovative website — www.haustechnik.ch

Service — we'll continue to exploit technology  “seitervistorae

in order to interact with customers in whatever L=s o,
way they prefer. But we’ll never forget that
successful business relationships are built

on successful personal relationships.
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> Personal service
We get close to our
customers, listening to what
they need and then creating
innovative, often highly
personalised services,
to match.

Personal

Bob Smith, Wolseley UK, providing customer service for 60 years

Few people would place plumbers close to the top

of a list of those who use the web in thelr daily lives.
Yet a recent e-business initiative at Tobler in Switzerand
is proving the very opposite. The Tobler website
experiences an average of over 1,600 hits each day
and more than 15,000 unigue visitors per month.

All 50,000 plus Tobler products are available online.
If customers place an order by 6pm, products are
defivered first thing the following morning, either to
the plurmber's business or to the job site.

In the UK and the USA, we've structured our branches
to put a real emphasis on a particular sector, customer
or product range. This single poirt focus on a specific
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customer group — such as plumbers, electricians,
roofers and so on — delivers a truly personal,
knowledgeable service. Customers know what

10 expect and they know that our people will give
them the personal service they need to get on with
their jobs.

Cur custamers' experiences are based on their
interaction with cur people. We invest in a wide range
of programmes that help ensure that when customers
meet any of our people, they do so with somebody
who speaks their language - literally as weil as
professionally — knows their business, understands
their pressures and can meet their needs.




Record results

2006 has been a year of
record investment, record
results and strong growth




4,658

The number of branches
operated by the Group at

31 July 2006
L Introduction of heating and plumbing products to professional
W0|SE|€‘Y S Purpose ctio contractors and a leading supplier of bulding
H H u ) materials to the professional market. The Group
business is the Tnis Performance review has been prepared sy g an international business, operating 4,658
ickn 1 0 provide additional Information to existing an branches in 19 countries and employing over
dIStI‘IbUtIOH Of potential shareholders and other interested parties 70,000 pecple poying
- to assess the Group’s strategies and the potential ’ '
COﬂSthCl‘lOn for those strategi i i
gies to succeed. Wolseley plc is a holding company and its
1 . subsidiaries are organised into two geographic
;?‘Utenuls und f ?;2:2%::°ké“9t§;a?e’;?o':: f this Report contai divisions — Europe and North America. Civisional
e provision o : &nd oiher SeCUCnS Of TiS e AN management are primarily responsible for the
p . forward ioo‘king statements tha_t are _supject to risk profits of the operating companies they oversee
related services factors, which are further explained inside the back  4nq for driving organic growth, which includes
prlm(]rlly toa cover of this Annual Report. additional sales from existing branches, new branch
cpenings, expansion into new geographies as well
Contents P
. qn ] as expansion into new customer types and
SpECI(]hSt m(]rket ;Lhe g erfcgmance ?:eT"eW Qiﬁg’e?” prgpareg ;::e preduct areas.
. e Group as a whole an refore gives greater
Of prOfeSSI()nﬂl emphasis to those matters which are significant to The civisional teams are supported by global
Ont Ct S Woelseley plc and its subsidiary undertakings when functional teams such as acquisitions, sourcing,
C racuor. viewed as a whole. supply chain and business improvement. This

The Perfermance review discusses the foliowing areas:
Company overview and

performance moenitoring p.21
Operations p.25
Future outlook n.32
Risk management p.33
Financial review B.37
Cther financial matters P38

Basis of preparation of financial information

As noted on page 41, these financial statements

are the first prepared under IFRS. In respect of five
year information included in this Performance review
information for years 2002, 2003 and 2004 has been
prepared under UK GAAP. Information for 2005 and
2006 has been prepared in accordance with IFRS,

Company overview and
performance monitoring

Company overview

Wolseley's business is the distribution of construction
materials and the provision of related services primarily
to a specialist market of professional contractors.
The Group is the world's number one distributor
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structure allows the Group to focus on the key
competencies by which the business is driven
forward. These key competencies and the business
model are dascribed in the Group Chief Executive’s
review on pages 8 to 19.

The principal activities of the Group are:

+ the distribution of plumbing, heating and
air conditioning equipment within Europe and
North America;

» the distribution of building materials in the UK,
Ireland, France and USA;

« the distribution of slectrical components and
supplies iny the UK, France and USA;

+ the distribution of pipes, valves, fitting and
waterworks in Europe and North America.




The opportunities
for organic

and acquisitive
growth in these
fragmented
markets are
substantial

Wolseley's products

The Group supplies materials used in the
construction industry. The range of products used in
construction is broad and the Group continually seeks
cpportunities to widen that choice to its customers.
The main product categories supplied 1o customers
are set out at the bottom of the page.

Wolseley's customers

The Group has a wide range of customers operating
in different industry sectors that range from the
individual plumber or builder through to national
confractor chains or house builders and include large
industrial and commercial organisations. Wolseley’s
primary customer focus is on professicnal contractors.
These contractors work with households,
governments, property developers and industrial
companies in the construction of new homes,
cffices and industrial buildings or in the repair

and maintenance of existing premises. Increasingly
the Group has structured around core business
groups or brands allowing its local companies to put
real focus on these sectors, whilst enhancing custcmer
senvice and developing further product expertise.

Competitive environment

The Group aims to be a leading distributor in each
of the markets in which it operates. The markets
where the Group operates are typically fragmented
with a few large players and a significant portion of
the market is supplied by small local operations. In
certain markets the Group competes with the large
DY chains which have increased their offarings to
profesaional contractors.

The oppaortunities for organic ang acquisitive
growth in these fragmented markets are substantial,
The environment for acquisitions has become
marginally more competitive over the last year

in certain markets and the competition for large
acquisitions from private equity investors has also
increased. However for the majority of acquisitions
which are smaller businesses, financial purchasers
are few and there has been no significant change in
the competition for these acquisitions.

Wolseley’s products
Plumbing, heating & air conditioning

Other market factors

The changing demographics of the European and
North American markets, with a generally ageing
population and increasing immigration, suggests that
demand for new housing will continue at relatively
high levels over the long term, As the housing stock
ages, it will increase demand in the repair and
remodelling sector. The Group’s business model
gives it the flexibility and agility to respond to
changes of this nature.

While the Group does not operate in a regulated
industry, the performance of the Group can be
impacted by Government legislation. The key
regulatory influences centre on environmentai
legislation and stipulations imposed when building
or remodelling buildings. Such changes in legislation
present an opportunity for growth in response to
increasing demand as customers or end users
respond by changing their buying habits,

Performance monitoring

The Group employs a rigorous performance
management framewaork to plan, monitor and review
the activities of the businesses. An annual leng term
rolling plan is produced by all businesses and this
sets out business plans and resource reguirements,
Linked to this is the annual budget process, which
is core 1o the target setting process. The form and
components of the budget are in general cascaded
down to branch level within the businesses.

Each month, the businesses submit their results,
which also include a forecast for the remainder
of the financial year. Performance against bhoth
budget and prior month forecast is reviewed
with the businesses by continental and Group
management. Corrective actions or additional
resource deployments are discussed with the
benefit of such information.

The Board of Wolseley plc meets regularly to
discuss trading results ang uses a set of Key
Performance Indicators to measure overall progress
of the Group against its business obiectives.

Building materials

« Baths, showers
and accessories

» Sanitaryware

¢ Brassware

* Bathroom furniture

» Bollers and burners

» Radiators and valves
* Hot water cylinders
and flues
* Control equipment
* antilation/
air conditioning equipment

Electrical

® Insulation
* Plaster and plasterboard

* Timber products
* Dogrs and frames

* Reofing materials * Glass
# Bricks, blocks « Beams, trusses and frames
and aggregates * Hardware

» Tiles and flooring
Civils/waterworks, industrial & commercial

* Cables and cabling
accessories

« Controls and switchgear

* Wiring accessories

* | jghting
» Data networking supplies
* Gable management

* Tanks and treatment plants
¢ Sheat material

» Drainage pipes, associated
supplies and covers
* Underground pressure pipes

» Small bore pressure
pipes and fittings

» Other pipes, valves
and fittings

In North America, the Group also provides construction services to house builders. This consists of the provision of labour to assist
with house construction and commercial lending to house builders securad on properties under construction or completed homes.
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53

The number of acquisitions
completed during the year

Over the past five
years the Group
has delivered:

e gverage organic
revenue growth
of 7.0%

o average
acquired revenue
growth of 10.4%

e AN increase in
trading margin
from 5.8%
t0 6.2%

e average free
cash flow, after
dividends,
of£213m

e average return
on gross capital
employed
of 17.9%

Key Performance Indicators

The Group utilises the following indicators of performance to assess its development against its strategy and

financial objectives.

Key Performance Indicator and definition

Review of performance

Growth in organic revenue

The total increase or decrease in revenue for the
year adjusted for the impact of currency exchange,
new acguisitions in the year and the incremental
impact of acquisitions in the prior year.

The Group seeks to achieve, on average, double-digit
growth in revenue through both organic growth and
through acquisitions. Over the economic cycle the
Group would expeact growth to come evenly from
both sources.

» Organic revenue increased in the year by 10.9%.

¢ Ferguson achieved organic revenue growth of
24.3% whilst Stock Building Supply alsc achigved
organic growth of 4,1%.

» The UK business cutperformed the market and
achieved 2.1% organic growth.

* Each of the Italian, Swiss and Dutch businesses
achieved double-digit organic growth.

= Over the past five years the Group has delivered
average organic revenue growth of 7.0%.

Growth in acquired revenue

The growth in revenue from businesses that the
Group has acquired during the financial year and the
incremental effect of the prior years' acquisitions.

+ A total of 53 acquisitions were completed
during the year.

» Acquisitions made in 2006 contributed £862 million
to ravenue in the year or 6.1%.

+ Cver the past five years the Group has delivered
average acquired revenue growth of 10.4% with
11.9% in the last year, both exceeding target.

Trading margin
The ratio of trading profit t¢ revenue expressed as
a percentage.

The Group seeks to achieve a growth in trading
profits higher than the growth in revenue through
year on year improvements in trading margin as a
result of continuous improvement in operations.

* Trading margin improvement was achieved in
North America although the Eurcpean trading
margin reduced due to lower trading margins
in Brossette, Austria and the UK.

+ Overall, Group trading margin fell from 8.3%
in 2005 to 6.2% in 2006 as a result of investments
in people and infrastructura.

s Qver the past five years the Group’s trading margin
has increased from 5.8% to 6.2%.

Free cash flow

Free cash flow represents cash flow from cperating
activities less maintenance capital expenditure, tax,
dividends and interest.

The Group seeks 1o generate sufficient free cash flow
over the business cycle to fund normal “bolt on”
acquisitions and expansion capital expenditure.

¢ Free cash flow decreased from £321 million
it 2005 to £288 million, down by 11.2% as a
result of higher working capital demands cue
o organic growth,

« Qver the past five years after dividends, average
free cash flow is £213 million,

Return on gross capital employed

The ratio of trading profit to the aggregate of the
monthly average of shareholders' funds, minority
interests, net debt and cumulative goodwil and
acquired intangibles written off.

The Group targets to deliver an incremental return
on gross capital empioved at least 4% in excess
of the pre-tax weighted average cost of capital.

* Return on gross capital employed in 2006
decreased from 19.1% 10 18.8% due to higher
acquisition spend in the year, but was 7.5% ahead
of the estimated pre-tax weighted average cost of
capital of 11.3%.

« Avaerage return on gross capital employed over the
past five years was 17.9%.

» Return on gross capital employad in Europe was
16.2% {2005: 19.9%) and in North America 21.9%
(2005: 20.3%).
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Electrical

The Group acquired Wiliiam
Wilson and AC Electrical
in the UK

124

The number of XpressNet
locations operated by Ferguson

Wolseleyss 70’000 A summary of the Group’s performance over the last five years is as follows:

plus people are
the comerstone
of providing
service to its
customers and
are one of its
key competitive
advantages

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Growth in organic revenue 10.9% 8.7% 13.1% 1.3% 0.8%
Growth in acquired revenue 11.9% 5.5% 16.4% 7.2% 11.1%
Trading margin 6.2% 6.3% 6.1% 5.8% 5.8%
Free cash flow after dividends (£ million) 285 321 (B0) 269 248
Return on gross capital employed 18.8% 19.1% 18.4% 16.7% 16.7%

Nete: 2006 and 2005 figures prepared under IFRS. 2004, 2003 and 2002 figures prepared under UK GAAP.

Peaple performance indicators

Wolseley's 70,000 plus people are the cornerstene
of providing service to its customers and are one
of its key competitive advantagaes. As much of the
custormer experience is generated through ongoing
relationships with the Group's branch personnel

or ¢utside sales force, staff turnover rates are
considered an important indicator and these are
reviewed as part of the monthly reporting.

The overali summary turnover rate for 2006

was 22% (2005: 27%), reflecting an improved
performance and a rate management considers 10
be In fine with industry standards. Turncvar in 2606
at the management level of staff is estimated to

be at much lower rates. Enhanced measures and
information collection mechanisms are being
designed as part of the Group's new human
resources management system.

The safety of Wolseley's people is also regarded as
paramount and lost time incident rates are monitored
closely by health and safety committees established
in each of the major businesses. The lost day
incident rate used is affected both by the severity of
the cause of the absence from work but also the
effectiveness of the handiing of each absence and
return to work programmes.

Incidence rates are quoted per 200,000 work hours
(approximating 10 100 people working for a year), an
internationally used standard. The estimated
incidence rate for 2008, using submissions from
companies representing 80% of the Group in terms
of total work days, was 35 (2005: 41).

Other performance areas

In order to measure the success of its strategy
execution, the Group uses a variety of non-financial
performance indicators which continue to be refined
and developed.
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Business diversity

A key element of the Group’s growth strategy is
the enhancement of business diversity, which has a
number of elements. The Group is continucusly
seeking to enhance its branch network to provide
improved service and a wider product offering to
new and existing customers. The expansion of the
branch network is detailed in the table below.

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Europe 2,861 2,486 2,393 2,266 1,799
North America 1,797 1,434 1,244 1,183 1,156
Total 4,658 3,920 3,637 3,449 2,955

The Group also aims to increase its geographic
footprint in its chosen areas of operation, Europe
and North America. During the year, the Group
expanded its geographic diversity by acquiring a
business In Belgium, Centratec, which contributed
revenue for the year of €35 million. In addition,

in North America, Stock Building Supply expanded
operations into the states of Alabama, Louisiana and
New Jersey.

Wolseley has continued its strategy of moving

into new market segments within the construction
materials and services industry. Wolselay UK
acqguired William Wilson and AC Electrical, which
established a presence in the electrical distribution
sector, while the acquisitions of Brandion Hire and
Encon significantly expanded its presencs in the plant
hire and insulation distribution sectors respectivaly.

Ancther key element is the transfer of knowledge

and expertise across the Group in order that local

companies can establish operations in new market

segments or channels. Examples during the past

year include:

+ The "XpressNat” network established by
Ferguson in the USA, which mitrors Wolseley UK's
Plumb CenterExpress model. By the 2006 vear
end, 124 locations had been established, with 64
added during 2C086.

* The Woilseley UK Hire Centar model is being rolled
out to PBM in France and GAG in Austria, with
further progress expected in the coming year.




The European
division continues
to seek
opportunities
to expand

into other
geographic
areas such

as Spain and
other parts of
Eastern Europe

» The Distribution Centre congept first developed by
Fergusen is being expanded in Europe. In the UK,
the National Distribution Centre has just cpened
with the italian Distribution Centre expected to
come on stream before the end of 2008.

* The blended branch concept where offerings from
different brands or business groups are co-located
to allow customers more convenience and choice
is now in use in the UK, USA, lreland and France,

Environmental

The Group's approach to environmental measures

is set out in the Corporate social responsibllity report
cn page 46. n accordance with the reporting guidelines
suggested by the UK Government's Department

for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs, the Group
is developing a range of environmental measures,
principally in the areas of carbon dioxide emissions
and volume of waste sent to landfill. The Group is
establishing mechanisms to capture and monitor this
information for use in subsequent reporting.

Operations

Europe

Market

The European division is managed through three
gecgraphic areas with senior management allocated
responsihiiity for each. These areas are UK includling
Ireland, France and Central Europe. The latter is
responsitle for the division’s operations in Austria,
Belgium, the Czech Republic, Denmark, Hungary,
Italy, Luxembourg, the Netherlands and Switzerland.

Market size

Woiseley UK is managed through brands such as
Hire Center, Plumb Center and Build Center. Thess
brands allow focus on specific market groups of
customers while being supported by the common
logistics and operations infrastructure of Wolseley UK.

Europe in total represents a market estimated to be

450 million people and is experiencing the following

demographic factors, all of which present market

opportunities for Wolselay:

* Falling birth rates leading to less new build but
more repair, maintenance and improvement work.

* Longer life expectancies and increasing divorce
rates leading to an increase in apartment
accommodation compared o family homes.

* An increasing number of high incomes resulting
in more demand for second homes.

e Skilt shortages leading to @ more migrant
population and an increased use of offsite fabrication.

* Increasing consumearism producing new routes
to market, for example, the Internst.

These changes often represent shifts of activity
within segments rather than shifts into segments
where the division does nct have a presence.
Nevertheless the Group does employ a flexible
business model which allows it to react quickly
to market changes.

The European division continues to seek opportunities
1o expand into other geographic areas such as
Spain and other parts of Eastern Eurcpe. The Group
will be present in the growing Nordic region following
completion of the acquisition of DT Group.

Management has estimated market sizes through evaluating the building materials suppliers' total market if all
products were channelled through the distribution network. Management’s best estimate of both Wolseley's
activity in each market and the totai size of these markets are set out below:

Total for countries

with Wolseley presence UK and [reland
Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated
rnarket market market market
Revenue size share Sales sizg share
£bn £6on % £bn £bn %
Plumbing, Heating & Air Conditioning 2.5 17.5 14% 1.4 4.7 30%
Electrical 0.1 14.7 0% 041 29 2%
Building Materials 2.1 a5.6 2% 1.0 27.5 4%
Civils/Waterworks, Industrial & Commercial 0.5 8.9 5% 0.2 1.8 13%
Total 5.2 136.7 4% 2.7 36.9 7%

France Central Europe
Estimated Estirnated Estimated Estimated
market market market market
Sales size share Sales size share
£on £bn % £bn thn %
Plumbing, Heating & Air Conditioning 05 4.7 11% 0.6 8.1 7%
Electrical 0.0 5.7 0% 0.0 6.1 0%
Building Materials 1.1 21.5 5% 0.0 46.6 0%
Civils/Waterwerks, Industrial & Commercial 0.1 1.4 7% 0.2 5.7 3%
Total 1.7 333 5% 0.8 66.5 1%
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£240bn

The estimated size of the
otal market opportunity
in Europe

+11.1%

The increase in reported
revenue of the European
division

Significant
opportunities
are available

to broaden

the European
division’s

reach both
geographically
and alsoin
terms of market
segment.

The acquisition
of DT Group is

a significant step
in this regard

An analysis of the estimated total market opportunity in Europe, including those territories where at 31 July 2006

Wolseley had nc presence, is set out below:

Rest of

Europe (Total) Nordic Europe

Estimated Estimated  Estimated Estimated

market market market market

Sales size share size size

£bn Tbn % £bn £bn

Plumbing, Heating & Air Conditioning 2.5 28.7 9% 1.5 9.7
Electrical 0.1 24.3 0% 18 7.8
Building Materials 2.1 169.5 1% 12.8 61.0
Civiis/\Waterworks, Indusérial & Commercial 0.5 17.4 3% 1.5 70
Total 5.2 239.9 2% 17.7 85.5

Note: Wolseley's small existing operation in Denmark has been excluded from this analysis.

Demand In the European markets is driven by activity in a number of key market sectors:
* the residential market analysed between new construction and repairs, maintenance and improvemants;
* the non-residential market analysed between new construction and repairs, maintenance and improvements; and

+ the civil infrastructure market.

The division’s split of business by each of these key drivers is given below:

Sales Sales
£bn %
Residential:
New construction 1.4 28%
Repairs, Maintenance and Improvements 28 50%
Non-Residential:
New construction 0.3 5%
Repairs, Maintenance and (mprovements 0.6 11%
Civil infrastructure 0.3 6%
Total 5.2 100%

The dhvision has more activity generated from resicential
compared 1o non-residential and civil infrastructure
work, however the actions underway both through
acquisitions and enhancement of business diversity,
continue to broaden the business base.

Significant opportunities are available to broaden
the division's reach both geographically and also
in terms of market segment. The acquisition of DT
Group represents a significant step in this regard.
Its annual revenue in its last financial year was
£1.6 dillion.

Divisional performance

All of the continental European operations with
the exception of the Czech Republic, which had
marginally lower revenue, increased revenue and
most achieved profit improvements in the year to
31 July 2008 despite markets in construction that
showed very little growtn. The results bensfited
from the effect of acquisitions but were adversely
impacted by the fall in Brossette's profits due to its
restructuring and lower profitability in Austria.
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Reported revenua for the European division
increased by 11.1% from £4,637 miillion to

£5,150 million, of which 2.8% was from organic
growth, Growth due o acguisitions accounted

for £382 mitlion {8.2%} of revenue. Trading profit,
after European central costs, increased 2.9% from
£307 million to £316 million. European central costs
rose by £3 million to £7 million cue to the planned
expansion of the European infrastructure to drive
future growth and profit initiatives.

The overall divisional traging margin, after European
central costs, fell from 6.6% to 6.1% primaniy due
1o the lower trading margins in Brossette, Austria
and the UK and the effect of acquisitions. Margin
improvements were achieved in PBM (France),
Manzardo (ltaly), Cesarc (Czech Republic), Elsctro
Qil {Denmark} and Wasco (Netherlands).

In the year, a further net 375 branches were added
to the European network, giving a total of 2,861
locations (2005: 2,486).




+375

The net additional branches
added to the European
network

+9.9%

The increase in trading profit
reported by Wolseley UK

The new national
DCin Royal
Leamington Spaq,
which is located
alongside
Wolseley UK’s new
headquarters,
commenced
deliveries to
branches in
August 2006

UK and Ireland

Wolseley UK’s performance held up well against
a UK building materials market which is estimated
1o be around 4-5% down on the prior period. Whilst
the fundamentals of the UK economy remained
positive, with relatively low interest rates and

fow unemplioyment, repairs, maintenance and
improvement (“BMI") spending slowed in the first
half of the financial year in response to weaker
consumer confidence, but sales trends started to
show a gradual improvement in the final quarter.
Government spending remained a relative bright
spot, although there have been noticeable delays
in planned social housing expenditure.

Against this more challenging background, Wolseley
UK, which includes frefand, recorded a 14.4%
increase in revenue to £2,690 milion (2005: £2,351
millicn). Organic growth of 2.1% outperformed the
market generally, with Bathstore, the retall bathroom
offering and Heatmerchants and Brooks, the lrish
businesses, performing particularly well, producing
double-digit organic revenue growth.

Wolseley UK's trading profit increased by 9.9% on
the prior year mainly as a resuit of the acquisitions
of William Wilson, Encon, AC Electrical and Brandon
Hire, all of which have outperformed expectations
at the time of acquisition. Although the gress margin
improved, the trading margin fell slightly from

7.8% to 7.5%. This was the result of the cngoing
investment in the business to increase the
management rasource, improve supply chain

and logistics and expand the branch opening
programme. These investments provide a platform
for future growth in both the traditional brand areas
as well as those recently entered.

The new national distribution centre (*DC") in

Royal Leamington Spa, which is located alongside
Wolseley UK’s new headquarters, commenced
deliveries to branches in August 2008. The regional
DC, in the north west, is scheduled to open in
Autumn 2007. These invastments and the cumrent
initiatives to centralise control of transport and
branch inventory management should enhance
customer servige, improve efficiency and support
continued growth in the business.

During the year, 288 net new locations were added
in the UK and Ireland, including 262 branches added
as a result of acquisitions, taking the total number

of branches for Wolseley UK to 1,858 {2005:

1,570 branches).
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France

In France, government tax incentives continued

to underpin growth in the new residential market,
but RMI, representing approximately two-thirds of
revenue for both Brossette and PBM, continued
to show only marginal improvernent against the
background of little growth in the overall economy,
weak consumer confidence and persistent high
levels of unemployment.

Wolseley's French operations, which since May have
been managed through one central team, generated
revenue up 4.8% tc €2,515 million (2005: €2,399
million), including organic growth of 2.1%. Trading
profit for France was down to €132 miillion (2005;
€143 million) with a trading margin of 5.3% {2005:
6.0%) as a result of the lower level of profitability

in Brossette.

PBM achieved an increase in revenue of 8.8% in
local currency, almost half of which was organic
growth. The sales trends in PBM improved in the
second half and this upward momentum is expected
to continue. Gross margin was down slightly. PBM's
branch numbers increased by 57 during the year

to 347 branches including the opsning of 8 new
satellites and 12 hire locations. The underlying
trading profit, excluding the previously announced
€11.5 million (£8 millicn) wood import duties rebate,
showed an improvement, as did the underlying
trading margin.

Local currency revenue in Brossette was 1.8%

up on the prior year. Trading profit was significantly
lower, bafore taking account of the previously
announced €7.6 million (£5 million) fine from the
French Competition Authorities relating to matters
which took place mare than ten years ago.
Brossette's results reflect the ongoing reorganisation
of the district, branch and management structures
and the move to ¢entralisation of purchasing and
logistics, ali of which are designed to enhance
customer service and facilitate future expansion.

In order to accelerate the changes being made at
Brossette a number of management and employee
changes were made during the year with associated
one-off severance costs of approximatsly €3.5 million.

PBM is expanding the number of jcint sitas with
Brossette, continuing to cross-sell each others’
products in their respective branches and exploiting
opportunities to create purchasing synergies and
indirect cost savings in cooperation with other
Group companies.




+14.6%

The increase in reported
revenue of Central Europe

Tobler, in
Switzerland, had
another record
year with revenue
up 17.8% to more
than CHF300
million for the first
time, including
10% organic
growth

1Source: Supply House Times, May 2006
2Sopurce: ProSales, 2006

Central Europe

The Group’s other continental Eurcpean cperations
enjoyed generally good results despite broadly flat
markets. Revenue in Central Europe was up by
14.6% to £735 million {2005: £642 million), reflecting
organic growth of 7.4% and the benefit of acquisitions.
Trading profit was up 3.9% to £31 million (2005:
£30 million).

Tobler, in Switzerland, had ancther record year with
revenue up 17.8% to more than CHF30C million for
the first fime, inciuding 10.1% organic growth.
Despite competitive market conditions exerting some
pressure on prices and a change in the business mix
to lower margin products, its trading margin improved.

In the Netherlands, Wasco continued to make
good progress expanding its product range into
sanitaryware, developing its offering to the more
profitable RMI market and focusing on cost control.
It achieved organic revenue growth of 16.1% and
trading profit improved by 57.0%. In Luxembourg,
CFM'’s revenue increased by 3.6% although trading
profit was down, reflecting an increasingly competitive
market, Centratec, the Belgian business acquired in
October 2005, performed in line with expectations
and is now working with Wasco and CFM to
achieve improvements in sourcing, logistics and
inventory management.

OAG, in Austria, increased revenue by 2.7%
although trading profit fell due to continued
competitive pressure on prices as a conseguence

of difficult housing and RMI markets and business
restructuring. In Hungary and the Czech Republic,
local market conditions remained difficult but Wolseley
Hungary achieved strong organic revenue growth
and Cesaro in the Czech Republic improved profits.

In ltaly, Manzardo increased revenue by 21.4%
compared to the prior year, Including 6.7% organic
growth in a fiat market and the incremental effect of
iser Zauli acquired in January 2005. The branch
opening programme of the past few years continued
to benefit Manzardo's revenue growth. Trading profit
rose 13% reflecting the costs of branch cpenings
and preparations for the DC opening. Four new
brancnes were opened during the year. Progress

on the €20 million new central DC in northern ltaly
continues and the first branch deliveries are
expected to commence before the end of 2008, with
other branches being rolled out over the following
12 to 18 months.
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Further progress was made during the year to
manage the businesses in a more integrated

way across Europe. The focus was on sharing
best practice in areas such as branch format and
product/service offerings, rationalising the product
and supplier base, improving the supply chain and
sourcing from low cost countries. All of these
initiatives are designed to enable the Group to
benefit from cross-border synergies and accelerate
growth in Europe.

North America

Market

The Group’s activities in North America centre around
two main market areas — plumbing and heating
distribution, which are served by Ferguson and
Woiseley Canada and building materials distribution,
which is served by Stock Building Supply.

Ferguson is the largest wholesale distributor

of piumbing supplies, pipes, valves and fittings

in the USA and a major distributor of heating,
ventilation and air conditioning systems?!. The
company also distributes waterworks products,
fire protection products and industrial pipes, valves
and fittings as well as operating a number of
speciaity businesses, serving markets such as the
nuclear industry and a maintenance, repairs and
operations management services business.
Ferguson is managed through “business groups”
such as Heating Ventitation and Air Conditioning
(“HVAC™ and Waterworks, These business groups
allow management 1o focus on the specific needs
of key groups of customers. Ferguson is present in
50 states, as well as the Uistrict of Columbia and
has 1,237 branches (2005: 841 branches).

Wolseley Canada distributes piumbing, heating and
piping products, including heating, ventilation and

air conditioning, waterworks, refrigeration, industrial
pipes, valves and fittings and fire protection products
as well as industrial plumbing supplies to customers
through its 246 branches {2005: 238 branches).

Stock Builging Supply is the largest supplier of
building materiais to professional nhome bullders

and contractors in the USAZ2. Stock Building Supply
is present in 33 states with 314 locations (2005:
255 locations) and provides contractors with Bullding
materials such as structural timber products, roofing
products, windows, insulation and hardware. Stock
Building Supply also assembles and sells & variety
of engineered wood products and offers customer
delivery, design, installation as well as financing and
credit services.




50

The number of US States
where Wolseley has a
presence, as well as the
District of Columbia

In North America,
Wolseley has
shown impressive
organic growth,
outperforming the
market and
gaining market
share

*Source: 1BISWGrd
2Source: US Census Bureau

In general, the North American plumbing and heating
distribution market (s fragmented with an estimated
95% of distribution operations employing less than
100 people. Consolidation of market players has
accelerated with some of the major retailers having
moved more significantly into the market. The North
Amatican building materials markat is also very
fragmented with no company enjoying more than

a 3% market share!.

Both markets have shown good growth in recent
years reflecting low unemployment rates, refatively
low interest rates and strong real GDP growth.
Wolseley has shown impressive organic growth,
outperforming the market and gaining market share.

Demographic trends suppaert high rates of hame
ownership and residential construction with “baby
boomers” entering their peak earnings time and
purchasing second or trade-up homes while
immigrants are buoying the entry-level market. Baby
boomers, who are thought to contrat a majority of

the wealth in the USA, are also expected to have a
significant effect on the repair and remodel market
as their decision to improve their existing homes

will be less influenced by the state of the sconomy.

The plumbing and heating distribution market is
driven by new construction and remodelling sales.
The fatter market is less cyclical. The building materials
market is influenced similarly although Stock Building
Supply's business is currently more focused on the
new residential construction sector. Annualised
housing starts in the USA at 31 July 2006 were

just below 1.8 million per annum?2, but there are
indications that the market will continue 1o soften.

Splitting the US into four geographic regions using
US Census information, it is possible to analyse the
number and growth in new housing staris by region.
This can then be compared to Wolseley's share of
its business in each of these regions afthough it
should be noted that this will also reflact sales into
non-residerttial sources.

New residential Remodelling Wolseley

Calendar Calendar Share

2005 share Growth versus 2006 Growth versus of revenue

Region of starts 2004 share 2004 in 2005/6
Northeast 9.2% 8.0% 17.3% 12.6% 6.9%
Miciwest 17.3% 0.6% 23.4% 8.3% 15.0%
South 48.2% 3.6% 35.7% 14.9% 46.5%
Wast 25.3% 1.7% 23.6% 13.8% 31.8%

Note: LIS Census information relalés to calendar years whereas the Group information relates te the year to 31 July 2008.

In the Scuth and West areas which in 2005 represented 73.5% of new housing starts and 59.3% of remodelling
activity, the division had 78.1% of its business and hence is wel placed to exploit these key markets.
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£460bn

The estimated size of the total
market opportunity in North
America

+36.1%

The increase in reported sterling
revenues of the North American
division

Trading profit, in
sterling, increased
by 41.5% from
£426 million to
£603 million

Management has astimated overall market sizes for North America. For the materials market, market size is
based on the final selling cost to the installer or end user. For construction services, the market only includes
those activities currently serviced by Wolseley. Management's best estimate of both Wolseley's activity in each
market and the total size of these markets are set out below:

Wolseley North America USA

Estimatad Fstimated Estimated Estimated
market market market markat
Sales size share Sales size share
£bn thn % £bn £bn %
Flumbing, Heating & Air Conditioning 3.0 38.1 8% 2.6 32.7 8%
Electrical cA 379 0% 0.1 309 0%
Building Materials 2.7 187.4 1% 2.7 173.1 2%
Civils/Waterwarks, [ndustrial & Commergial 2.7 111.6 2% 25 107.4 2%
Construction Services 0.5 84.7 1% G.5 84.5 1%
Total 9.0 459.7 2% 8.4 408.6 2%

Canada
Estimated Estimated
market market
Sales size share
£en £bn %
Plumbing, Heating & Air Conditioning c.4 5.4 7%
Electrical 0.0 7.0 0%
Building Materials c.c 14.3 0%
Civils/Waterworks, Industrial & Commercial 0.2 4.2 5%
Construction Services 0.0 20.2 0%
Total 0.6 511 1%

Management has also estimated the business drivers for its revenues in a consistent manner to the European

division. The results are shown below:

Sales

£bn % Sales
Residential:
New construction 4.1 46%
Repairs, Maintenance and Improvements 1.4 18%
Non-residential:
New gonstruction 1.8 20%
Repairs, Maintenance and improvements 0.9 10%
Civil infrastructure 0.8 8%
Total 9.0 100%

In general the division shows a broad spread of
business across the categories. While residential
new construction has slowed, the other segments
continue to show growth. Actions are being taken
tc widen the business base and increase Wolseley's
presence in these other market segments. The use
of the business group modei providing dedicated
focus on customer segments in North America

is providing focus towards this objective.

Wolseley remains confident that with the continued
development in the strength and depth of its
management and the investment being made in
the supply chain, the business is well placed to
succeed in meeting its growth targets and improve
marging over time.

Divisional performance
Wolseley's North American division performed
strongly in the year to 31 July 2006 with significant
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rises in revenue and profits, maintaining its position
as the leading distributor of construction products to
the professional contractor market in North America.

Reported revenue of the division was up 36.1% from
£6,619 milion to £9,008 million, reflecting organic
agrowth of 16.4%, net gains from price fluctuations in
commodities, acquisitions and the beneficial impact
of currency translation. Trading profit, in sterling,
increased by 41.5% from £426 million to £6C3 million,
after an increase of £10 million in North American
central costs, reflecting the creation of the new
North American management structure with effect
from 1 August 2005,

Currgney translation ingreased divisional revenue by
£274 million (4.1%) and trading profit by £18 million
(4.2%). There was & net increase of 363 branches
in North America to 1,797 (2005: 1,434},




+35.1%

The increase in reported
revenue of Ferguson

+27.4%

The increase in reported
revenues of Stock Building

Supply

Volumes through
the DC network
grew by 34%
compared to the
prior year and
more than 50% of
branch sales now
go through the
network

US Piumbing and Heating

Ferguson produced another outstanding performance
generating strong organic growth from its focus on
selected markets, new branch openings and driving
further commercial advantage from its distribution
centre (“DC") network, These factors contributed

to significant market out performance in the year.

Local currency revenue in the US plumbing and
heating operations rose by 35.1% to $9,651 millien
(2005: $7.144 milion} with trading profit up by
40.4% to $676 milion (2005: $481 million). Organic
revenue growth was 24.3%. The second half

gross margin penefited from further increases in
commodity prices, mainly copper towards the latter
part of the financial year. Ferguson's scale and
distripution capability allowed it to take advantage

of price movements in a rising commeodity market

1o secure gdditional cne-off profits amounting to
around $35 million in the second half in addition to
the one-off gains of around $8 million in the first haff.
Taking into account the one-off gains, the trading
margin increased from 6.7% to 7.0%. The underlying
trading margin was approximately 20 basis points
higher, year on year, increasing from 8.5% to 6.7%,
despite significant revenue investments.

Volumes through the DC network grew by 34%
compared to the prior year and more than 50% of
branch sales now go through the network. Further
investment was made in the DCs with an additional
700,000 square feet of capacity added through

the expansion of four existing facilities. Board
approval has recently been given for new DCs in
both Florida and northern California, which should
be operational within 12 months.

Of the markets in which Ferguson operates, the
commercial and industrial sectors continued 1o
improve and aithough new housing slowed towards
the end of the financial year, cther housing related
activity remained strong, with the positive economic
environment benefiting the repairs, maintenance and
improvernent sector. RMI is becoming an increasingly
important element of overall construction spend in
the USA. To address this opportunity, Ferguson
opened a further 64 XpressNet branches and 30
new showrooms during the year, More than 60 new
specialist branches for heating, ventilation and air-
conditioning or waterworks were also opened and
this focus should lead to further growth opportunities.

As well as new branch openings, investment in
people and |T continued during the period. More
than 4,300 people joined the business and the new
warehouse management system is being introduced
into the large branches. This should lead 1o better
customer service as a result of faster and more
accurate product picking and more efficient
inventory management.
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Ferguson’s total branch numbers increased by 296
during the year tc 1,237 locations (2005: 941 branches).

US Building Materials

The strong performance of Stock Building Supply
benefited from improved market focus which was
brought about by the recent business restructuring
and from acquisitions. Reported figures also
benefited from currency translation,

In local currency, Stock Building Supply's revenue
was up 27.4% to $5,305 milion (2005: $4,164
million) with trading profit up by 40.6% from $244
millicn to $343 million. Organic revenue growth was
4.1%, reflecting some commodity price deflation
in lumber and structural panels. These commodity
price movements had the effect of decreasing
Stock Building Supply’s local currency revenue

by $167 million (4.0%) in the year compared to
the prior year with the greater impact being in the
second haif. Acquisitions contributed $970 miltion
(23.3%); to revenue growth.

Stock Building Supply's trading margin increased
significantly from 5.8% to 8.5% primarily as a
result of & more favourable sales mix arising from
increased management focus on value added
products and installed services, both of which
represent significant growth opportunities.

For the majority of the financial year, new residential
housing starts were around record levels at between
1.9 and 2.0 million starts, although there were
sigrificant regicnal variations. The markets in Georgia,
Utah, Texas and the Carolinas have been the
strongest throughout the year whereas the weakest
markets have been in the upper Midwest and the
Northeast. As expected, housing starts declined in the
final quarter of the year as a result of rising interest
rates, increased inventory of unsold houses and a
reversal in the trend of houss price inflation. Housing
starts ended the year at just below 1.8 mitiion per
annum, with the praviously buoyant markets such as
Washington DC, Florida and Las Vegas showing
significant fourth quarter year on year declines.
Management action has already been taken to reduce
headcount and indirect costs and to shift emphasis to
the more resilient housing markets and increase
penetration of the RM! and industrial and commercial
markets. Initiatives are alsc being taken to expand the
product range throughout the branch network, which
should help Stock Building Supply continue to
outperform in these softening market conditions.

Value-added sales were up 31%, construction service
and installed business sales were up more than
140% and sales 1o commercial and RMI contractors
increased by 47% and 20%, respectively. As well

as achieving this through its existing branch network
and acquisitions, Stock Bullding Supply opened

19 new greenfield branches and these initiatives
further complement Stock Building Supply's installed
senvice expertise.




+13.0%

The increase in reported
revenues of Wolseley Canada

The Board
expects another
year of good
progress,
benefiting from
the diversity

of the Group

in terms

of geography,
customer and
product

Stock Building Supply’s branch numbers increased
by 59 during the year to 314 locations {2005: 255
branches). The branch opening programme has
continued so that Stock Building Supply currently
operates in 33 states.

Wofsefey Canada

In Canada, the construction and housing markets
remained mostly strong, while the buoyant energy
sector in Western Canada helped sales in the
industriat and commaercial sector.

Local currency revenue increased by 13.0% to
C$1,330 million (2005: C$1.177 milion). Of this,
10.7% of the revenue growth was organic, ahead
of the market generally. Gross margin improved and
lecal currency trading profit rose by 12.4%, resulting
in an unchanged trading margin of 8.9%.

Work continued to consolidate back offices, recruit
additional people to fill management and trainee
positions and to improve iogistics. The second of
three regional supply centres for larger inventory
items was opened in Quebec in October 20056, with
the third likely to open near Toronto in Spring 2007.
These regional supply centres should lead to lower
inventory levels and enable the branch network to
be utilised more effectively.

Wolseley Canada's total branch numbers increased
from 238 to 2486 locations.

Future outlook

In the USA, the new residential housing market,
which is expected to account for around 30%

of Group revenus, is likely to continue to soften

with significant regional variations. Against a more
uncertain economic background, but with relatively
low unemployment and good levels of business
investrment, the RM! and Industrial and commercial
markets should continue to grow and more than
outweigh the slowing new residential market. The
diversity of the Group's US aperations should enable
them to cutperform the market and make gocd
progress overall. However, for Stock Building Supply,
the outlook is more challenging due to the slowing
housing market and lumber prices which are likely
to remain lower than the equivalent pericd in the
prior year.
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In Canada, the overall environment is expected to
remain positive and although the new residential
hausing market is slowing from recent high levels,
the industrial and commercial markets are expected
1o remain strong, driven by a bugyant energy sector.

The UK market is expected to continue tc show

a gradual improvement into the calendar year 2007,
with Wolseley operations in the UK and Ireland also
benefiting from the recent acceleration of acquisition
activity, product expansion and improved supply
chain efficiency.

In France, growth in the RMI market is likely to
remain modest. PBM is expected to continue to
show good momentum, benefiting from acquisitions,
new branch cpenings and other business improverment
initiatives. The recrganisation of Brossette will
continue and further investments in the business

will be made to create a platform for future growth.
Brossette Is expected to make progress in the
coming year.

The integration of DT Group into Wolseley will
provide additional growth and opportunities for
synergies against the backdrop of a positive
economic outlook in the Nerdic region.

Whilst the majority of markets in the rest of continental
Eurcpe are likely to remain broadly flat, Wolseley's
operations are expected to show solid progress.

There are & number of business impravement
initiatives in place relating to supply chain, sourcing
and procurement that should deliver enhanced
performance. The Group will continue to pursue its
objective of achieving, on average, double-digit sales
and profit improvements through a combination of
organic growth and acquisitions.

The 10% pfacing of new ordinary shares, announced
on 25 September 2006, will enable the Group

to continue to pursue its growth strategy and its
programme of bolt-on acquisitions.

The Board expects another year of good progress,
benefiting from the diversity of the Group in terms
of geograpty, customer and product.




The Group’s
businesses closely
monitor both
market and
geographic trends
and understand
lead and lag
indicators in order
to take timely
actions to address
issues affecting
trading

Risk management

In any business, there are a number of risks and
uncertainties which could have an impact on its
long-term performance. The Group has an extensive
risk management structure in place which is designed
to identify, manage and mitigate business risk. The
Group recognises that the risks and uncertainties
facing its businesses are constantly changing and it
therefore empowers local companies to monitor these
and deploy mitigation rescurces as appropriate.

Risk

Risk assessment and evaluation is an essential
part of the annual planning cycle and an important
aspect of the Group's internal control system.

The relevant structures and processes across

the Group are more fully described on page 58.

The ability of Wolseley to monitor, assess and respond
to these business risks can often provide it with
compstitive advantages and hence the business’
resources arg carefully managed in these areas. The
principal risks faced by the Group and its ranagement
response thereto are summarised below:

Resource management

Market conditions

Wolseley's products are distributed to professional
contractors in connection with commercial, industrial
and residential construction projects and the Group's
results are consequently dependent on the levels of
activity in their markets. The level of activity varies by
market depending on many factors including general
economic conditions, mortgage and other interest
rates, inflation, unemployment, demographic trends,
weather, the price of fusl and consumer confidence,

The Group's businesses clossly monitor both market
and geographic trends and understand lead and lag
indicators in order to take timely actions to address
issues affecting trading.

The diversity of the Group's operations, the nature
of its customer base and its ability to react to market
changes also provide a degree of protection. The
Group actively manages both its acquisitions activity
and new branch openings to ensure it is best placed
to exploit market opportunitias.

Product prices and availability

The market price and availability of products
distributed by the Group, such as stainless steel,
copper, plastic and other products (or commodities
used in such products), can fluctuate. These
fluctuations can affect operating results.

Lumber prices are affected both by changes in

the availability of the raw logs and by changes

in the volume and age profile of production capacity
in the industry.

Product shortages may arise as a result of
unexpacted demand or production difficulties and
this could have an effect on the Group's operations.

The Group’s businesses actively review market
prices for their supplies and take steps to protact
themselves or, indeed, maximise opportunities
arising from significant anticipated price rises. In
many cases, the businesses are able to cooperate
with their supplier base to manage the effects of
such product price changes. Generally, the Group
is able to pass on price increases from its suppliers
1o customers.

The Group sources products from a wicle variety

of manufacturers and suppliers with none of these
accounting for more than 5% of its total materiai
and supply purchages during the 20086 financial year.
Increasing collaboration with suppliers including joint
demand forecasting initiatives is also hslping to
better manage product shortage issues,
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Wolseley’s value
proposition
centres around
the service,
expertise and
the product
breadth it offers

Risk

Resource management

Competitive pressures

The Group operates in a number of different markets
with differing characteristics. The principal aspects
of the Group's offerings that have an impact on

its competitive position in a markst are product
availabitity, supply chain efficiency, pricing, customer
service, branch location, avallabllity of credit,
technical product knowledge with respact to
application and usage and advisory and other
service capabilities.

tn its markets, Wolseley competes with and is
affected by the actions of many local and regional
distributors together with product manufacturers.
Consolidation in the building materials market
may produce pressure on prices and margins.

The Group actively works with its customers to
find innovative ways to meet their changing needs
in order to remain at the forefront of its chosen
markets. Wolseley's vaiue proposition centres
around the service, expertise and the product
breadth it offers rather than strictly competing

on price.

The combination of Wolseley's international scale,
allowing It to continually invest efficiently in people,
technology and logistics, thus reducing the underlying
cost base, together with local company autonomy for
managing the customer base, is designed to enhance
the Grroup's competitive position.

Systems and infrastructure capabilities
Wolseley targets sustained double-digit expansion
from acquisitions and organic growth. This growth
places increasing demands on Wolseley's existing
systems and on its supply ¢hain and logistics
infrastructure. Additicnally, to support and enable
future growth, the Group is undertaking multiple
business change initiatives.

Woiseley is committed to investing to support its
short, medium and long-term growth targets and
ensure the appropriate infrastructure is in place.
There are a variety of business improvement
initiatives underway relating to supply chain,
sourcing, huran resources, the deployment

of technology and customer service.

These initiatives are actively and carefully planned
with defined governance procedures in place.

An important component of this planning process is
to ensure that the risks of disruption to the business
are controlled and monitored.

Identification and successful

integration of acquisitions

Wolseley's growth strategy is in part dependent

on acquiiing businesses but market consolidation
may, over a period of time, lead to increased
competition for targets and as a result higher
acquisition prices or fewer value-creating prospects.

The integration of acquisitions also involves a
number of unique risks, including diversion of
management'’s attention, failure to retain key
personnel of the acquired business and risks
associated with unanticipated events or liabilities,

The Group continually reviews acquisition targets
through established processes and searches.
The status of targeting and progress in making
acquisitions is reported regularly to the Board and
the Executive Committes.

The Group employs dedicated acquisition and
integration teams whose processes have given

the Group a successful track record of integrating
acquisitions and achieving expected results. Recent
changes have been made to the Group’s management
structure to increase the central resourcs focused on
identifving and integrating acquisitions.

The Group typically targets high quality businesses
for acquisition, which not only quickly contribute to
cash fiow and earnings, but also expand the cepth
of management knowledge and expertise and
provide opportunities for best practice sharing with
existing businesses.

The Group continues to expect to find sufficient,
suitably priced acqguisitions, to enable it to meet its
growth targets. The Group also has the advantage
of being able to expand and leverage its extensive
existing network as an alternative means to
achieving growth in certain areas.
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One Of WOISE'QV,S Risk Resource management
H Governmental regulations
key Compeutlve The Group’s operations are affected by various The Group monitors regulations across its markets
i statutes, regulations and laws in the countries and to ensure that the effects of changes are minimised.
advuntuges IS markets in which it operates. While the Group is not
the quallty and engaged in a regulated industry, it is subject to Certain changes in regulations may also positively
the laws governing businesses generally, including impact the businesses. For instance, changes in
expeﬂenCe Of laws affecting land usage, zoning, environmental building regulations in the UK with regard to the
. (including laws and regulations affecting the supply level of heat insulation required in new buildings
Its people of lumberj, health and safety, transportation, labour has presented a growth opportunity for Woiseley
and employment practices (including pensions), UK through the acquisition of Encon. Such changes

competition and other matters. in addition, building
codes or particular tax treatments may affect the
products Wolseley's customers are allowed to use
and consequently, changes in these may affect the
saleability of some Walseley products.

may also provide demand for a broader and higher
margin product range.

Litigation

The international nature of Wolseley's operations
exposes it to the potential for litigation from third
parties. In the USA, the risk of litigation is generally
higher than that in Europe in such areas as workers’
compensation, general employer llability and
environmental and asbestos litigation.

There is risk that due to the increasing sourcing
of products from lower cost countries, receurse
to the manufacturer may be more difficult were
a product to fail for a customer.

Wolseley has a culture and approach which

is designed to resolve disputes directly with

the party in question in a spirit of openness and
cooperation. Litigation is regarded as a last resort.

In the case of asbestos litigation, Wolseley employs
independent professional advisers to actuarially
determine the potential gross liability, which
necessitates the application of certain assumptions
relating to claims development and the cost of
settling such claims over the remaining lifetime

of the potential litigants, which is approximately

50 years. There are a number of factors which
could enable actual experienca to differ from the
assumptions made. Actual experience is reviewed
against the assumptions each year and the liability
adjusted in the financial statements.

Wolseley has insurance which significantly exceeds
the current estimated liabllity relating to asbestos
claims. Based on current estimates, no profit or
cash flow impact is therefore expected to arise in
the foreseeable future. Wolseley has recognised

a discounted liabfity of £31 million in respect of
asbestos litigation. An equal receivable amount of
£31 milion is shown in other receivables reflecting
the discounted sum recoverable from insurers in
respect of this liability.

People

Wolseley's ability to provide lsadership and products
and serviges to customers 1s dependent on
retaining sufficiently qualified, experienced and
motivated personnel.

In order fo achieve its growth strategy and increase
productivity, Wolselsy must continue to increase this
sKill and experience base to develop the managers

of the future.

One of Wolseley's key competitive advantages is the
quality and experience of its people. Local companies
have allocated specific responsibilities for reviewing
the performance of senior managers and employees
with high potential. Development and succession
planning for these individuals is planned and strong
performance is actively rewarded.

The Group ¢continues to invest significant time
and money in senior management, managsr
development and graduate trainee and graduate
recruitment programmes.
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Increasingly,

the Group’s
businesses are
working together
to meet
customers’ needs
and to ensure
the Group
achieves more
international
leverage

Risk

Resource management

Risks related to international operations
Wolseley has its principal operations in North
America and Europe and is therefore subject to
the specific risks of conducting business in these
regions. In addition, there are particular risks arising
from managing operations internationally:

+ fluctuations in currency exchange rates may
affect Wolseley's reported operating results and
its financial position;

¢ changes in tax regulation and international tax
treaties could affect the financial performance
of Wolseley's foreign operations; and

* changes in other regulations/treaties may also
affect the ability of the Group to repatriate profits
from its foreign operations.

The management of Wolseley's businesses and
personnel across 19 countries can also present
logistical and managemant challenges due to

different business cultures, laws and languages.

Wolseley believes that the benefits of its
geographical spread cutweigh the associated risks.
The portfolic effect of economic conditions,
exchange rates and other associated factors of
having cperations in Europe and North America
provide some protection in terms of the long-term
performance of Wolseley.

The Group continually sesks coportunities to
increzse its business diversity and has programmes
in place to share best practice. Increasingly, the
Group's businesses are working togsther to meet
customers’ needs and to ensure the Group achieves
more infernational leverage.

The Group seeks to manage its foreign currency risk
and the steps it takes are described in the Financial
Risk Management section on pages 39 to 41. The
Group actively works with its taxation advisors to
minimise its tax exposure and risk,

Credit risk

Wolseley provides sales on credit terms to many of its
customers. There is an associated risk that customers
may not be able 1o pay outstanding balances.

Stock Bullding Supply alse provides loans to finance
the construction of properties. There is an asscciated
risk that customers may not be able to pay
outstanding 'oan balances.

Each of the businesses have established procedures
in place to review and collect outstanding receivables.
Gignificant outstanding and overdue balances are
reviewed on a regular basis and resulting actions are
put in place on & timely basis. In many cases,
protection is provided through lien rights on projects
or through credit insurance arrangements.

All of the major businesses use professional,
dedicated credit teams, in some cases field based.
Not only does this fessen the risk of non-payment
but it can also provide cpportunities where these
teamns can work with higher risk customers to
provide innovative, secured credit arrangements.

Historic write off rates are low and appropriate
provisions are made for debts that may be impaired
on a timely basls.

Stock Building Supply's construction loans are
secured on the related properties and are managed
by a dedicated lending team within that business.
Pclicies are also applied to provide further protection
and Key Performance Indicators are monitored
regularly by management outside the business.
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+19.7%

The increase in earnings
per share

25,322

The reported revenue
expressed in milions

of US Dallars

: i 3 Further USE figures and the basis of computation
Group revenue E:.\lg:l(l:eqai:c?:li\yating profit of the above figures can be found within the
i Inf tion in US doll tion 145.
InCI'E(]SEd by After taking account of currency translation, Group nfarmation in US dollars section on page

25.8% from
£11,256 million to
£14,158 million

Shareholders’
funds increased
by £291 million
from £2,301
million to
£2,592 million

revenue increased by 25.8% from £11,256 million
to £14,158 million.

Operating profit increased by 18.8% from £702
million to £834 million. Trading profit rose by 24.7%
from £708 million to £882 million, before deducting
amortisation of acquired intangibles of £48 miillicn
(2005: £6 million).

Currency translation

Currency translation increased Group revenue by
£274 milion (2.4%) and Group trading profit by

£18 million (2.5%). Over the past five years the
constant currency growth of the Group is as follows:

Annual growth in

constant currency 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Revenue growth 22.8% 14.2% 29.5% 85% 11.0%
Trading profit

growth 21.6% 19.7% 37.2% 6.9% 12.6%

Note: 2006 and 2005 figures prepared under IFRS, 2004, 2003
and 2002 figures prepared under UK GAAR

The effect of US doliar appreciation has been to
increase translated US profits by £14 million {(2.5%)
compared to 2005. US dollar denominated profits
account for 63.3% of the Group’s trading profit.

There has been fittle movement in the Euro translation
rate. Eurc denominated profits accounted for 15.2% of
Group trading profit in 2006. ¥ the results of the Group
are translated into dollars at the average rate for the
respective year the results of the Group are as follows:

US$ million 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Revenue in
us$ 25,322 20,839 17,746 13,113 11,608
Trading
proftin US$ 1,877 1,311 1085 754 676
Operating
proft in US$ 1,481 13800 1,017 708 837

Note: 2006 and 2005 figures prepared under IFRS. 2004, 2003
and 2002 figures prepared undsr UK GAAP.

Finance cosis

Net finance costs of £85 million (2005: £37 million)
reflect an increase in Group dabt as a resuit of
acquisitions and an increase in interest rates, partly
offset by strong operating cashflew and €5 milion
({£3 million) of interest received on the previously
anncunced French wood tax refund. Net interest
receivable on construction loans amounted to

£12 miilon (2005: £9 milion). Interest cover was
14 times (2005: 23 times).

Tax

The effective tax rate, being tax payable on profit
before tax and amortisation of acquired intangibles,
increased marginally from 27.7% to 28.4%.

Earnings per share

Before the amortisation of acquired intangibles,
earnings per share increased by 19.7% from
82.60 pence to 98.80 pence. Basic earnings
per share were up by 11.2% t0 90.77 pence
(2005: 81.61 pence). The average number of
shares in issue during the year was 592 million
{2005: 587 million).

Dividends

The Board is recommending a final dividend of
19.55 pence per share (2005: 17.60 pence per
share) to be paid on 30 November 2006 to
shareholders registered on 6 October 2008, The
total dividend for the year of 28.40 pence per share
is an increase of 11.4% on last year’s 26.40 pence.
Dividend cover is 3.1 times (2005: 3.7 times). The
increase in dividend for the year reflects the Beard's
confidence in the future prospects of the Group
and its strong financial position. The dividend
reinvestment plan will continue to be available to
eligible sharehclders.

Financial position

Shareholders’ funds increased by £291 millian from
£2,301 million to £2,592 million. The net increase
comprised the following elements:

2006 2005

£m £m

Retained profits 537 479
Dividends (1623 (145)
New share capital subscribed (exercise of share options) 3 33
Purchase of own shares by ESOP trusts 27 (19}
Exchange translation (ncluding related taxes) (131) 82
Share based payments (including related taxes) 34 27
Cther 9 (10)
Increase in sharehclders’ funds 291 447
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£346m

The capital expenditure
invested in the year

14times

The interest cover for the year

ended 31 July 2006

During the period
the DC and
branch network
in the USA was
expanded,
investment
continued in DCs
in the UK and
Italy and further
expenditure was
incurred on the
common IT
platform

During the year the Group entered into certain
foreign exchange transactions to hedge the Group’s
forelgn currency net assets. Gains and losses on
these transactions were taken to reserves. The gains
and losses are subject to taxation and accordingly
the taxation arising has been charged to reserves.

The Group’s employee benefit trusts purchased

2 million shares for £27 million, including dealing costs,
during the period in order to allow greater flexibility
in the settlement of long-term employee incentives.

Net debt, excluding construction loan borrowings, at
31 July 2006 amounted to £1,950 million compared
to £1,171 million at 31 July 2005, giving gearing

of 756.2% compared with 50.9% at the previous
year end and up from 88.1% at the half year. The
movement of sterling against overseas currencies,
particularly the US dollar, resulted in a translation
differance of £22 miiliion which decreased
borrowings on the balance sheet.

The Group seeks tc maintain a level of gearing,
generally in the range of 40% to 100%, to strike an
appropriate balance between maintaining an efficient
capital structure and having sufficient flexibility to
fund further acquisitions. Interest cover for the year
was 14 thmes (2005: 23 times), The Group is content
to see interest cover in the 7-10 times range over

a number of years but would allow the cover to
reduce to 5 times in appropriate circumstances.

In the USA, construction loan receivables, financed
by an equivalent amount of construction loan
borrowings, were £313 million {2005 £262 miiion).

The increase is due to an expanding loan book and
additional business generated from the opening of
five new construction (ending offices.

Return on gross capital emploved (“ROGCE”)
decreased slightly from 19.1% to 18.8% as a result
of acquisitions, partly offset by the significant organic
growth. The ROGGE remains well above the Group's
weighted average cost of capital, demonstrating
significant shareholder vaiue creation.

The unamortised balance of acquisition goodwill

in the balance sheet as at 31 July 2006 is

£1,173 million (2005: £815 miilion) with the increase
being due to the goodwill arising on acquisitions

in the year. As set out in note 12, the Group
recognised, in accordance with IAS 38, acquired
intangibles of £251 million. These represent
principally customer relationships and brand names.

Provisions in the balance shest (note 26) include
the estimated liability for asbestos claims on a
discounted basis. This liability has been determined
by independent professional actuarial advisers.
The asbestos related litigation is fully covered by
insurance and accordingly an equivalent insurance
receivable has been included in receivables. The
level of insurance cover available significantly
exceeds the expected level of future claims and
no profit or cash flow impact is therefore expected
tc arise in the foraseeable future, There were 246
claims outstanding at 31 July 2006 (2005: 235).

Details of the pension schemes operated by the
Group are set out in note 27 to the accounts.

Cash flow

The cash flow perfermance of the Group over the last five years is summarised below,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
£m £m £m £m £m
Cash flow from operating activities 850 765 325 608 584
Maintenance capex* (140) {117) (108) (83) {93)
Tax (208) {151) {128) (108) {120
Dividends {162) (145) {136) {113) {100}
{nterest (57} (31) (13) (25) 23)
Free cash flow 285 321 {60} 269 248
Acquisitions less disposals {520) {401} {123; (504) (182}
Expansion capex {208) (122) (28) (15) {7}
Other {38) 1 9B {31) 69
Movement in debt (779) {201) {115) (281) 148

Nate: 2006 and 2005 figures prapared under IFRS, 2004, 2003 and 2002 figures prepared under UK GAAP.

*Maintenance capex is considered as equivalent to depreciation
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£6,814m

The market capitalisation of
the Group at 31 July 2006

On 24 July 2006
Wolseley agreed,
conditional on
regulatory
approvdl, to
acquire DT Group,
the Nordic
region’s leading
distributor of
building materials

Net cash flow from operating activities increased from
£765 million to £850 million, despite the increase in
working capital required to suppart higher organic
growth in the USA. Free cash flow after dividends
was £285 million (2005: £321 million).

Capital expenditure increased from £233 mifon

10 £348 million reflecting continued investrment in
the business. During the period the DC and branch
network in the USA was expanded, investment
continued in DCs in UK and [taly ana further
expenditure was incurred on the commeon IT
platform. Capital expenditure is expected to remain
at a relatively high level over the next few years with
further investments in DCs, new branch openings
and IT as the Group continues to put in place the
infrastructure required to support substantial growth
and improved margins.,

Investments in acquisitions completed during the
year, including any deferred consideration and net
debt, amounted to £914 millfor (2005: £431 miliicr}.
These 53 acquisitions are expected to add around
£1,418 million per annum of incremental revenues
in a full year. Further details regarding acquisitions
are included in note 31,

Shareholder return

The Group monitors relative Total Sharenolder
Return (“TSR") for incentive purpeses {as set out
within the Remuneration report on pages 64 and 65)
and for assessing relative financial performance.

For the year ended 31 July 20086, Wolselsy achieved
an annualised TSR of 7.4% based on the average
closing price achieved during July 20086, which put it
in 54th pesition against the monitored peer group of
71 companies drawn from the FTSE 100 and the
building materials andg construction sectors utilised
for the latest award under the long-term incentive
plan. Details of TSR performance since 2002 and
the composition of the peer group are set out in

the Remuneration repcrt. We continue to monitor
return on capital including goodwill, throughout the
Group, as one of the key measures of business
performance. Return on gross capital employed

{as defined in the Five year summary cn pages 143
to 144} was 18.8% (2005: 19.1%), well ahead of the
Group’s welghted average cost of capital, thereby
generating shareholder value. At the close of
business on the date of the Report of the Directors,
the value of an otdinary share as quoted In the
Financial Times was 1084.0 pence per share (2005:
1156.0 pence} a decline of 5.4%. The decrease
primarily reflects adverse market sentiment relating
{0 the Group's exposure to the slowing US housing
market. The market capitalisation of the Group at
the date of this Report was £7,180 million (2005:
£8,845 million} reflecting the placing of 53.5 million
shares on 25 September 2006, The total dividend
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of 29.4 pence per share in respect of the financial
year givas a yield of 2.7%.

Post balance sheet events

Acquisition of DT Group

On 24 July 2006 Wolseley entered into an
agreement, conditicnal on regulatory approval,

to acquire DT Group, the Nordic region’s leading
distributer of building materials for cash consideration
of €1,498 million together with the assumption of
the indebtedness of DT Group. Regulatory approval
has now been received and it is anticipated that the
acquisition will complete on 25 September 2008.

Placing

On 25 Septerber 2006, a placing of approximately
10% of the issued ordinary share capitai was
undertaken to raise approximately £650 million. The
placing will reduce the debt which has built up as a
result of the £914 mitlion of acquisitions in 2006 and
the £1.35 billion acquisition of BT Group. The
placing will alsa restorg the Group's financial flexibility
to enable it to continue to pursue its strategy of
crganic and acquisitive growth.

Pro forma gearing, folfowing the acquisition of OT
Group and the expected net proceeds from the placing,
is 79.1% whilst pro forma interast cover is 14 times,

OCther post balance sheet events
There have been nc other significant post balance
sheet events.

Other financial matters

Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to market risks arising from
its international operations. The Group has well
defined and cansistently appiied poiicies for the
management of foreign exchange and interest rate
exposures. There has been no change since the
year end in the major financial risks faced by the
Group. The main risks arising from the Group's
financial instruments are interest rate risk, liquidity
rigk and foreign currency risk.

The treasury committee of the Board reviews

and agrees policies for managing each of these

risks and they are summarised beiow. These

policies are regularly reviewed. The Group’s financial
instruments, other than derivatives, comprise
barrowings, cash and liquid resources and various
items, such as trade receivables and trade payables
that arise directly from its operations. The Group also
enters into derivative transactions (principally interest
rate swaps and forward foreign currency contracts).
The purpose of such transactions is 10 hegge certain
interest rate and currency risks arising from the
Group’s operations and its sources of finance.




USS1,200m

The amount raised through
the Private Placement

In September
2005, the Group
diversified its core
funding by
launching a

US Private
Placement

Details of financial instruments are shown in
ncte 20 to the accounts.

Cerivatives are also used 1o a limited extent to
hedge movernents in the price paid for lumber.
These options and futures hedging contracts
mature within one year and all are with grganised
exchanges. The Group’s policy is to control credit
risk by only entering into financial instruments with
authorised counterparties after taking account of
their credit rating.

It is and has been throughout the period under
review, the Group's policy that no trading in
financial instruments or speculative transactions
be undertakan.

Interest rate risk

The Group finances its operaticns through a mixture
of retained profits and bank and other borrowings.
The Group borrows in the desired currencies
principaily at floating rates of interest and then uses
interest rate swaps to generate the desired interest
rate profile, so managing the Group's exposure to
interest rate fluctuations.

At the year end approximately £1,023 miltion of the
Group’s net debt were at fixed rates for one year or
more, after taking account of swaps.

The Group reviews deposits and borrowings by
currency at treasury commitiee and Board meetings.
The treasury committes gives prior approval to any
variations from floating rate arrangements.

Liquidity risk

The Group seeks a balance between certainty of
funding and a flexible, cost-effective borrowings
structure. The Group's policy is to ensure that,
as a minimum, all projected net borrowing needs
are covered by committed facilities arranged and
provided by the corporate office, supplemented
where appropriate by local facilities.

The Group's strong earnings and low gearing are
such that the ratio of net debt to EBITDA {earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation)
for the year was 1.91:1 (2005; 1.42:1), This increase
on the prior year is principally due to the high level of
acquisitions in the year. In the absence of significant
acquisiticns or exceptional organic growth, the
Group would anticipate having surplus funds within
the medium term. The Group doss, however, actively
seek oppertunities to secure long-term funding at
attractive rates.

In September 2005, the Group diversified its core
funding by launching a US Private Placement. The
issue was a great success raising US%$1,200 miliion
(£643 million) consisting of 8 tranches ranging in
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maturity from 3 to 15 years. This is the largest
Private Placement ever by a foreign issuer. The
Group tock advantage of favourable market
conditions to obtain long-term debt funding at rates
comparable to the 5 year bank syndicated debt
market. This diversification of funding marks another
step in the growth of the Group and reduces its
rellance solely on the bank market for debt funding.

In May 2008, the Group refinanced the great
majority of its bank debt with a highly successful
bank syndication, which raised €2,800 million with
a maturity of just over 5 years. The syndicate
reaffirmed the Group's core banks which provide
financial services to subsidiaries in ali the countries
in which the Group operates.

The year-end maturity profile of the Group's centrally
managed facilities was as follows:

2006 2005

Facility Facilty

Maturity £m £m
Less than one year 200 277
1-2 years 34 7
2-3 years 174 378
3-4 years 343 72
4-5 years 111 396
Greater than 5 years 2,282 -
Total 3,144 1,632

At 31 July 2008, the Group had committed undrawn
loan facilities of £780 million available to fund working
capital, investments and general corporate purposes,
as follows:

2006 2005

Facility Facility

£m £m

Less than one year 200 200
1-2 vears - 143
Over two years 580 48

Foreign currency risk

The Group has significant overseas businesses
whose revenues are mainly denominated in the
currencies of the countries in which the operations
are located. Approximately 59.1% of the Group’s
revenue is in US dollars. The Group does not have
significant transactional foreign currency cash flow
exposure. However, those that do arise are generally
hedged with either forward contracts or currency
options. The Group doss not normally hedge profit
translation exposure since such hedges have only
temporary effect. Most of the foreign currency
earnings generated by the Group's overseas
operations are reinvested in the business te fund
growth in those territories. The Group’s policy is

to maintain the majority of its debt in the currencies
of its operating companies as this hedges both the
net assets and cash flows of the Group.




Details of average exchange rates used in

the translation of overseas earnings and of

year-end exchange rates used in the translation

of overseas balance sheets, for the principal
currencies used by the Group are shown in the

Five year summary on page 144 to the accounts.
The net effect of currency transfation was to increase
revenue by £274 million (2.4%) and to increase
trading profit by £18 million (2.5%).

These currency effects reflect a movement of the
average sterling exchange rate against each of the
major currencies with which the Group is involved
as follows:

2006 2005

(Strengthening)/  (Strengthening)/

weakening weakening

of sterling of sterling

US dollar 3.5% (5.4)%

Europ 0.1% 0.3%
Commodity risk

The Group’s operating performance is affected

by price fluctuations in stainless steel, nickel alloy,
copper, aluminium, plastic, lumber and other
commaodities. The Group seeks to minimise the
effects of changing prices through economies of
purchasing and inventory management, resulting in
cost reductions and productivity Improvements as
well as price Increases to maintain reasonable profit
marging, With the exception of lumber futures held
to hedge future sales commitments, no trading

instruments are held in respect of these commodities.

At 31 July 2006, the Group held no lumber
futures contracts.

Market price risk

The Group regularly monitors its interest rate and
currency risk by reviewing the effect on profit before
tex over various periods of a range of possible
changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Cn the basis of the Group’s analysis it is estimated
that the maximum effect of a rise of one percentage
point in the principal interest rates on the Group's
continuing businesses would resuit In an increase.
in the interest charge of approximately £9 mitlion.
Similarly, it is estimated that a strengthening of
sterling by 10% against all the currencies in which
the Group does business would reduce operating
profit before amortisation of acquired intangibles

by approximately £75 million {8.5%) due to
currency translation.

Financial reporting

These financlal statements are the Group's first
prepared under IFRS. Note 45 to the accounts sets
out the restatement of the results for the year ended
31 July 2005 from UK GAAP to IFRS.

The Group's accounting poficies set out on pages
75 to 79 of the accounts have been updated to
reflect the requirements of IFRS. There have been
no other amendments or changes to the Group’s
selected accounting policies.

Insurance

The Insurance arrangements of the Group are
raviewed annually. The Group has a captive
insurance company which is registered and
operational in the Isle of Man. No policies are
written for third parties. The administration is
undertaken by a specialist management company.

Going concern

The Directors are confident, on the basis of current
financial projections and facilities available, that the
Company and the Group have adeguate resources
{0 continue in operation for the foreseeable future.
Accordingly the Directors continue 1o adopt

the gaing concern basis in preparing the

financial statements.
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Our Board

a) Member of the Audit Committee

b} Member of the Executive Committee

©) Member of the Nominations
Commitiee

d) Member of the Remuneration
Committee

e] Member of the Treasury Committee

) Trustee of the UK and Irish Defined
Benefit Pension Schemes

1 John W Whybrow €

Chairman

First appointed to the Board on 1 August 1897,

Mr Whybrow becama Chairman on 13 December 2002.
He is Chairman of the Nominaticns Committee,

Mr Whybrow is a Non Executive Director of DEG
international pic and Chairman of CSR pic. He was
President and Chief Executive Officer of Philips Lighting
Holding 8.V., based in the Netherlands, until 2001

and Executive Vice President, Philips Electronics from
1998 untit March 2002, when he returned to the UK.
Mr Whybrow is Chairman of Petworth Coltage Nursing
Home. Age 59.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

2 Claude ‘Chip’ A S Hornsbiy b ¢, @

Group Chief Executive

First appointed to the Board on 3 May 2001, Mr Hornsby
was appointed Group Chief Executive on 1 August 2006,
following Mr Banks' retirement. He was previcusly the
Chief Executive North America, having bean President
and Chief Executive Officer of Ferguson Enterprises inc,
the LS Piumbing and Heating Division since 2001. He has
spent 28 years with Ferguson. Mr Hornsby is a Non
Executive Director of Virginia Company Bank, Age 50,

3 Fenton N Hord P

Chief Executive, US Building Materials Distribution
First appointed to the Board on 2 October 2000, He
joined the Group as Chief Executive of Stock Building
Supply Inc. in 1987. Prior to then, Mr Hord was President
of Eskimo Pie Corporation, a subsidiary of Reynclds
Metals Co. He is a Non Executive Director of Investors
Management Corporation. Age 59.

4 Robert H Marchbank P

Chief Executive, Europe

First appointed to the Board on 24 January 2005,

Mr Marchbank is responsible for all the European
businesses. He first joined Ferguscn Enterprises inc.

in 1982 and in 2001 he moved to the UK to join the
newly created Woiseley Group headguarters as Director
of Strategic Planning and was then appointed as the
Director of Information and Processes, Age 46.

5 Frank W Roach b

Chief Executive, North America

First appointed to the Board on 18 December 2005.

Mr Roach is responsible for the North American
businesses. He first joined Ferguscn Enterprises Inc.

in 1976 and held a number of business roles. In 2005,
Mr Reach was appointed as Senior Vice President of the
Wolseley North America management teamn, playing a
key part in further developing and expanding the Group's
North American businesses. Age 55.

6 Stephen P Webster b

Group Finance Director

Chartered Accountant. First appointed to the Board on

1 August 1994 as Group Finance Director designate.
Appointed as Group Finance Director on 9 December
1994, Formerly 4 partner in Price Waterhouse, He is a
Non Executive Director of Bradford & Bingley plc. Age 53.
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NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

7 Gareth Davis & ¢ d

First appointed to the Board on 1 July 2003. He is a
member of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominations
Committees and is the Senior Independent Non Executive
Director. Mr Davis has besen Chief Executive of Imperial
Tobacco Group ple since its incorporation in 1996, having
spent the last 34 years in the tobacce industry. Age 56.

8 Andrew J Duff © d

First appointed to the Board on 1 July 2004. He is
Chairman of the Remuneration Committes and a member
of the Nominaticns Committes. Mr Duff is Chief Executive
of RWE npower plc. He spent 14 years at BP plc where
he held leading posttions in marketing and cil trading and
was latterly the Direcior of Strategic Planning for BP Qil,
USA. Mr Duff is a member of CBI President’s committee.
Age 47.

9 James | K Murray @

A Chartered Accountant. First appointed to the Board on
12 April 2002, He is Chairman of the Audit Commiittee.
Mr Murray was Finance Cirector of Land Securities PLC
from 1991 until his retirement in 2001. Mr Munay is the
Chairman of Trustees of the Land Securities Pensicn
Fund. Age 60.

10 Nigel M Stein 2

First appointed to the Board on 1 December 2003,

He is a member of the Audit Committee. A Chartered
Accountant, Mr Stein has been Finance Director of

GKN plc since August 2001 and has also worked in a
number of other senior financial roles in his 11 years with
the GKN Group. Prior to GKN, he held senior financial
positions with Laird Security Systems and Hestair Duple
Limited. Age 50.

11 Robert M Walker ©

First appointed to the Board on 1 July 1999. He is a
member of the Remuneration and the Nominations
Committees. Mr Walker is Non Executive Chairman of
WH Smith PLC and a Non Executive Director of Tate &
Lyle plc, Williams Lea Group Limited and Signet Group
plc. Mr Walker was, untll February 2005, Group Chief
Executive of Severn Trent Plc and a Non Executive
Director of BAA ple. He also previously worked for
Procter & Gamble, McKinsey and Company and for
over 20 years with PepsiCo Inc., where he was a Division
President. Mr Walker is an advisor to Cinven. Age 61.

12 Mark J White o

Group Company Secretary and Counsel

A solicitor who joined Wolseley on 1 July 2002. Mr White
is secretary to the Audit, Nominations, Treasury and ‘
Remuneration Committees. He is a mamber of the
Executive Committee and a Trustee of the UK and

Irish Defined Benefit Pension Schemes. Mr White was
previously Company Secretary of Enterprise Oil pic

and Rotork plc. Age 46.




Corporate social
responsibility report

in March
2006 we
became

a member
of the
FTSE4Good
Index

Although the Board believes that the environmental
impact of our distribution activities is comparatively
low, we are committed to sound Corporate Social
Responsibitity (“CSR”) policies and practices for good
business reasons. Our cormmitment to CSR is not
simply a response to increased market attention in
this area, but such issues reinforce the way that our
various businesses operate.

We regard CSR as a sustainable approach to
business that seeks benefits for all of our stakeholders,
be they customers, employees, communities, the
environment or the Company and its shareholders.
During the year we have maintained our dialogue
with stakeholders in this important area. We are
commitied to the highest standards of corporate
governance and environmental as well as other

CSR issues form part of the overall internal control
process. The Board believes that the businesses are
best served by creating a safe working environment
that encourages and supports high levels of
business performance.

We focus on issues such as safety, training,
behaviour-hased performance and the provision

of opportunities for our employees’ career growth
and development. Local community initiatives are
considered to be investments providing support
that will assist those communities, complement the
aspirations of our customers, give our employees
opportunities for professional development and help
us to achieve our business objectives. The Board
believes that the progressive integration of CSR
throughout the business and the incorporation

of broader sccial and environmental issues into
day-to-day decision making will better enable us

to achigve our goals.

In March 2006, we became a member of the

UK’s FTSE4Good Index Series following its Policy
Committee's decision that we had met its inclusion
criteria. The FTSE4Goed Index is designed to
measure the performance of companies that

meet globally recognised corporate responsibility
standards and to facilitate investment in those
companies where C8R issues are an influsncing
factor in the investor's decision making process.

Health, sofety and environment

A ey driver of the Group's success has been the
high degree of autonormy which has been afforded
to local managements, allowing them to serve local
markets in the most appropriate manner. Within this
decentralised structure, the Board has set down a
number of health, safety and ervironment principles
with which all the Group’s businesses are required 1o
comply. The principles relating to environment cover:
the integration of environmental management into
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business operations; & commitment to the adoption
and achievement of best practice wherever this

is practicable; a commitment te prevent pollution;
compliance with local environmental legisiation;

the adoption where practicable of local formal
environmental management systems; a commitment
to strive for continual improvement; and a
commitment to ensure proper communication

with employees on envircnmental matters.

Timber

PB & M ("PBM"}, the French heavyside business,
purchased 940,000m3 of timber in the financial year
ended 31 July 2005 and 957,971m2 in ths financial
year ended 31 July 2006. More than 91% in the
financial year ended 31 July 2006 (2005: 88%) of
such timber was softwood, mainly sourced from
countries such as Russia, Finland, France and
Sweden. A little over 3% of the timber purchased in
the year to 31 July 2006 was hardwood (2005: 5%),
sourced from suppliers who have not been censured
by the United Nations as part of resolution number
2001/1343, PBM works with its suppliers to ensure
that timber is sourced from forests which have been
certified by recognised forestry associations which
promote sustainable forestry management. During
the year further investrent has been made in PBM's
IT systems to enable more accurate tracking of

the sources of timber purchased. PBM saw a 4%
reciuction to 44% in the timber purchased in the
year from certified suppliers, although much of

the reduction is attributable to increased reporting
accuracy from the enhanced (T system. PBM,

like Build Center and Stock Building Supply, has
engaged with its suppliers of Indonesian plywood
with a view to ensuring that any illegal logging

is exciuded from the supply chain. Imports of
indonesian plywood accounted for a little over

1% of all timber purchased by PBM in the financial
year ended 31 July 20086 (2% in the year ended

31 December 2005). Stock Buiiding Supply’s
purchases of Lauan plywood remained under
0.05% of its timber purchases in the year ended

31 July 2008. None of Build Center, PBM or Stock
Building Supply purchase without appropriate
permits any species of timber included In any of the
Appendices to the Conventicn on International Trade
in Endangered Species of Wild Fauna and Flora,
which, inter alia, identify threatenad species of trees.
Le Commerce du Bois, the French timber trade
federation of which PBM is a member, submitted a
code of practice to the French environment ministry
in June 2005. The code, which is based on both
French domestic and internationally recognised
standards, has been developed by the federation
waorking with importers and distributors and is
intended to set the standards for timber sourcing,
purchasing and distribution in France. The code




Chain of
custody
volumesin
Build Center
exceeded
target by
28%

is expected to be agreed by all relevant parties in
September 2008. in the UK, Build Center purchased
350,000m2 of timber in the financial year endsd

31 July 2005 and 347,483m?3 in the financial year
ended 31 July 2008. More than 90% in 2005,

and 88% In 2006 of such timber was sourced

from Finland, Germany, Latvia, the UK and other
European countrigs. Less than 0.9% in 2005 and
0.5% in 2008 of such purchases were of hardwood.
Some 72% of Build Center's raw material purchases
made in the year ended 31 July 2008 (2005: 67 %}
were from certified sources. During the year Build
Center continued to engage with its suppliers with
regard to the responsible sourcing of timber and the
elimination of Mlegal timber from the supply chain.

In June 20086 the governing board of the UK Timber
Trade Federation {"YTF"), of which Build Center is a
merber, vated to make its Responsible Purchasing
Policy (“RPP”) which had been successfully triallec by
Build Center in 2004, a condition of its membership,
subject to the consent of its members. Formulated
by the TTF to mest the requirements of the UK
Government's own timber procurement policy, the
RPP was developed with the benefit of input from
principal suppliers, with a view to ensuring that
increasing voiumes of sustainable timber are
progressively being made available to businesses
especially where timber is sourced from forests
where certification schemes are not widely in place.
Wolseley UK continues to promete the use of its
web-based interface onto which its suppliers can
log thelr responses to specific questions and submit
documentary evidence in support of their provenance,
such as chain of custody certificates. Following a
successful round of supplier audits in 2005, 80%

of timber supplies to Wolseley UK are documentad
through the interface. 1t is intended that over the next
12 months the interface will be extended to collect
and store data related to timber supplies from Stock
Building Supply and PBM.

Stock Building Supply purchased some 4,580,000m3
of timber in the year ended 31 July 2005 and
5,308,000m? in the year ended 31 July 2008 of which
a little under 1,600,000m: were structural panels.
Over 95% of timber purchased by Stock Building
Supply in the financial years 2005 and 2006 were
sourced from the USA and Canada, with
approximately 3% being sourced from Europe. The
percentage of such purchases made from suppliers
who hold certifications from recognised forestry
sustainability agencies, such as the American Forest
Products Association and the Canadian Standards
Association remained at 90% for the third
consecutive year. The American Forest Products
Association’s Sustainable Forest Inttiative programme
requires participants to meet an exacting standard of
environmental principles, objectives and performance
measures. The standard integrates the perpetual
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growing and harvesting of trees with the protection of
wildlife, plants, soil and water quality, together with a
wide range of conservation goals. Stock Buiding
Supply maintains a constant dialogue with its suppliers,
reviewing their environmental practices and policies,
encouraging sustainable forestry management
practices and seeking opportunities to improve the
use of natural resources. Sales of engineered wood
products, which are substitutes for wide dimension
solid-sawn timber, increased by a further 10% in

the year ended 31 July 2008 (2005: 21.6%). Such
substitutes improve structural performance, thereby
reducing the need to harvest as many larger,

older trees.

Chain of custody

It is well recognised that whilst sustainable sourcing
is vital, it is also key that illegal timber is eliminated
from the supply chaln, from the forest of origin to
the end user. In the UK, Build Genter began work
in 2003 on a chain of custody project that initially
saw the implementation of new procedures in five
branches with 16 products within scope, all of which
hac been independently audited and approved by,
or on behalf of, both the Forest Stewardship Gouncil
{"FSC" and Programme for the Endorsement of
Forest Certification ("PEFC”). The project required
Build Center to identify certified sources for these
initial 16 products, adapt management systems to
identify and capture relevant data, undertake on-site
training, create a dialogue with suppliers and create
new documentation to ensure that despatch notes
and invoices contain chain of custody certification
numbers and references to the certified status of
the product. Internal and independent third party
audits have also been conducted. From the original
16 praducts, the number of products within the
chain of custody scheme now exceeds 3,000

and certification has been achieved at a further

41 branches during the year ended 31 July 2006
{2005: 15 branches), bringing the total to 81
branches by the end of the financial year. Work
continues to secure accreditation at all of its
remaining branches with the current target being

to achieve accreditation at a further 59 branches
by 31 July 2007. The volume of timber controlled
within the chain of custody scheme in the year
ended 31 July 2006 was 104,500m? (2005:
30,000m3), scme 30% of total timber purchased
{2005; 8.6%). This exceeded the target of 75,000m3
for the year ended 31 July 2006 by 28%. PBM's
hardwood business, as well as its garden products
business, Cerland, achieved certification for their
chain of custody procedures in 2003. Significant
progress has been made during the year 1o achieve
the same recognition in PBM's softwood import
business, with the reguisite pre-audit report having
been completed in March 2004 and PEFC
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certification awarded in November 2005. In line with
the target set last year, 100% of all PBM's imported
softwooed in the year ended 31 July 2006 had either
PEFC or FSC chain of custedy certification.

Stock Buiiding Supply does not have a formal chain
of custody procedure for its timber as it relies upon
the chain of custody procedures in place within

its suppliers. As noted above, the vast majority

of purchases made by Stock Building Supply are
from suppliers who hold recognised certifications
and whose harvests are strictly controlled by US
and Canadian Federal and State law. Stock Building
Supply maintains an extensive dialogue with its
suppliers regarding sustainability issues including
chain of custody.

Waste management

All of the Group's European companies comply with
£l and domestic waste management regulatlons.

In Ireland, Heatmerchants continues to reduce
compliance costs by back-loading secendary waste
paper, cardboard, wood pallets and plastic from
branches to the main distrioution centre for recycling.
In the year to 31 July 2006, over 900 tonnes of such
rmaterial was recycled (2005: 800} and thus saved
from tandfill resulting in cost savings of €144,000.
Brossette in France has installed containers at each
of its branches for the collection of plastic/paper,
wood and metal for recycling. OAG in Austria
continues 1o operate its waste management strategy
that has been in place since 1994 and which
streams waste for collection and reprocessing

by speciaiist contractors. Stock Building Supptly

has optimised the use of off-cuts in its truss
manufacturing facilities and, where possible, off-cuts
which cannot otherwise be used are recycled by
wood product manufacturers in order to minimise
waste, reduce the need to use landfill sites and
reduce costs. Stock Building Supply estimates

that more than 4,800 tonnes of landfill was avoided
in the year ended 31 July 2006 (2005: 4,800}

which has resulted in savings of more than $345,000
{2005: $290,000) in waste management costs.
Stock Building Supply intends to extend the
recycling of off-cuts to its new truss manufacturing
facilities which is expected to increase the number
of tonnes of landfill that will be avoided. In the UK,
equipment has been installed at our distribution
warehouses to bale and recycle cardboard and

hard plastic. Recycling programmes operate in all

of the businesses’ corporate offices.

Environment

Wolseley UK has formed an Environmental
Steering Group comprising senicr managers and
local board directors. The Group identifies ways in
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which environmental issues can be captured and
improvernents macie. Wolseley UK has agreed an
environmentat policy which sets cut the company’s
position to customers, suppliers and other
stakeholders in relation to environmental matters.
Commitment has been made to continuous
improvement in environmental performance, the
prevaention of pallution and to improving efficiency
in the use of resources including energy, water,
packaging and other raw materials. During the
year Wolseley UK continued to promote the use
of energy-efficient products in the boiler market,
working closely with power suppliers and major
boiler manufacturers to incentivise the installation
of high efficiency boilers. Carbon emissions saved
through this and other schemes since 2001

are in excess of 180,000 tonnes. Following the
establishment of its Environmental Management
Systemn in 2004, which structures its approach to
environmental matters, Woiseley UK attained 1SO
14001 accreditation in May 2005 for three of its
branches; this accreditation was maintained in the
year ended 31 July 2006 and work is underway
to complete the accreditation process at a further
three Wolseley UK branches by autumn 2006.

Construction will begin in October 2006 of Wolseley
UK's Sustainable Building Center (“SBC"), a 6,800
square feet living, interactive showcase for renewable
and sustainable building materials. The products
used in the construction of the building and those
displayed within it, will be commercially available
through Wolseley UK's existing branch network.
Wolseley UK intends that the SBC, planned for
completion in July 2007, will become the leading UK
industry resource for sustainable building products
and supporting information as well as the promotion
of sustainable building practices.

In common with other businesses within the Group,
transport is a key area of focus for Wolseley UK.
Tight controls are enforced to ensure that the
minimum number of vehicles operate out of each
Wolseley UK site and emphasis is placed upon route
planning to minimise delivery journeys and the
number of kitometres travelled. Progress continues
to be made across the whale UK transport fleet to
improve this utilisation. During the year, the Group
introduced a Groupwide standard for transport
management systems, with initial implementation

in Wolseley UK. The standard will enable transport
management to work in real time 10 improve route
planning and resource scheduling across different
business sectors and between multiple sites helping
1o ensure that while utilisation of commercial vehicles
increases, the kilometres covered are reduced.

The UK rollout of the transport management system
will take place over the next 12 months with the aim
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to deliver an 8% reduction in kilometres covered,
equivalent to 5 million kilometres and reducing
carbon emissions by arcund 2,000 tonnes per
annum. The transport management systerm is an
important tool in the Group's drive to support
environmentally friendly transport initiatives,
alongside a reduction in vehicle sizes and numbers
and backloading, which in the UK has saved
suppliers over 7,000 journeys each year.

In March 2006, Wolseley UK took part in a flest
efficiency survey of delivery vehicle activities, the
results of which will be used by the UK Department
for Transport sponsored Freight Best Practice
programme in its work towards encouraging flests
to improve their operational efficiency. The survey
covered a range of measures including fuel use,
number of deliveries and operating costs. A
benchmarking report is expected be published by
the Freight Best Practice programme in October 2006.
The use of high capacity trailers has continued to
reduce the number of vehicles operating between
each of the UK distribution centres and significant
investment continues to be made in distribution
warehousing. Multiple stock replenishment deliveries
to branches from suppliers have been reduced

as loads are consolidated in Wolseley UK's own
distribution warehouses for onward delivery.
Consolidating loads furtrer reduces the number of
supplier vehicles on the road while minimising the
local impact around branches. There is a continued
focus on pooling branch vehicles across each of the
Wolseley UK brands, which will ensure that the fleet
eliminates wasteful multiple deliveries and reduces
the number of kilometres travelled. During the year,
Wolseley UK has continued with its project to
improve fuel consumption across its primary
distribution fleet, switching its commercial vehicle
fuel use to bio-diesel at its three regional distribution
centres which now use around two million litres

of blo-diesel annually; this is et to increase as the
fuel becomes more available within the UK. Further
initiatives include individual vehicle monitoring,
combined with driver training programmes and

the replacement of older, less fuel-efficient vehicles.
Some 265 {2005: 216) vehicles were replaced during
the year with vehicles that are more than 3% more
fuel-efficlent. Wolseley UK's transport group also
pays continuous attention 1o servicing programmes
which inciude regular emissions chacks to ensure
vehicle efficiency and has adopted a reduced
emissions and tyre pressure management system
for optimal fleet use.

Fergusen in the USA has been using a transportation
management system for its fleet of more than

2,000 diesel powered delivery vehicles. The system
optimises the delivery of goods from distribution
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centres to branches as well as directly to customers,
thereby reducing handiing and transport costs
together with vehicle emissions. Ferguson has a
policy of sourcing vehicles from a supplier with a
feading reputation in environmentally friendly diessl
technology. The engines for all replacement vehicles
are certified to meet the US Government's standards
for particulate emissions. Approximately 508 vehicles
or 25% of the fleet replaced during the year were
aguipped with emissions technology that mests
such standards. Ferguson is also seeking to take

full advantage of new digital valve technology

to improve air quality and fuet economy throughout
its entire distribution network. In the previous financial
year Ferguson purchased a hybrid electric/petrol
vehicle to assess the benefits of improved fuel
economy and reduced emissions which such vehicles
may be able to offer compared to conventional
vehicles. The assessment revealed that the reduction
in fuel consumption is minimal and concluded that
the particular vehicle is commercially unviable.
However, further work continues both within
Ferguson and Stock Building Supply to identify
suitable alternatives,

As part of Stock Building Supply’s transport
management programme, many suppliers hack-locad
their defivery vehicles to avoid wasteful return journeys.
This initiative 1s part of a modernisation programme
that also includes investment in a national fleet
management, fue! and servicing system aimed

at achieving optimal fleet efficiency and curbing
excessive emissions and which has also ensured
that an apprapriate level of capital expenditure is
Invested in new envircnmentally friendly vehicles.
These vehicles incorporate emission and fuel
aconomy technologies which already comply with,
or exceed, forthcoming US Government standards.
During the year ended 31 July 2006, over 420 such
vehicles were replaced {a littie under 11%) {2005:
300 or a little over 8% of such vehicles). These new
venicles are approximately 70% more fuel-efficient
than the ones they replaced. In common with other
Wolseley companies, Stock Building Supply's
maintenance programme seeks to improve both
safety and fuel-efficiency by increasing reliability
through the direct purchase of spare parts and also
by rigorous tyre management. In 2004 Stock
Bullding Supply successfully tested a GPS (Global
Positicning System) pilot programme, which
indicated that further efficiencies could be achieved
and wouid allow the company to plan more efficient
delivery routes to enhance customer service and
further reduce the number of kilometres driven.

The pilot also demonstrated that safety could be
improved as drivers’ speed can be monitored. Stock
Building Supply has now rolled out the initiative such
that in the year ended 31 July 2008, 371 vehicles




2006 UK
Fleet Safety
Awards:
Road Risk
Manager of
the Year
awarded to
Wolseley UK

benefited from the GPS programme (2005 225).
The initiative, having estimated the avoidance of
over 350,000 additional kilometres being driven

in the last year, is expected to be rolled out to &
further 150 vehicles in the next year. Stock Building
Supply’s regional distripution centres were designed
to faciitate product deiivery by rail. More than 70%
{2005: 55%) of deliveries to the distribution centres
are made in this way, with over 17,000 wagon loads
(equivalent to scme 68,800 (2005: 60,000) lorry
loads} received during the last year alone. Delivery by
rail continues to be encouraged and is expected to
continue to grow with our investment in distribution
centres designed 1o receive more product in this way.

Brossefte's new organisational structure has
reduced the number of warehouses and has
regrouped branches to improve productivity and
custormer service while at the same time reducing
the number of delivery journeys and transport

costs. Brossette has a national flest maintenance
programme in place, which seeks to secure optimal
use of its delivery vehicles while minimising the
impact on the environment. Brossette seeks to

take advantage of technological improvements
when renewing its fleet to both reduce emissions
and to optimise fuel consumption. All new vehicles
are fitted with the latest software technology to
improve efficiency and to reduce the number of
kilometres driven, Some 170 vehicles {around 13%
of such vehicles} (2005: 102, around 10%) were
replaced during the year. PBM has continued with
its fleet renewal programme to increase fuel efficiency,
improve safety and reduce bath emissions and
transport costs. In the year to 31 July 2006,

872 vehicles were replaced (2005: 486) reprasenting
a lithe over 22% of PBM's fleet (2005: 13%;.

Fleet efficiency is underpinned by a national fleet
management programme, which ensures uniform
operating standards. PBM ensures that its drivers’
training is maintained and seeks ways of encouraging
responsible driving.

Hedalth and safety

The Company has developed a health and safety
framework which requires local management to have
suitable procedures in place to ensure compliance
with applicable laws and regulations and, wherever
possible, to employ best practices. One of the key
issues for the Group is the creation of & work
environment free from injury and illness and how

to achieve improvements in our health and safety
performance. This is driven not only by legal
responsibility, but also by the ethicai desire to protect
our employess. Wolssley UK has an Executive
Safety Steering Group, supported by its health and
safety department. This comprises senior managers
and local board directors. The Steering Group
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reviews the UK businesses’ performance in health
and safety matters, promotes good practice and
ensures appropriate consultation on any intended
changes to its health and safety management
systemns. All branch and area managers are

trained in this area and all employees are trained

to complete their daily tasks in a safe manner.

In July 2008, Wolseley UK received recognition for
its health and safety initiatives by winning two awards
at the UK Fleet Safety Awards. The awards are a
national event organised by Brake, the UK road
safety charity, and are designed to promote risk
management best practice among businesses

by recognising crganisations and professionals
who have worked significantly to improve the safety
of vehicle operations. The awards for “Road Risk
Manager of the Year” and “Best Crash Analysis
Procedures” recognise the work undertaken by

the company’s Flest Safety Steering Group which
introduced a fleet safety handbook, newsletters,

an occupational road risk policy, regular management
review meetings with industry experts and insurers
as well as benchmarking against best in class.
Online driving assessments and a “Commercial
Vehicle Driver of the Year” award to promote safety
amongst employees have aiso contributed towards
increased awareness of safety issues and an overall
reciuction in commercial vehicle and company

car accidents.

Brossette has a central health and safety committee
which oversees the work carried out by the health
and safsty committees in individual branches.
Representatives of Brossette and its employees

sit on each local committee, together with an
occupational health doctor. All new employees and
managers receive appropriate induction and training
which includes matters related to health and safety.
PBM seeks to increass awareness of the importance
of health and safety matters throughout its business
using a programme which reinforces the fact that
each of its employees has both & responsibility and
a part to play in maintaining and improving health
and safety standards. Stock Building Supply has a
safety committee with responsibility for developing,
introducing and monitoring the effectiveness of its
overall safety programme and objectives. Stock
Building Supply recognises that it must work
together with its employees towards the common
goal of eliminating hezards and accidents and
employees are expected to participats in actively
promoting a positive safety culture. The safety
committee comprises employees with different
perspectives and from varied disciplines. Each
branch manager is responsible and accountable

for nealth and safety at his or her branch, including
complance with regulations, safety awareness and
accident prevention. All new employees are given
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induction training relating to safe working practices
and hazards present in the workplace. Training is
also provided when an employee is requested to
manage new processes, procedures or eguipment.
Monthly mandatory safety meetings are held at
each branch during which, as a minimum, topics
designated by the safety committee must be
discussed. Safety issues within each branch are
dealt with by a safety coordinator or local safety
commiftee consisting of a cross-section of employees.

Stock Bullding Supply and Ferguson have been
working together over the last three years t0 improve
their parformance in the areas of both health and
safety and traffic accidents. The joint initiative has
been driven not only by the costs to the business of
increasing medical and other expenses associated
with claims for workers’ compensation but also the
desire to reduce the incidence of injury and to reduce
the conseguential effect that such incidences have

on other employees and the business. Each of

the businesses set targets during the year to reduce
the frequency and cost of both workers’ cormpensation
and traffic incidents, enhance their programmes to
help employees to return to work even if this is on
modified duty, improve the reporting of claims to
ensure that prompt action is taken and ingrease
measures to ensure that employees are able to seek
any required medical attention. This joint initiative has
rasutted in a significant improvement to the longer term
{rends in both companies’ health and safety records.
Ferguson, having seen a 14% reduction in the
number of work-related injuries in the six months

to 31 March 2005, saw an increase of 24% in the
number of such injuries in the vear to 31 July 2006
against a background of a 19% increase in its
workforce. Whilst Stock Building Supply achieved

a 21% reduction in work-related injuries in the six
months to 31 March 2005 it experienced an increase
of 22% in the number of such injuries In the year

to 31 July 2006 during which pericd its workforce
increased by 23%. Measures have been taken 1o
increase focus to return to the results achieved in
2005. These include the appointment of a director of
health and safsty for the North American businesses
andg, with effect from 1 August 2008, the creation of
a North American safsty committee which wil oversee
such matters across both the US and Canada.
Ferguson achieved a 100% rate of returning injured
employees to work either on modified duty or to their
original jobs, with Stock Building Supply achieving
80% in the year ended 31 July 2008. Both companies
have continued to make progress in reducing vehicle
accidents and the impact of such accidents over the
last year, Ferguson saw an Increase of 6.5% in vehicle
accidents in the year ended 31 July 2006 in a pericd
when its vehicle fleet expanded by 23% and Stock
Building Supply held its accident frequency rate at
prior year levels. In May 2005, Stock Building Supply
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introdiuced its “Driven to Safety” programme, 2
proactive safe driver training programme. Since then,
every delivery driver has been trained in a variety of
ways to recognise hazardous conditions, plan the
appropriate response and take decisive action. Every
new driver joining Stock Bulding Supply receives such
bespoke training and each driver's knowledge and
ability to practice safe driving techniques will be
assessed. Ferguson intends to roll out & Driven to
Safety initiative within its own business during the
year encing 31 July 2007. Ferguson has continued
to promote its Gustomer “CARE” (Customers and
Associates Require Excellence) programme which

i intended to symbolise Ferguson's determination

to achieve & culture of excelience throughout the
organisation. The programme includes two goals
aimed at communicating the importance of safety
and quality and to promote a safe working
environment for all of its employees. In common

with Mart in Hungary which obteined its accreditation
in 1997, Cesaro in the Czech Republic has alsc
continued to demcnstrate its commitment {0
customer care during the year following its achieverment
of IS0 9001 accreditation in June 2005 for its guality
management processes. The continued accreditations
acknowledge the companies’ ability to fulfi their
customers’ quality requirements and applicable
reguiatory requirements while aiming to enhance
customer satisfaction and achieve continual
improvement of perfermance in pursuit of

these chjectives.

Acquisitions

A great deal of importance is placed on
environmental matters during the due diligence
process for acquisitions. External environmental
consuitants review and assess environmental

risks to which the Group could potentially become
exposed. Depending upon the type of propcsed
acquisition, this assessment could include reviews
of environmental management systems, compliance
with laws and regulations and the respect and care
shown for the environment, Health and safety
compliance and processes are also considered as
part of the process. Appropriate dialogus with, and
indemnities from, the proposed vendors are sought
where appropriate.

Code of Ethics

A Groupwide Code of Ethics has been in place
since 2003. This sets out a number of fundamental
principles which all companies and employees are
required to follow. In keeping with our decentralised
approach, businesses are required to adopt their
own codes which respect local cultures and
businesses but which aiso set standards that are
still no less exacting than those detailed in the
Groupwide Code. To a large extent, these Individual
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codes simply underpin and endorse existing
practices. New companies joining the Group are
required to adopt codes of ethics on the same
basis as existing businesses. The Groupwide

Code covers many areas including fair competition,
compliance with laws, including anti-trust laws,
maintenance of the Group’s reputation for integrity
{including a prohibition on bribery and general
principles for deafing with suppliers and authorities)
and can be viewed on the Company’s website at
www.wolseley.com or a printed copy is available
from the Group Company Secretary. Wolseley UK,
for example, has incorporated the Code of Ethics
into a wider document which sets out the principles
on which business is transacted. This includes
principles related to diversity, safety, inducements,
communication, the environmient and human rights.
The human rights policies and procedures are based
on the principles set out in the United Nations
Universal Daclaration on Human Rights.

The workplace

One of the Board's objectives is to ensure that we
provide a workplace environment that encourages
and supports our employees in achieving their best
perscnal performance. Further work was undertaken
during the year in this area coordinated by the
Groupwide human resource function that resides

in Theale. The development of leadership skills of
senior managers is alsc a key objective and further
progress has been made to enable more participants
than ever before to attend programmes at Darden
and IMD. Training and development programmes for
all employess are crucial to the ability of the
business to achieve its goals. Significant attention
and resouregs cotitinue to be devoted to this issue.
Just under £21 million {2005: £12 million} was spent
on training of employees during the year, with over
142,000 (2005: 75,250) days of training provided.
Whilst Wolseley is committed to promoting equal
opportunities for all, it is believed that, overall,
women and minorities continue to be under-
represented. We believe that we have the right
policies in place to meet or exceed legal reguirements
in this area although we continue to axplore the
factors that are critical to achleving greater diversity.

Further work continues to be undertaken in this area.

Wolseley UK and Stock Building Supply beth
undertock company-wide employes surveys during
the year allowing employees to suggest areas for
improvement and voice concerns. Wolseley UK's
2005 survey highlighted the need for better internal
communications; in response, the company
Introduced a menthly online chat session which
generated over 700 questions in the first two
sessions. Each session is hosted by a senior
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manager from Wolseley UK and the level of interest
to date has proved very encouraging. Themes and
topics that do not receive sufficient coverage during
the onfine sessions gain a response in the weeks
followlng the live event and all questions and
answers are posted on the company's intranet to
allow employees who were not able fo join the live
avent an opportunity to participate. Stock Building
Supply’s survey compared results 1o its previous
survey in 2002 and to the US national norm; the
results showed that of the 13 areas covered by

the survey, incluging such matters as working
conditions, supervisor's skills, communication and
benefits, nine were statistically above the US nationai
norm and four were at that level. Qverall, Stock
Building Supply’s employees expressed far greater
satisfaction with their jobs compared with the

US naticnal norm and demonstrated a significant
amount of goodwilt towards the company.

Community relations

Notwithstanding the international nature of the
husiness, the Group continues to cperate with a
high degree of autenomy, working in and with cur
lecal communities. We recognise our respensibility
to invest in the communities in which our businesses
operate and to act as a goed corporate citizen.
We are members of Business in the Community in
the UK and continue to work with that organisation
to help develop our approach and practice. The
Group's businesses are involved in a wide range

of initiatives for the benefit of local communities,

of which the following are representative:

The Group’s businesses, customers, suppliers and
employees ware directly affected by the devastation
in the southern states of the US caused by Hurricane
Katrina in August 2005. Just a few weeks before

the hurricane began the Group had anncunced

the creation of Wolseley North America to leverage
the combined resources of all of its North American
businesses. The groundwork was thus in place

o enable Ferguson and Stock to make a strong

joint response o those affected in the Gulf Coast
region by formutating plans to develop pre-existing
relationships with local businesses and customers in
order to offer joint premises staffed by local people to
assist some of the hardest hit areas in re-establishing
water and sewer systems and supplying pipe used
to pump flood waters out of the area. Assistance
was also given to the US Federal Emergency
Management Agency to provide emergency housing.
Among the numerous local efforts to help the victims
of the hurricane and in addition to the Groupwide
and local company cash donaticns noted on page 51
of this Report. Ferguson delivered emergency response
products, including generators, batteries, torches
and pumping equipment to the affected area. Stock
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Building Supply worked in partnership with a school
in Raleigh, North Carolina to defiver donations of
school supplies and books to a school in Gulfport,
Misslssippi where several of the classrooms and
more than 10,000 library books had been destroyed.
Teams of Stock Building Supply management
trainees also travelled to areas where the families

of colleagues had been affected by the hurricane to
help with the relief effort. As well as school supplies
donated by employees, supplies of tools were
donated by many Stock Building Supply branches.

A Relay for Life team from Ferguson's corporate
offices in Newport News, Virginia, participated in this
year's event for the ninth consecutive year, raising
$18,500 for cancer charities. In May 2008, Ferguson
employees participated in a food drive in aid of

the Virginia Peninsula Food Bank. The goal was

to collect 4,000ibs of non-perishable foods ranging
from individual meals and soups to baby food and
rice. Within just 12 days, 10,350ibs of food had
been coliectad, surpassing the goal by over ten
times. Employees from Ferguson's Waterworks
division in San Marco raised over $3,000 for the
city's Rescue Mission, taking part in a fancy dress
bed race around the city's Fletcher Park. In
November 2005, employees from Ferguson's Fort
Myers branch raised nearly $4,000 in a Turkey Drive
allowing the Salvation Army to purchase over 400
Christmas turkeys for families in the local area.

In April 2008, numerous initiatives by employees

at Stock Building Supply's corporate headguarters
in Raleigh, North Carolina, raised over $5,000 for
the US National Multiple Sclerosis Society. Stock
Building Supply supported a project with the US
television show Extreme Makeover: Home Edition

to build a new home for the members of a family

in Cincinnati who had experienced severe personal
difficulties. Stock Building Supply, together with local
contractors, donated time and materials to build a
new home for the family in just five days. An initiative
in Fort Worth, Texas, saw Stock Building Supply and
Ferguson join forces to help a local contractor
rebuild the home of a local family who were
struggling to cope with the ongeing medical
problems of their seven-ysar-oid son and whose
nome had falien into a state of disrepair. Between
them, Stock Building Supply and Ferguson donatad
timber, windows, doors, piumbing fixtures, fittings
and appliances for the project.

Wolseley UK supported the renovation of an old
jetty at a speciai needs centre near Birmingham by
donating materials from a local branch. The new
jetty has been designed for children who are blind,
partially sighted or wheslchair users sc that they
can get closer to the local wildlife. Many of Wolseley
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UK's employaes took part in the 2008 Race for Life
including three employees from the company’s Ripon
office who raised over £3,000 for Cancer Research
UK. Wolseley UK and the Variety Club Golf Society
raised £15,000 towards the 15th Variety Club coach
which has been sponsored by the company. The

16 seat coach will be used to take pupils from

a local school, 60% of whom are involved in the
Special Olympics, to sporting events around the

UK and overseas.

Habitat for Humanity

All three of the Group’s North American businesses
once again supported the efforts of Habitat for
Humanity, the non-profit organisation that seeks to
eliminate substandard housing and homelessness
from the world. Ferguson and Stock Building Supply
participated in the organisation's Home Builders Blitz
with donations of materials and over 100 employees
in 32 states working to help build 700 Habitat homes
in a week. Wolseley Canada, through its membership
of the Canadian Institute of Plumbing and Heating
(“CIPH?), has helped to raise over C$1,000,000

for Habitat for Humanity Canada (*HFHC”) in 2008.
CIPH has raised over C$3,500,000 for HFHC since
1994, helping over 500 Canadian families across the
country move into their own homes.

Donations

In response to the devastation of Hurricane Katrina,
Wolseley plc togetner with its three operating
companies in North America (Ferguson, Stock
Building Supply and Wolseley Canada), committed
$200,000 to the relief effort. In many cases, the
Group's companies also match dollar-for-doltar
employee donations to charitable causes, such as
the $68,000 in hurricane relief conations made by
its employees which were matched by Stock Building
Supply. Ferguson made a $10,000 donation to
Cancer Services of Greater Baton Rouge to help
improve the quality of life for cancer sufferers in
the hurricane affected region. In addition to these
initiatives, the Group supports charities relevant

to the countries and to the locations in which its
businesses operate. These are wide-ranging and
cover health, welfare, education, civic and
community projects as well as culture and the arts.
Each year, several hundred donations are made.

In the USA, many of our employees make regular
contributions to the United Way, an organisation
which distributes funds to charities. In the UK,

a Give As You Earn Scheme operates with the
assistance of the Charities Aid Foundation which
distributes funds to UK charities. Further details of
the donations made during the year are set out on
page 59.




Report of the Directors

Including the statement of remuneration policy for the year ended 31 July 2006

The Directors submit their annual report and the audited consolidated
accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries for the vear ended
31 July 2006,

Principal activities and business review

Wolseley plc is a holding company; its subsidiaries are organised
into two gecgraphical divisions which are set out on pages 25 to 32.
The principal activities of the Group are the distribution of plumbing
and bathroom materials, central heating and air conditioning
egquipment and pipes, valves and fittings within Europe and North
America. Additionally in the UK, ireland and France, it distributes
heavyside building materials, whilst in the USA, the Group distributes
timber and other building materials, as well as supplying other
construction services, In the UK, France and Austria, it operates
tool hire cantres and, in the UK, France and USA, it also distributes
electrical components and supplies.

Details of the development of the Group's businesses during the year
and information which fulfils the requirements of the Business Review
(as required by the Companies Act 1885 (Operating and Financial
Review and Directors’ Report Regulations 2005)), are given in the
Performance review on pages 20 to 41 and in the Group Chief
Executive’s review on pages 8 to 13, which are incorporated in

this report by reference.

Results and dividends

The Group’s consalidated income statement, set out on page

72, shows an increase of 18.8% in Group operating profit from

£702 million {restated under IFRS) in 2005 to £834 million. An analysis
of revenue and operating profit is given on page 82 in note 2 to

the accounts. Shareholders were paid the 2006 interim dividend of
9.85 pence per share (2005: 8.8 pence) on 31 May 2006. The
Directors recommend a final dividend of 18.55 pence per share
(2005: 17.6 pence) making a total dividend for the year of 29.4 pence
per ordinary share, an increase of 11.4% on the 26.4 pence paid

in respect of last year. Payment of the recommended final dividend,

if approved at the Annual General Meeting, will be made on

30 November 2006 to shareholders registered at the close of
business on 6 Cctober 2006.

On 24 July 2006 the Group enterad into an agreement, conditional on
regulatory approval, to acquire DT Group, the Nordic region’s leading
distributor of building materials for cash consideration of €1,498 million
together with the assumption of the indebtedness of DT Group.
Regulatory approval has now been received and it is anticipated

that the acquisition will complete on 25 September 2008,

On 25 September 2006, a placing of approximately 10% of the
Campany's issued ordinary share capital was undertaken to raise
approximately £650 milion. The placing will reduce the debt which
has built up as a result of the £914 miillion of acauisitions in 2006 and
the £1.35 billion acquisition of DT Group. The placing will also restore
the Group’s financial fliexibility to enable it to continue to pursue its
strategy of organic and acquisitive growih.

There have been no other significant post balance shest events.
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The Wolseley plc 2004 Overseas Employee Benefit Trust, the
Wolseley plc 2004 Employee Benefit Trust and the Wolseley plc

2004 Directors Benefit Trust were established on 5 October 2004

in connection with the Woiseley Share Option Plan 2003 and the
Wolseley pic 2002 Long Term Incentive Scheme, details of which

are set out in the remuneration report on pages 64 to 67. The trustees
of each of the trusts have waived their rights to receive dividends on
any shares held by them. Following purchases of shares in the capital
of the Company made between November 2004 and April 2008,

the trustees of the Wolseley plc 2004 Employee Benefit Trust hold
4,011,478 ordinary shares in the capital of the Company. The average
purchase price was 1247.36 pence per share excluding dealing
costs. The amount of dividends waived in respect of the year ended
31 duly 2006 was £300,425 (2005: £176,000). The Oireciors of
Wolseley QUEST Limited have also waived their right to receive
dividends on any sharas hela by that company under the Wolseley
Employees Savings Related Share Option Scheme 1981, For the year
ended 31 July 2008, Wolseley QUEST Limited held no shares and

no such dividend waiver was required (2005: £0)

The Company's dividend reinvestrment plan will continue to be
available to eligible shareholders. Shareholders who do not currently
participate in the plan and wish to do so can obtain an application
form and explanatory booklet from the Company’s registrars,

Uoyds TSE Registrars. Contact details for the Registrars are shown
on page 147. The latest date for receipt of new applications to
participate in respect of the 2006 final dividend is @ November 2006.

Acquisitions and disposals

Details of acguisitions made during the year are contained in the
Performance review on page 23 and in note 31 on page 110. There
were no disposals of businesses during the vear.

Future development

It remains your Board's intention to develop the Group through
organic growth and by selective acquisitions.

Shore capital

At the date of this report, 657,210,884 ordinary shares of 25 pence
each have been issued and are fully paic up and ara guoted on the
London Stock Exchange. In addition, the Company has enitered into
a level Il American Depository Receipt programme with the Bank of
New York, under which the Company’s shares are traded in the form
of American Depository Shares on the New York Stock Exchange.
During the year ended 31 July 2008, options were exercised pursuant
1o the Company’s share option schemes, resulting in the allotment of
5,553,785 new ordinary shares. A further 14,668 new ordinary shares
have been aliotted under these schemes since the end of the financial
year 10 the date of this report. Details of these issues including, where
appropriate, the amounts subscribed for new shares are set out in
note 28 to the accounts oh page 106, which also contains details of
options granted over unissued capital.




The Directors propose {Resolution 10 in the Notice of Meeting set out
on pages 149 to 152) 1o renew the authority granted to them at the
Annual General Meeting held in 2005 to allot equity shares up o an
aggregate nominal value of £35,697,279 (representing the authorised
but unissued ordinary share capital at the date of this repori) (the “section
80 authority™. If approved at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting,
the authority will expire no later than 15 months from the date on which
the resolution is passed, or at the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting to be held in 2007, whichever is the sooner.

The limited power granted to the Directors at last year's Annual General
Meeting to allot equity shares for ¢ash other than pro raia fo existing
shareholders expiras no later than 17 February 2007. Subject to the
terms of the section 80 authority, your Directors recommend (Resolutior
11 in the Notice of Meeting) that this authority should be renewed so as
10 give them the ability (until the Annual General Meeting to be held in
2007) to issue ordinary shares for cash, other than pro rata fo existing
shareholders, in connection with a rights issue or up to a limit of 8% of
the ordinary share capital issued at the date of this report. Your Directors
have nc present intention to issue ordinary shares, cther than pursuant
to the Company's employee share schemes and any share dividend
alternatives. The Directors recommend that you vote in favour of
Resolutions 10 and 11 to maintain the Company’s flexibility in relation

to future share issues, including any Issues to finance business
opportunities should appropriate circumstances arise.

A Special Resclution will also be proposed (Resolution 12 in the Notice
of Meeting) to renew the Directors' limited authority last granted in
2005 to repurchase ordinary shares in the market. The authority will

be limited to a maximum of 65,721,088 crdinary shares (being 10%

of the Company’s issued share capital at the date of this report} and
also sets the minimum and maximum prices which may be paid. This
authority will enable your Directors to continue to respond promiptly
shauld circumstances arise in which they consider such a purchase
would result in an increase in earnings per share and would be in the
best interests of the Company.

The Companies (Acquisition of Own Shares) (Treasury Shares)
Regulations 2003 allow shares repurchased by the Company 10 be
held as freasury shares that may be cancelled, sold for cash or used
for the purpose of employee share schemes. The Company holds
ne shares in treasury but the Directors currently intend that any shares
which are repurchased will be held in treasury. The authorities to

be sought by each of Resolutions 11 and 12 are intended to apply
equally to shares 1o be held by the Company as treasury shares and
to the sale of treasury shares. The Directors consider it desirable for
these general autherisations 1o be available to pravide flexibility In the
managemeant of the Company’s capital resources.
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Substantial share interests

The Tollowing interests of 3% or more in the Company's issued ordinary
share capital appeared in the register maintained under the provisions
of section 211 of the Companies Act 1985:

Name %
Lloyds TSB Group ple 4126
Barclays plc 3.020
Legal & General investment Management Limited 3.000

Directors

Brief particulars of the Directors in office at the date of this report are
listed on pages 42 and 43 and further details of the Board composition
are contained in the Corporate governance report. The Directors
standing for re-glection at the Annual General Meeting are Gareth Davis,
Fenton Hord and Nigel Stein. Each Director, being eligible, offers
himself for re-election and each, following a performance evaluation
during the vear, continues to be effective and demonstrates
commitment to their respective roles. It is the view of the Board

that Messrs Davis and Stein each bring considerable management
experience and independent perspective to the Board's discussions
and both are considered to be independent of management and free
from any relationship or circumstance that could affect, or appear

to affect, the exercise of their independent judgement. In addition,
Frank Roach, who joined the Board as an Executive Director on

16 December 2005, will stand for election.

Directors’ interests in shates

The register kept by the Company pursuant to section 325 of the
Companies Act 1985 shaws that the Directors in office at 31 July 2006
and their families had the following interests in the ordinary shares of

the Company. 1 August 2005
igust

31 July 2006 {or on appointment)
C A Banks 212,267 200,137
G Davis 10,664 10,664
A J Duif 3,993 3,993
F N Hord 91,470 83,179
C A S Hornsby 57,709 48,017
R H Marchbank 26,462 12,802
J | K Mumay 5,000 5,000
F W Roach 27,248 26,970
N M Stein 4,500 2,500
R M Walker 2,208 2,180
S P Webster 50,220 38,205
J W Whybrow 45,284 45,284

There were no changes to the shareholdings of those Directors in office
at the date of this report between 1 August 2006 and 25 Septernber 2006.




Corporate governance

Including the report of the audit committee

Compliance with the Combined Code

The Board is committed to the highest standards of corporate
governance set out in the Combined Code on corporate governance
published by the Financial Reporting Council ('FRC" in July 2003

{the “Code”). The Board has also applied the principles and provisions
in the form set out in the revised draft Combined Code published

by the FRC in June 2006 (the “Revised Code”) in advance of its
commencement date. The Board is accountable to the Company's
shareholders for good governance and this report describes how the
Board applied the principles of good governance set out in the Code
and the Revised Code during the year under review.

The Board

As at 31 July 2008, the Beard of Directors was made up of

12 members comprising the Chairman, six Executive Directors

and five Non Executive Directors. The Non Executive Directors are
considered by the Board to be independent of management and

free of any refationship which could materially interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgement. The Board censiders that each of
the Non Executive Directors brings his own senior level of experience,
gained in their own fields of mainly international operations. Frank Roach
was appointed to the Board with effect from 16 December 2005.

Mr Roach was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of North America
to succeed Mr Hornsby, who became Group Chief Executive on

1 August 20606 following Mr Banks' retirement on 31 July 2008, For
the period from Mr Roach's appointment until Mr Banks’ retirement,
the provisions of the Code requiring a balance between executive and
non executive directors were not met, albeit that this was a temporary
position in advance of Mr Banks’ retirement. At the date of this report,
there are 11 members of the Board, comprising the Chairman, five
Executive Diractors and five Non Executive Directors. Accordingly,

the Board considers that the Comnpany once again satisfles the
obligations under the Code,

Biographical details of the Directors currently in office are shown
on pages 42 and 43, The Company’s policy relating to the terms
of appaintment and the remuneration of both the Executive and
Non Executive Directors is detailect in the Remuneration report on
pages 62 to 70.

The Board mests regularly during the year as well as on an ad hoc
basis, as required by time critical business needs. The Board has

a formal schedule of matters reserved to it for its decision, which

was reviewed in July 2005, although its primary role is to provide
entrepreneurial leadership and 1o review the overall strategic
development of the Group as a whols. Day-to-day operational
decisions are delegated 1o the executive committes referred to

on page 57. The Board met 11 times during the year and Director
attendance for each meeting is shown in the table on page 57,

The Board has established a progedure for Directors, if deermned
necessary, 1o take independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense in the furtherance of their duties. This is in addition to the
access that every Director has to the Company Secretary, who is
charged with ensuring that Board procedures are followed and that
good corporate governance and compliance is implemeanted within
the Group. Together with the Group Chief Executive and the Company
Secretary, the Chairman ensures that the Board is kept properly
informed and is consuited on all issues reserved 1o it. Board papers
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and other information are delivered at times to allow Directors to

be properly briefed in advance of meetings. In accordance with the
Company's Articles of Association, Directors are granted an indemnity
from the Company to the extent permitted by law in respect of
ligbilities incurred as a result of their office. The indemnity would not
provide any coverage to the extent that a Director is proved to have
acted fraudulently or dishonestly. The Company has also arranged
appropriate insurance coverage in respect of legal action against its
Directors and officers. The differing roles of Chairman and Group Chief
Executive are acknowledged and set out in writing, The Chairman has
confirmed that he would not chair any other major company’s Board.

The Chairman has addressed the developmental needs of the

Board as a whole, with a view to developing its effectiveness as

a team and assists in the developrment of individual skills, knowledge
and expertise. During the year, the Board took forward the results of
previous ongoing evaluation processes to assess its performance and
that of its committees and to identify areas in which its effectiveness,
poiicies and processes might be enhanced, utiising both a questionnaire
(in relation to the performance of the Non Executive Directors) and
discussions with all Board members.

Performance evaluations, including the skills brought 1o the Board and
the contributions each Director made to it, were carried out for each
member of the Board. Executive Directors’ performance has been
assessed by the Chairman and Mr Banks. Mr Banks' performance
was evaluated by the Chairman and the Non Executive Directors.
The Senior Non Executive Director led the review of the Chalrman’s
performance in consultation with the Executive and Non Executive
Directors, The Non Executive Directors’ performance was reviewed
by botft Mr Banks and the Chairmarn, as well as by the Board as a
whole, which considered the results of the questionnakres referred
o above.

Meetings between the Non Executive Directors, both with and

without the presence of the Chairman and the Group Chief Executive,
are scheduled in the Board's annual timetable. The Board has also
arranged to hold at least two Board meetings each year at divisional
locations to help all Board members gain a deeper understanding of
the business. This also provides senior managers from across the
Group the opportunity to present to the Board as well as 1o meet the
Directors on more informal occasions,

As part of their ongaing development, the Executive Diractors are
encouraged 1o take up an external non executive position on a non
competitor board, for which they may retain payments received in
respect of the appointment. In order to avoid any conflict of interest,
all appointrments are subject to the Board's approval. Generally
outside appointments for Executive Directors are limited to one
company board only, athough Mr Banks, by exception, served on
two outside boards. The Board is satisfied that these appointments
did not conflict with his duties to the Company. The Board monitors
the extent of Directors” other interests to ensure that the effectiveness
of the Board is not compromised. Succession planning is considered
to be & matter for the whole Board rather than for a committee.

The Company’s Articles of Association provide that one-third of

the Directors retire by ratation each year and that each Director will
seek re-glection at the Annual General Mesting every three years.
Additionally, new Directors are subject to election by shareholders at




the first opportunity after their appeintment. It s Board policy that Non
Executive Directors are nomally appointed for an initial term of three
years, which is then reviewed and extended for a further three-year
period. it is also Board policy that Non Executive Directors should
not generally serve on the Board for more than ning years and that,
in cases where it is proposed 1o excesd this petricd, the Director
concerned will retire annually and offer himself for re-glection.
Following their appointment, formal comprehensive and tailored
induction is offered to all Non Executive Directors, supplemented by
Visits to key locations within the Group and mestings with members
of the exscutive committee and other key senior executives. Al of
the Directors being proposed for re-election have heen subject to a
performance evaluation during the vear ended 31 July 2006 and the
Board is content that each has continued to be affective and has
demonstrated his commitment to his respective role.

Although the Non Executive Directors ars not asked, at present,

to meet the shareholders of the Company, their attendance at
presentations of the annual and interim results is encouraged. The
Chairman ensures that the Board maintains an appropriate dialogue
with shareholders. Gareth Davis is the Company's Senior Independent
Non Executive Director,

The formal terms of reference for the main Board committees,
approved by the Board and complying with the Code to aesist in the
discharge of #ts duties, are available from the Company Secretary and
Gar also be found on the Company's website at www.wolseley.com.
Membership of the various committees is shown an page 147. The
Company Secretary acts as secretary to all Board committess.

Ncminations committee

The nominations commitiee meets or an as needed basis and, at the
date of this report, is comptised of Mr Whybrow (Chairman), Mr Davis,
Mr Duff, Mr Hornsby and Mr Walker. Mr Banks stepped down as
amember of this committes upon his retirement on 31 July 2006

and was succeeded by Mr Hornsby. fr Whybrow would not chair
the committee when it considers the appointment of a successor
chairman. The comimittee reviews the structurs, size and composition
of the Board and its committess and makes recommendciations with
regard to any changes that are considered necessary, both in the
identification and nomination of new Diractors and the continuation

of existing Diractors in office. The committes retains external search
consultants as appropriate. The committee also advises the Board

on succession planning for executive board appointments although
the Board itself is responsible for succession gengrally. The committee
met ance during the year and Director attendance for such meeting

i shown in the table on page 57, although, as reported last year, a
working party was established, which met on a number of occasions,
to consider the issues arising out of Mr Banks' retirement.

Audit committee

The audit committes comprises Messrs Davis, Steir and Murray

(who chairs the committes), The committes’s membership is reviewad
by the nominations committes and by Mr Murtay at regular intervals,
Members of the committes are appointed by the Board following
recommendations by the nominations commitiee. The committee is
normally comprised of three independent Non Executive Directors.
Two members constitute a quorum.
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Each member of the committee brings relevant financial experience
from senior executive levels. The expertise and exparience of the
members of the committes are surmmarised on pages 42 and 43. The
Board considers that each member of the committee is independent
within the definition set out in the Code. Mr Stein is considered by the
Board to have significant, recent and relevant financial experience,

as he is cummently Finance Director of GKN plc.

All members of the committee receive appropriate induction, which

is In addition to the induction which all new Directors recejve and
includes an overview of the business, its financial dynamics and risks.
Audit committee members are expected to have an understanding of
the following areas: the principles of, contents of and developments
i, financial reporting, including the applicable accounting standards
and statements of recommended practice; key aspects of the
Company’s approach, including Comorate policies; company financing;
systems of internal control; and matters that reguire the use of
judgement in the presentation of accounts and key figures as well s
the role of intemal and external auditors. Members of the cormmities
undertake ongoing training as required.

The committee meets regularly throughout the year and its agenda

is linked to events in the Company's financial calendar, The agenda

is mostly cyclical such that the committee Chairman approves the
agendia on behalf of all members of the committee; each member of
the: commitiee may require reports on matters of intarest in gadition to
the regular items. Members' attendance at the mestings held during
the year is set out in the table on page 57.

The committee invites the Chairman, the Group Chief Executive,
the Group Finance Director, the Director of Financial Repaorting and
Strategic Planning, the Group Financial Controller and the Head of
Internal Audit together with senior representatives of the external
auditors to attend each meeting although It reserves part of each
meeting for discussions without the invitees being present. Cther
senior management are invited to present such reports as are
required for the committee to discharge its duties.

The Chairman of the audit committee attends the Annual General
Mesting to respond to ary sharsholder questions that might be raised
on the committee’s activities, The remuneration of the membera of the
committee is set out an page 63 and the palicy with regard to the
remuneration of Non Executive Directors is set out on page 70.

The committes is required to assist the Board to fulii its responsibilities
refated to external financial reporting and associated announcements.
Ouring the year, the committes reviewed the proposed introduction of a
statutory operating and financial review and its subsequent replacement
by a business review; the progress made towards financial reporting
under International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"; the interim
and annual financial statements and the restatement of the 2005
prefiminary statement under IFRS; the interirm and preliminary
annauncements made 10 the London and New York Stock Exchanges
and the Form 20-F, which ig filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission in the USA, having received the appropriate information
on the accounting principles, policies and practices adopted in the
preparation of the accounts; changes proposed to those principles,
policies and practices; significant accounting issues; aperation of the
Company’s whistieblowing policy; litigation and contingent liabilities
and tax matters, including contingencies against tax liabiftiss together
with compliance with statutory tax obligations.

[ ..




Corporate governance

Including the report of the audit committes

The committee is also responsible for the development,
implementation and monitoring of the Company's poficy on external
audit. The committee reservas oversight responsibility for monitoring
the independence, objectivity and compliance with ethical and regulatory
requirements. The committee recommends the appointment and
reappointment of the Company’s external auditors. The committee
reviews the scope, results (including schedules of unadjusted errors
and representation letters) and cost-effectiveness of the audit as well
as the auditors’ remuneration and performance. The committes also
ensures that key partners within the external auditors are rotated from
time to time in accordance with hoth UK and US rules. In ling with
this policy, there was a rotation of the engagement partner for the year
ended 31 July 2006. The Committee also monitors the extent of
non-audit work which the external auditors can perform, to ensure
that the provision of those non-audit services that can be undertaken
by the external auditors falls within the agreed policy and does not
impair their objectivity or indepencence. Under the policy, the external
auditors cannot be engaged to perform any of the following services:

» Bookkesping services related to accounting records of financial
statements;

* Financial information systems’ design and implementation;

« Appraisal or valuation services, fairness opinions and contributions
in kind reports;

& Actyarial services;

* Internal audit outsourcing services;

» Management functions including hurman resources;

« Broker or dealer, investmeant advisor or investment banking
services; of

* Legal and other services unrelated to the audit,

The policy requires pre-confimation by the committee of any non-
audit wark subject to de minimis levels. The external auditors provide
audit related services such as regulatory and statutory reporting as
well as formalities relating to shareholcer or other circulars. The extermnal
auditors report to the committee any material departures from Group
accounting policies and procadures that they identify during the
course of their audit work. Within the constraints of applicable US and
UK rules, the external auditors undertake due diligence reviews and
provide assistance on tax matters given their in-depth knowledge

of the Group’s business. The provision of non-audit services within
such constraints and the agreed policy is assessed on a case-by-case
basis so that the best-placed advisor is retained. During the year

the committee reviewed the effectivenass of the external auditors and
considered whather the agreed plan had been fulfiled and the reasons
for any variation from the plan. The committee alsc considered the
external auditors’ robustness and the degree to which the external
auditors were able to assess key accounting and audit judgements
and the context of the management letter.

The committee reviews annually a formal letter provided by the external
auditors confirming their independence and objectivity within the
context of applicable regulatory requirements and professional standards.

Wolseley plc Annual Report and Accounts 2008
56 Corporate governance

The committee also reviewed the terms, areas of responsibility and
scope of the audit as set out in the external auditors’ engagement
letter: the overall work plan for the forthcoming year, together with
the associated fee proposal, any major issues which arose during
the course of the audit and their resolutiony; key accounting and
audit judgements; the level of errors identified during the audt;
and the recommendations made to management by the auditors
and management's response.

The total fees paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP in the year
ended 31 July 2006 were £9.6 milion (2005: £7.2 million) of which
£4.2 million (2005; £3.4 milior) related to non-audit work. Further
disclosure of the non-audit fees paid during the year ended 31 July 2006
can be found in note 3 on page 86.

The committee also reviews the effectiveness of the Group's internal
audit function and its relationship with the external auditors, including
internal audit plans and performance. Throughout the year, the
committee reviewed the internal audit function’s plans and its
achievements against plans. The committee considered the results of
the audits undertaken by the internal audit funciion and considered
the adequacy of management’s response to matters raised, including
the time taken to resolve any such matters.

The committee also reviews, where practicable, all proposed
announcements to be made by the Company to the extent thai they
comtain material financial information. It also reviews disclosures made
by the Group Chief Executive and Group Finance Director during the
certification process for ithe Form 20-F concerning the design and
operation of internal controls or material weaknesses in the controls,
including any fraud involving management or other employees
invalved in the Group's financial controls. The committeée manitors
and reviews the effectiveness of the Group's internal contral systems,
accounting policles and practices, standards of risk management and
risk management procedures and compliance controls as wel as the
Company’s statements on internal controls before they are agreed by
the Board for each year's annual report. The committee has also
monitored the Company's response to the requirements of the US
Sarbanes-Oxley Act as they apply to foreign private issuers with
particular focus on the progress made in evaluating internal controls
as required by Section 404 of that Act. The Board retains overall
responsibility for internal controt and the identification and managernent
of business risk. During the year, the committee also reviewed the
processes which have been embedded throughout the Group to
implement compliance with IFRS reparting requirements.

The Company’s whistieblowing pclicy (which is an extension of the
Groupwide Code of Ethics) sets out arrangements far the Company
Secretary to receive, in confidence, complaints on accounting, risk
issues, internal contrals, auditing issues and related matters which
would, as appropriate, be reported to the committes. A copy of
the Code of Ethics is available on the Company’s website at
www.wolseley.com.

Each year the committes critically reviews its own performance and
considers where improvements can be made. The committee’s terms
of reference, which had been approved in October 2004, were reviewed
during the year.




Remuneration committee

The committee comprises Messrs Davis, Walker and Duff (who chairs
the committes), all of whom are independent within the definition set
out in the Code. Mr Duff succeeded Mr Walker as chairman of the
committee on 1 Novemnber 2005. The commitiee met five times
during the year and Dirgctor attendance for each mesting is shown
in the table below. The committee is responsible for making
recommendations on remuneration o the Board. The Board's
Rermuneration report is set out on pages 62 to 70. During the year
as part of its evaluation process the committee reviewed its terms of
reference, which had been approved in July 2004. It was agreed that
no amendments were required. Copies of these terms of reference
are avallable from the Company Secretary or on the Company's
website at www.wolseley.com.

The Chairman of the remuneration committee attends the Annual
General Meeting 1o respond to any shareholder guestions that might
be raised on the committee’s activities.

Meetings attendance

Treasury committee

The committee comprises the Group Chief Executive, the Group Treasurer
and the Group Finance Director, who acts as its Chairrnan. Mr Banks
stepped down as a member of this committes upon his retirement on
31 July 2006 and was succeeded by Mr Hornsby. The committee's
role is to consider treasury policy, tax matters and certain transactions
on behalf of the Group within a framework delegated by the Board.

Executive committee

The Executive Directors of the Company together with Mr Barden,
who has been responsible for Wolseley UK Limited since 1 August 2003,
and Mr White, the Group Company Secretary & Coungsel, meet at least
eight times each year, often on the day before formal Board meetings.
The committee addresses gperational business issues and shares
best practice, thereby allowing the Directors more time at Board
mestings to focus on strategy.

The folowing table shows the attendance of Directors at meetings of the Board, audit, remuneration and nominations committees during the year:

Augit Remuneration Nominations

Board meetings committee meetings commitiee meetings committee mestings

Eligible to Eligible to Eligible to Eligible to

Attended attend Attended attend Attended attend Attended attend

C A Banks 10 11 - - - - - 1

G Davis 8 11 4 4 5 5 1 1

A J Duff 11 11 - - & 5 1 1

F N Hord 8 11 - - - - - -

C A § Hornshy 11 11 - - - - - -

R H Marchbank 11 11 - - - - - -

J I K Murray 10 11 4+ 4 - —- - -

F W Roach? 6 B - - - - - -

N M Stein 10 1 4 4 - - - _

R M Walker 10 11 - - 5 5 - 1

S P Webster 10 11 - _ - - _ .

4 W Whybrow 11* 11 - - - - 1 1
“Chairman

This table shows only those meetings which each Director attended as a member rather than as an invitee.

tAppointed as a Director on 16 December 2005,

Internal audit

The internal audit function is involved in the assessment of the
guality of risk management and internal control and helps to promete
and further develop effective risk management within the busineases.
Certain internal audit assignments (such as those requiring specialist
expertise) continue to be outsourced by the Head of Internal

Audit to KPMG |LP as required. A policy has been established
regarding the recruitment of staff from both KPMG LLP and
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. The audit committee reviews

internal audit reports and considers the effectivenass of the function.

Internal control

In & highly decentralisec Group, where local management has
considerable autonomy to run and develop their businesses,

a well designed system of internal control is necessary to safeguard
shareholders' investment and the Company’s assets. The Directors
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acknowledge that they have overall responsibility for the Group's
systems of internal control and for reviewing their effectiveness.

In accordance with the guidance set aut in the Turnbull Report
“‘internal Control: Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code”,
an ongoing process had been established for identifying, managing
and evaluating the risks faced by the Group. This process has heen
in place for the fulf financial year and up to the date on which the
financial statements were approved.

The systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure o achieve the Group’s objectives, safeguard the Group's assets
against material loss, fairly report the Group’s perfotmance and
position and 10 ensure compliance with relevant legislation, regulation
and best practice including that relaied to social, environmental and
gthical matiers. The systems provide reasonable, not absolute,
assurance against material misstaternent or loss. Such systems are
regularly reviewed by the Board to deal with changing circurmnstances.




Corporate governance

Including the report of the audit committee

A summary of the key financial risks inherent in the Group's business
is given on pages 39 to 41. Risk assessment and evaluation is an
integral part of the annual planning cycle. Each business documents
the strategic objectives and the effectiveness of the Group's systems
of internal control. As part of this review, each business area and
function has been required to identify and document each significant
risk, together with the mitigating actions implemented to manage,
monitor and report to management on the effectiveness of these
controls. Senior managers are also reguired 1o sign bi-annual
confirmations of compliance with key procedures and 16 report any
breakdowns in, or exceptions to, these procedures. Summarised
results have been presented fo senior management {ncluding to the
executive committeg) and 1o the audit committes, These processes
have bean in place throughout the financial year ended 31 July 2006
and have continued to the date of this Report. The Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's system of internal control
for the year under review and a summary of the principal control
structures and processes in place across the Group is set out below.

Control structures

Whilst the Board has overall respensibility for the Group's system

of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness, it has delegated
responsibility for the internal control and risk management programme
to the Group Finance Direcior. The detailed review of intarnal control
and risk management has been delegated to the audit committee.
The management of each Group company is responsible for internal
control and risk management within its own business and for ensuring
compliance with the Group’s policies and procedures. Each Group
company has appointed & risk director whose primary role in such
capacity is to ensure compliance by local management with the
Group’s risk management and internal control programme. Both the
internal and external auditors have reviewed the overall approach
adopted by the Group towards its risk management activities so

as to reinforce these internal control requirements.

Control processes

The Board reviews its strategic plans and objectives on an arnuat
basis and approves Group company budgets and strategiss in fight
of these. Control is exercised at both Group and subsidiary board
level through monithly monitoring of performance by comparison to
budgets, forecasts and cash targets and by regular visits to Group
companies by the Group Chief Executive and Group Finance Dirgctor.
Group companies approve and submit risk reports to the audit
committee on a bi-annual basis, summarising the key risks facing
their businesses and the controls in place to manage those risks.
These reports, together with reports on internal control and departures,
if any, from established Group procedures prepared by the internal
and external auditors, are reviewed by the Group Finance Director and
the audit committee. Group companies also submit annual risk and
internal control representation letters to the Group Finance Director

on internal control and risk management issues, with comments on
the control environment within their operations. The Group Finance
Directar summarises these submissions for the audit committee and
the Chairman of the audit committee reports to the Board on any
matters which have arisen from the committee’s review of the way in
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which the risk management and internal control processes have been
applied. Group companies are also reguirad to support the disclosures
and attestations that the Group Chief Executive and Group Finance
Director are required to give under the Sarbanes-Qxley Act.

The Board has formal procedures in piace for the approval of investment
and acquisition projects, with designated levels of authority, supported
by post investment review processes for selected acquisitions and
major capital expenditure. The Board considers social, environmental
and ethical matters in relation to the Group's businesses and
assesses these when reviewing the risks faced by the Group. The
Board is conscious of the effect such matters may have on the short
and long-term value of the Company. The external auditors of the
Campany and the Head of Internal Audit attend audlt commiittee
meetings and receive its papers. The report of the audit committee

is set out on pages 55 1o 56 and the audit committee members
regularly meet the Head of Internal Audit and the external auditors
without the presence of executive management.

As noted on page 52, the Company has entered into a level 1l
American Depository Receipt programme with the Bank of New York
and has securities registered with the US Secuities and Exchange
Commission (“the Commissicn”). As a result, the Company is
required to comply with applicable US regulations including the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, insofar as it applies to foreign private issuers.

In accordance with the Commission’s recommendations, the
Company has established a disclosure committes comprising the
Group Chief Executive, Group Finance Director, Group Financial
Coniroller and the Group Company Secretary and Counsel,

The Group Chief Exgcutive and Group Finance Birector will also
provide the certificates required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act when the
Form 20-F for 2006 is filed. There were no changes to the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the year
ended 31 July 2006 that have materially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting. During the year, wotk necessary to achieve compliance with
the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act related to
internal controls has continued.

Compliance statement

The Company applied all of the principles set out in section 1 of

the Code and the Revised Code for the period under review and has,
throughout the year, complied with the detailed provisions set out
therein, save that, during the period from 16 Becember 2005 to

31 July 2006 there was an imbalance between Executive and

Non Executive Directors on the Board and following the introduction
of a new Directors’ bonus scheme in 2000, the pensionable salary of
one Executive Director includes his bonus capped at a fixed amount,

The Company’s auditors, PricewaterhouseCeoopers LLP, are required
to review whether the above statement refiects the Company’s
compliance with the nine provisions of the Code specified for its
review by the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority and to report if
it does not reflect such compliance. No such report has been made.




New York Stock Exchange corporate governance
requirements

Whilst the Cormpany is net required to comply with the measures set
by the board of the New York Stock Exchange, inc. to strengthen
corporate accountability as it is a private foreign issuer, it does comply
in all material respects with those standards. Those standards state
that companies should have a nominating/corparate governance
committes composed entirely of independent Directars with written
terms of reference, which develops and recommends to the board

a set of corporate governance principles for the Company. Details

of the Company’s nominations committeée are set out on page 55,
The nominations commities does not develop corporate governance
principles for the Board to approve. The Board itself approves the
Group's overall system of internal controls, governance and authority
limits. A majority of the members of the nominations committee are
independent Non Executive Directors and all such Directors sit on
the Board. The Company's practice, in accordance with the UK
Companies Act and the Code in relation to the appointment and
termination of the external auditors, is that a recommendation is
made by the audit commitiee to the Board, which wil then make

& recommeandation to sharsholders in general meeting. This differs
from the procedure in the USA, where the external auditors are
accountable to the audit committee, which has the authority to appeint
or dismiss the external auditors without reference to shareholders.

The US Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the Securities and Exchange Commission
and the New York Stock Exchange introduced rules in July 2005
requiring the Company to comply with certain provisions relating to

the audit committes. These include a requirement related to the
independence of audit committee members and procedures for

the treatment of complaints regarding accounting or auditing matters.
The Company is fully compliant with these requirements.

Communications with shareholders

The Company places considerable importance on communication
with its shareholders, including its employee shareholders. The Group
Chief Executive and Group Finance Director are closely involved in
investor relations and a senior executive has day-to-day responsibility
for such matters. The views of our major shareholders are reported
1o the Board by the Group Finance Diractor and by the Chairman
and discussed at its meetings. The Annual Report and Accounts are
available to all shareholders either in paper form or electronically and
¢an be accessed via the Company's website or via Shareview, an
Internet service offered by the Company’s registrars, Lloyds TSB
Registrars, detailed on page 148.
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There is regular dialogue with institutional sharsholders and this has
been extended to include private shareholders through the Annual
General Meeting and meetings with shareholder representatives.
Contact with institutional shareholders (and with financiat analysts,
brokers and the media) is controlled by written guidelines to ensure
the protection of share price sensitive information that has not already
been made generally available to the Company’s shareholders.
Contact is alsc maintained, when appropriate, with shareholders

to discuss overall remuneration plans and policies. The Group's
preliminary and interim results, as well as alt announcements issued
1o the Londen and New York Stock Exchanges, are published on the
Company's website, www.wolseley.com. The Company issues regular
trading updates to the market and these, together with copies of
presentations to analysts and intenviews with the Group Chief
Executive and Group Finance Director, are also posted on the
Company's website. The Notice of the Annual General Meeting is
circulated to all shareholders at least 20 working days before such
mesting and it is Company policy not to combine resolutions to

be proposed at general mestings. All shareholders are invited to

the Company’s Annual General Meeting at which they have the
opportunity to put quesiions to the Board and it is standard practice
0 have the chairmen of the audit, nominations and remuneration
committees available to answer guestions. The proxy votes for and
against each resolution, as well as abstentions (which may be
recorded on the proxy forrm accompanying the Notice of Meeting),
are counted before the Annual General Meeting and the results will
be made available at the mesting after shareholders have voted on
each resolution on a show of hands. The results are also announced
to the London and New York Stock Exchanges and are published
on the Company’s website shortly after the meeting.

Donations

The Company's Corporate social responsibility report is set out
on pages 44 to §1. The Group'’s charitable donations in 2006 totalled
£2,445,000 (2005: £2,020,711).

At each of the Annual General Meetings held since 2002,
shareholders have passed a resolution, on a precautionary basis,

to approve donations to EU pofitical organisations and to incur

EL) political expenditure (as such terms are defined in section 347A of
the Companies Act 1985 (as amended)} not exceeding £125,000 per
annum. The Board has repeatedly confirmed that it operates a policy
of not giving any cash contribution to any political party in the ordinary
meaning of those words and that it has no intention of changing that
policy. The Directors, however, propose to seek once more, authority
for the Group to make cenations and incur expenditure of not more
than £125,000 in total until the Company’s riext Annual General
Meeting, which they might otherwise be prohibited from making or
incurring under the terms of the Act and which would not amount to
“donations” in the ordinary sense of the word. The authority sought by
Resolution 13 in the Notice of Meeting will last until the Company’s
next Annual General Meeting.




Corporate governance

including the report of the audit committee

Awards under employee share schemes

Options were granted under the Employee Share Purchase Plan in
March 2006 to 8,151 US-based employees (2005: 9,036) and 442
Canadian-based employees (2005: 941} in respect of a maximum of
817,433 orginary shares (2005: 2,780,555) exercisable at 1236 pence
per share. Options were granted under the UK Employees Savings
Related Share Option Scheme in April 2006 to 2,649 employees
(2005: 2,248) in respect of a maximum of 621,422 ordinary shares
(2005: 582,757) exercisable at 1164 pence per share. Options were
granted under the ish Sharesave Scheme in April 2006 to 229
employees (2005: 145) in respect of a maximum of 86,100 ordinary
shares (2005: 70,878) exercisable at 1164 pence per share. In
Novernber 2005 options were granted under the Wolseley Share
Option Plan 2003 over 4,473,070 ordinary shares (2005: 4,081,340)
to senior employees of the Group at an option price of 1185 pence
per share. A further award of 111,820 options were granted under the
2003 Plan in January 2006 at an option price of 1281 pence per
share. These schemes are described in more detail on pages 64 to
B8. Detalls of the total options outstanding at 31 July 2006 are set out
in note 29 to the financial statements. Details of the cash awards
under the 2001 Long Term Performance Related Incentive Scheme
for Mr Banks and the cash and share awards under the Wolseley ple
2002 Long Term Incentive Scheme are set out on page 64.

Empioyee policies and involvement

The Group places particular importance on the involvement of

its employees, keeping them regularly informed through informal
bulleting, such as “Directions” and other in-house publications,
meetings and the Company’s internal website, on matters affecting
them as employees and on the issues affecting thelr performance.

A European Works Council has been cperating since 1996 to provide
a forum for dialogue and consultation with employees on significant
developments in the Group’s operations, management'’s plans and
expectations, organisational changes within the Group and for
employee representatives to consult management about concerns
over any aspect of the Group's operations, At the date of this Report,
ihere are 25 members comprising 14 employee representatives
nominated from among employees from each European company
with the balance being Company appointees.

Permanent UK employees are usually invited to join the Company’s
pension arrangements which include cefined contribution and
defined benefit pension schemes. The principal UK scheme has one
corporate and two individual trustees. The Chairman of the trustees
is David Tucker and, save for an independent trustee, all of the other
trustees are UK-based emplovees or former employees of the Group.
The other main UK scheme provides benefits for employees of the
recently acquired Wiliam Wilson Group and has five trustess. The
Chairman of the trustees is lan Percy CBE and all of the other trustees
are UK-based employees of the William Wilson Group or of the
Company. Permanent employees outside the UK are usually offered
membership of their employing companies’ pension arangements.
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Employees are offered a range of benefits depending on the local
environment, such as private medical cover. Employees are encouraged
o become sharehalders in the Company, where possible, through
participation in the Company’s share schemes. Priority is given 1o the
training of employees and the development of their skills is of prime
importance. Employment of disabled people is considered on merit
with regard only to the ability of any applicant to carry out the
function required. Arrangements to enable disabled people to carry
out the function required will be made if i is reasonable 1o do so.

An employee becoming disabled would, where approptiate, be
offered retraining. The Group continues to operate on a highly
decentralised basis. This provides the maximum encouragement

for the development of entrepreneurial flair, balanced by a rigerous
control framework exercised by a small head office team. Local
managements are responsible for maintaining high standards of
healih and safety anc for ensuring that there is appropriate employes
involvernent in decision-making.

Creditor payment policy

All Group companies are respansible for establishing tenms and
conditions of trading with their suppliers. It is the Group’s policy

that payments to suppliers are made within agread terms and arg,
where applicable, consistent with the UK Government-backed Better
Payment Practice Code. Copies of this Code can be obtained from
the Group Caompany Secretary at the Company's registared office.
At 31 July 2006 the Company had no trade crecitors (2005: nil).

The amount of trade creditors for the Group as at 31 July 2006

was equivalent to 52 days (2005: 55 days) of trade purchases.

Shareholder services

Shareview is a service offered by our registrars, Lloyds TSB Registrars,
which allows shareholders on-line access t0 a range of shareholder
information. Shareview provides access to details of shareholdings

in the Company and practical help on transferring shares or updating
personal details. 1t also allows shareholders to choose to receive
sharehoider communications electronically, rather than by post, To
register, shareholders simply need to log on to www.shareview,co.uk
with their shareholder reference number, which is shown on the form
of proxy sent to all shareholders with this Report. First time users will
need to enter certain information and choose a Personal Identification
Number before they are able to access their shareholding details.

Shareview dealing is also available to UK-based sharehoiders.

This is a simple and convenient telephone and Internst share
purchase and sale service offered by the Registrars. For telephone
purchases and sales call 0870 850 0852 between 8.30am and
4.30pm, Monday to Friday. For Internet purchases and sales, log

on to www.shareview.co.uk/dealing. A postal dealing service is also
available from Lloyds TSB Registrars and a form, together with terms
and conditions, can be obtained by caling 0870 242 4244,

CREST

The Company's ordinary shares are in CREST, the settlement system
for stocks and shares,




Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are wiling to continue as auditors of the
Company and Resolution 8 in the Notice of Meeting concerning their
reappointment and Resolution 3 in the Notice of Meeting concerning
the determination of their remuneration are to be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting. The Directors in office at the date of this
report confinm that, so far as they are each awars, there is no relevant
audit information of which FricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are unaware
and each Diractor has taken all the steps that cught to have been taken
as a Director to be aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are aware of that information.

Annual General Meeting resolutions

The resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Mesting to
be held on 29 November 2008, together with explanatory notes,
appear in the Notice of Annual General Meeting on pages 148 to 152
and which is also available on our website at www.wolseley.com.

IN|IN7OT

On behalf of the Board

Mark J White

Group Company Secretary and Counsel
Wolseley plc, Registered No. 29846
Theale, Reading

25 September 2006
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Directors’ responsibility statement

The Directors are required by UK company law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as adopted by the European
Union to prepare financial statements for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group and of the profit or loss for that periad.

The Directors consider that, in preparing the accounts, appropriate
accounting policies have been used and applied consistently, supported
by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimatas; they have
been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European
Union and on tha going concern basis. Applicable UK accounting
standards have also been applied.

The Directors are also responsible for maintaining adequate accounting
records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position
of the Company and the Group, which enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the UK Companies Act 1985
and Article 4 of the International Auditing Standards Regulation.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of

the corporate and financial information included on the wolseley.com
website, The work carried out by the auditors does not involve
consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept
no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the
financial statements since they were intially presented on the website.
Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
the financial statements may differ from {egislation in other jurisdictions.

The Directors have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company
and the Group and to prevent and detect fraud or other iregularities,
The Directors, having prepared the financial statements, have permitted
the auditors to take whatever steps and undertake whatever ingpections
they consider to be appropriate for the purpose of enabling them o
give their audit opinion.




Remuneration report

Including the statement of remuneration policy for the year ended 31 July 2006

The Board sets the Company’s remuneration policy. The remuneration
committee {“the Committee”) makes recommendations 1o the Board,
within its agreed terms of reference {(available on the Company's
website, www.wolseley.com) on the Company’s framework of
executive remuneration and its cost. It also determines, on behalf of
the Board, specific remuneration packages for each of the Executive
Directors and for the Chaitman. The Committee recommends

and monitors the level and structure of remuneration for senicr
management who report to the Group Chief Executive and whose
roles have a significant influence within the Group's business to mest
its strategic objectives. The Board itself determines the remuneration
of the Non Executive Directors. The Committes also administers the
Company’s share incentive schemes for emplayees. The current
members of the Cormimittes, all of whom are independent Non
Executive Directors within the definition set aut in the Code (and the
Revised Code), are set out on page 57 and the Company Secretary
acts as its secretary. The Commitiee has access to detailed external
research on market data and trends from independent and
experienced consuftants. The Comimitiee has, since March 2003,
sought external advice from New Bridge Street Consutants LLP, who
also provided certain pensions advice to the Company and has in
the past also been provided with advice by Mercer Human Resource
Consulting in the USA. The Group Chief Executive, the Chairman and
the Director of Human Resources, Peter Buckingham, are normally
invited to attend the mestings of the Committee t¢ respond to
specific questions raised by members of the Committea. This
specifically excludas such matters concerning the details of their

own personal remuneration.

The Company has followed the provisions of Schedules A and B of
the Code (and the Revised Code) and has complied with the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act 1885, as amendead by the Directors’
Remuneration Report Regulations 2002.

The Directors’ report on remuneration has been approved by
shareholders at each of the Annual General Mestings held since
2003. Sharehclders will again be invited to approve this report

at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 29 November 2006.

With the exception of the description of the performance bonus
arrangements, service agreement detalls, performance graph,
disclosure of remuneration to other senior executives, executive

share ownership and external directorships, the information set cut
on pages 63 to 70 of this report represents the auditable disclosures
referred 1o in the Auditors’ report on page 130 as specified by the UK
Listing Authority and under Schedule 7A of the Companies Act 1985.

Wolseley pic Annual Report and Accounts 2008
62 Remuneration report

Policy on remuneration of Executive Directors

The Company's policy now and for the future, is to provide
remuneration packages that fairly reward executives for the
contribution they make to the business, having regard to the size and
camplexity of the Group's operations and the need to attract, retain
and motivate executives of the highest quality. Remuneration packages
comprise competitive salary, performance bonuses, share options,
long-term incentives, benefits in kind and pensions. The Company
takes a total approach to remuneration, which includes all these
eiements. None of the long-term awards or options are pensionable.
The packages, which link corporate and individual performance with
an appropriate balance between short and long-term elements, are
designed to be broadly comparable with those offered by other similar
international businesses and reflect competitive practices in the
countries and markets in which the Executive Directors operate.

The policy is designed to incentivise the Executive Directors to meet
the Company’s financlal and strategic objectives, such that a significant
proportion of total remuneration is performance related. The Committee
considers that the targets set for the different elements of performance
related remuneration are appropriate and demanding in the context

of the Company's trading envircnment and the business challenges

it faces. The following chart shows the average proportions of salary,
target bonus and the estimated value of long-term incentives granted
during the financial year to Executive Directors in office at the date of
this Report:

Salaries

Basic salaries are determined having regard to competitive market

data, the degree of individual responsibility and individual performance.
Market data is derived from a group of companies selected on the

basis of comparable size, geographic spread and business focus. Due
consideration is also given to the wider economic and employment
backdrop, including general pay and employment conditions elsewheare
in the Group. The target salary is at the median, with the opportunity to
go above this lavel, subject to sustained individual performance. The
Committee reviewed the salaries of the Executive Directors with effect
from 1 August 2005, having sought the views of both the Chairman and
{other than in the case of his own salary) Mr Banks, the Group Chigf
Executive in office at that time. As a US national, 40% of Mr Banks'
salary was currency protected, based on an exchange rate of £1: $1.50,
Mr Hornsby will not benefit from such currency protection arrangements.




Benefits in kind

These principally comprise car benefits, life assurance, healthcare
insurance and, in the case of Messrs Banks, Hornsby, Marchbank and
Webster, relocation and housing allowances following their relocations
from the USA to the UK {Messrs Banks, Hornsby and Marchbank) and
from Droitwich to Theale (Mr Wehster), where the Company’s head
office is located.

Performance bonuses

Performance bonus arrangements for the Executive Directors are
designed to encourage individual performance, corporate operating
efficiencies and profitable growth. The annual bonus awards are based
on a mix of demanding financial targets, derived from the Company’s
historic performance, annual long-tern strategic business plan and
annual budget, as well as market expectations and will depend cn
performance against annual targedts of return on capital employed,
working capital, Group profit befare tax and, where relevant, profit
before tax for the appropriate division (which, in aggregate, account for
85% of the bonus, the majority of which relates to the profit before tax
targets). The balance of 15% of the bonus depends on specific
personal abjectives set for each Executive Director.

The following percentages of base salary, which vary between
Executive Directors depending on their particular responsibilities

and spheres of Influence, will be paid in bonus for the year ended

31 July 2008, subject to the achlevement of the minimum, on-target
and maximum levels of performance (with the percentages increasing
on a linear basls for achlevement between each level):

Percentage of base salary payable on achievement of:

Actua) bonus

paid for

Maximum the year

Name Minimum target On+arget target (% of salary)
C A Banks 80 120 170 158.00
F N Hord 80 120 160 154.00
C A S Homnsby 80 130 180 172.50
R H Marchbank 40 70 100 42,38
F W Roach a0 110 140 127.00
S P Webster 40 70 100 87.25

Stretching iargets are set for each element of the bonus, determined
by the Committee each year, which also considers the levels of
performance targets to be achieved for bonus payments o be

made in the succeeding year. For the year ending 31 July 2007,

the Committee has determined that there will be no change from
2006 for the minimum, on-target and maximum fargets which

will be 80/130/180% for Mr Hornsby, 80/120/160% for Mr Hord,
80/110/140% for Mr Roach and 40/70/100% for Messrs Marchbank
and Webster.
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Emoluments

The emolumenis for 2005 and 2006 of the Directors who served
during the financial year are set out below:

Salary Pension/ite 2006 2005
Directors’ &fees Bonuses  Benefis assurance’ Total Total
remuneration 000 £000 2000 £000 £000 £000
Chairman
J W Whybrow 300 - - - 300 210
Executive Directors
F N Hord* 397 667 1 - 1,085 1,379
C A 8 Hornshy? 453 847 g2 38 1,430 1201
R H Marchbank?® 400 213 238 17 868 693
F W Roach* 247 283 20 31 5681 -
S P Webster® 475 481 &1 70 1,077 1,084
Non Executive Directors
G Davis 58 - - - 58 43
A J Duff 58 - - - 58 38
J 1K Murray 63 - - - 63 43
N M Stein 50 - - - 50 38
R M Waiker 50 - - - 50 48
Former Director
C A Banks® 936 1,407 234 94 2671 2329
Total 3,487 3,898 636 250 8211 7,100
Pensicns to
former Diractors - - - - 327 N7
Pension
contributions
{0 money
purchase plans - - - - 414 256
Aggregate gains
on exercise of
share options - - - - 1,339 2313
Total - - - - 2,080 2,886
MNotes:

1. £50,176 (2005: £150,000) of the figure for bonuses relates to the vesting on 31 July 2006 of
34.5% of the award rmade in 2003 under the 2002 Long Term Incentive Scheme referred to on page 84,

2. £55.913 (2005: £0) of the figure for benefits was paid by way of a one-off amount to assist with
Mr Hornsby's purchase of a house in the UK. Mr Homsby will receive an annual housing allowance
of £75,000 pa from 1 August 2006. £65,283 (2005: £174,184) of the figure for bohyses relates to the
vasting on 31 July 2006 of 34.5% of the award made in 2003 under the 2002 Long Term Incentive
Schemne referred to on page 64

3. £185,080 (2005; £161,618) of the figure for benefits retates ta rekocation from the USA to the UK.
£36,256 (2005: £101,935) of the figure for bonuses relates to the westing en 31 July 2006 of 34.5%
of the award made in 2003 under the 2002 Long Term Incentive Scherne referred 1o on page 64.

4. Appointed 16 Dacember 2005, £17 867 of the figure for bonuses relates to the vesting on 31 July 2006
of 34.5% of the award made in 2003 under the 2002 Long Term Incentive Schems refemed 1 on
page 64.

5. £26,120 (2005: £35,877] of the figure for benefits relates to refocalion from Draitwich to Theale:
£66,412 (2005 £167,500) of the figure for bonuses relates to the vesting on 31 July 2008 of 34 .5%
of the award made in 2003 under the 2002 Long Term Incentive Scheme refemed 1o on page 64.

€. Mr Banks retired from the Company an 31 July 2006 and the emoluments shown in the tabile relate
to the peried from 1 August 2005 o 31 July 2006, £70,000 (2005: £70,000) of the figure for benefits
refates to refocation from the USA to the UK. £60,919 (2005: £68,633) of the fgure for benefits relates
to curency protection. £134,882 (2005: £369,808) of the figure for bonuses refates 1o the vesting
on 31 July 2008 of 34.5% of the award made in 2003 under the 2001 Long Term incentive Scheme
referred 1o on page 84. In addition, the Company has agreed 1o pay the removal costs as well as the
legal and estate agent fees in connection with the disposal of Mr Banks' home in the UK in advance
of his return to the USA.

7. The payments in respect of life assurance relate to arangements established before Messrs Banks,
Hord, Hornsby, Marchbank and Roach became Executive Diractors. These payments will cease with
effect from 1 August 2006 for Messrs Hornsby, Marchbank and Roach. A final payment of £54,235
was made in the year ended 31 July 2005 in respect of life assurance arangements for Mr Hord.
Payments totalling £1.55 million will be made over the next 18 years in respect of lfe assurance
arrangements for Mr Banks.
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Other senior executives and management

There are a number of senicr execuiives whose roles influence the
ability of the Group to meet its strategic objectives. They include the
members of the Executive Committee and other senior employees,
The Cormmittee has ragard to the level and structure of this group
whose total remuneration including salary, target bonus and value
of long-term incentives is summarised below:

Total remuneration 2005406 Number in band
£000 {2004/05 in brackets)
201 - 250 1N
251 — 300 1{0)
301 - 350 ¢ i0)
351 ~ 400 G@&
401 - 450 1)
451 - 500 1)
501 - 650 10)
551 -600 0{Q)
601 - 650 o
851 -700 [eX§)]
704 -750 2{0)
751 - 800 10)

Service agreements

All service agreements with Executive Directors are subject to
a maximum of 12 months' notice of termination if given by the
Company and six months’ notice of termination if given by the
Executive Director. Such notice periods reflect current markest practice
and the balance that should be struck between providing contractual

protection to the Directors that is fair and the interests of our shareholders.

The date of each service agreement and the year in which sach
Director was last elected or re-elected are noted in the table opposite.
There are no provisions in any senvice agreement for early termination
payments and, in the event of early termination of any service agreement,
the Committee will take a robust view of the mitigation, which should
be taken into account when computing any compensation payable,

Year of glection/

Nama Date of senice contract re-gleclion
F N Hord 27 Juneg 2003 2003
C A S Hornsby 18 July 2003 2004
R H Marchbank 18 March 2005 2006
F W Roach 27 February 2006 to be elected at the 2006

Annual General Meeting
S P Webster 25 September 2002 2005

Long-term incentives

The Company currently operates a long-term incentive plan which
provides ordinary shares in the capital of the Company, conditional
upon the Company’s total shareholder return ("TSR”) over single
three-year periods. All awards are made subject to the achievement
of stretching performance conditions and TSR has been selected

&s the performance measure to morg closely align the intarests of the
Executive Directors and senior executives with those of shareholders
over the long term. The plan rewards the refative out-performance

of the Company against a defined fist of comparator companies.
Calculations are performed independently and are approved by

the Committee.

The long-term incentive plan is discretionary. The Committee’s

currertt policy is o make annual awards to the Group Chief Executive,
Executive Directors and other senior executives under the Wolssley plc
2002 Long Term Incentive Scheme (*2002 Scheme”), which was
approved by shareholgers in December 2002 and amended at the
Annual General Meeting held on 18 November 2004. Prior to this date
only cash awards were made. Since 2004, awards wil normally be
made in shares, save where there are material securities or tax law
constraints in overseas jurisdictions where the scheme is to be
operated, in which case conditional awards in cash would continue
to be made.

Details of the awards conditionally made to the Executive Directors
in office during the year under the amended 2002 Scheme and
outstanding at 31 July 2006, as well as at the date of this Report,
are shown in the table below.

Interests in

shares heid at

Interests in Interésts in Interests in 31 Jul 2006

£ held at shares held at £ held at and the date

1 Aug 2005 1 Aug 2005 Imterests in 31 Jul 2006 of this report

{or date of {or date of shares awarded {or date of (or date of
Name of Qirector appointment) appointment) during the year leavingy leaving) Performance period
C A Banks 369,908 95,308 108,862 0 202,170 1 Aug 2003 - 31 Jul 2008
F N Hord 145,439 38,843 35,347 0 74,190 1 Aug 2003 - 31 Jul 2008
C A S Hornsby 189,227 40,281 50,408 0 90,687 1 Aug 2003 - 31 Jul 2008
R H Marchbank 105,091 23,695 27,817 ¢ 51,412 1 Aug 2003 - 31 Jul 2008
F W Reach 51,789 6,205 19,4092 0 26,314 1 Aug 2003 - 31 Jul 2008
S P Webster 192,500 34,884 42,147 0 77,031 1 Aug 2003 — 31 Jul 2008

1. The share price on the data of grant of the award was 1127 pence per share.

2. The share price on the date of grant of this award was 1127 pence per share in respect of 8,409 shares and 1281 pence per share in respect of 10,000 shares awarded on appointment as a Director.
3. Awards granted in 2003 (granted at 50% of salary as at 1 August 2003, save for Messrs Marchbank and Roach whose awards were granted at 40% of salary) vested at 34.6% of award on 31 July 2006.

Subssquent awards were mads in shares.
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The maximum amount that can be granted under the amended 2002
Scheme for each award is 200% of base salary per annum; however
awards made to date have not exceeded 125% (or 150% in the case
of the Group Chief Executive) of base salary, Each year the Commilttee
assesses the propartion of awards that should be made up of bath
share options and long-term incentive awards, It is the Committea’s
intention that for the year ending 31 July 2007, awards are made

to the Group Chief Executive over 150% of salary with lower award
levels for other Executive Directors. The vesting level for a maximum
award under the amended 2002 Scheme requires performance to

be in the upper decile. To better reflect market practice, shareholder
approval was sought and received on 18 November 2004 so that
25% of awards made from that date would vest for achieverment

of performance at the median (with a straight line percentage to vest
between median and upper decile). Extant awards remain subject to the
achievement of performance conditions folowing a participant’s agreed
retirement and vesting is determined at the end of the performance period.

The following table sets out the percentage of each award which has
vested and the percentage of each extant award, had it vested on
31 July 2006:

Percentage vested on mafurity or [ndicative vesting percentage

Year of award based on performance as at 31 July 2006
2001 100% (vested 31 July 2004)
2002 100% {vested 31 July 2005)
2003 34.5% {vested 31 July 2006)
2004 45% (performance after 24 months)
2005 0% {performance after 12 months)

During the year, the Committes reviewed whether future grants
under the amended 2002 Scheme shoukd be subject to a financial
performance underpin, in addition to the satisfaction of a TSR
performance target. The Committee has decided that future awards
under the amended 2002 Scheme may, if deemed appropriate, be
subject to performance criteria in addition to the current TSR targets.
The factars which would demonstrate a significant influence to their
decision include: a substantial drep in the Company's share price;
the presence of significant bid speculation in the sector; the adoption
of weaker targets for the TSR condition; or, a significant change

in policy away from granting options to granting only long-term
incentive awards. The Committee will continue to monitor whether
circumstances warrant the imposition of such additional criteria.

The Committes decided that for the 2005 award, the continuing use
of EPS as a performance target under the Wolseley Share Option
Plan 2003 and the use of financial measures for the annual bonus
plan provided an appropiiate balance to the use of TSR within the
amended 2002 Scheme.

The lists of comparator companies for awards made since 2001
under the 2001 cash plan (@ plan introduced to facilitate Mr Banks'
recruitment which is sitmilar in structure to the 2002 Scheme) and,
since 2002, under the 2002 Scheme are based Upon the constituent
members of the FTSE 100 as at the respective dates of grant,
excluding banks, telscommunications, (T and utility companies but
together with CRH ple and Travis Perkins plc, which compete in the
same sector as the Company. A similar group of companies will be
selected for the 2006 awards under the amended 2002 Scheme.
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Performance graph

The following graph shows the Company's TSR performance against
the performance of the FTSE 100 Index over the five-year period

to 31 July 2006. The FTSE 100 Index has been chosen as being

a broad equity market index consisting of companies comparable

in size and complexity to Wolseley.

Share options

The Wolseley Share Option Plan 2003 (“2003 Plan”) received shareholder
approval at the Annual General Meeting held in Novernber 2003.
Consequently, no further options will be granted under the Executive
Share Option Scheme 1984 {1984 Scheme™) nor under the Executive
Share Option Schemea 1989 (“1989 Scheme”) which are now closed.
No options under any such scheme have or will be granted at a
discount to the relevant middie market price at the time of grant

ana no opticn under any such scheme can be exercised unless
performance conditions have been satisfied.

All employees and Executive Directors of the Company, its
subsidiaries and joint ventures, are eligible to participate in the 2003
Plan. Participants are selected by the Committee at its discretion.
The Commitiee considers annually the levels of grant, which are
phased over time and they determine the size of each award at the
time of grant based on individual performancs, the ability of each
individual to contribute to the achievement of the performance
conditions and market levels of remuneration. Awards may not
exceed an amount equal to three times base salary for UK and
other European-based executives and five times salary for US-based
executives although the Committee may, as it so determines,

aiso use the higher limit in exceptional circumstances. It is the
Committee’s intention that for the year ending 31 July 2007, awards
will not exceed 225% of base salary (or 300% in the case of the US
Executive Directors).

No options may be granted more than 10 years after the date on
which the 2003 Plan was approved by the Company's sharsholders
and the Commiitee will formally review the 2003 Plan by no later than
November 2008.
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The Company monitors the awards made under the various employee
and discretionary share plans, which it operates, in relation to their
effect on dilution limits. Cptions are either satisfied by the issue of new
shares or shares purchased in the market (including treasury sharas).
The number of new shares, as recommended by the Association of
British Insurers ("ABL"), that may be issued to satisfy opticns granted
under the 2003 Plan or any other employes share scheme is restricted
o 10% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Cornpany aver

any roling 10 years. Further, as set out in the ABI principles and
guidelines, the number of new shares that may be issued to satisfy
options granted under the 2003 Plan or any other discretionary share
scheme is restricted to 5% of the issued ordinary share capital of

the Company over any rolling 10 years. In addition, for US-based
participants, the 2003 Plan will be restricted such that the aggregate
number of shares for which options may be granted to such
participants during the fife of the 2003 Plan will not exceed 5% of

the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at the date the
2003 Plan was approved by shareholders.

By 31 July 20086, awards had been granted resulting in shares being
issued or capable of being issued during the preceding 10 years
under all of the Company’s employee share plans representing some
6.72% of the issued ordinary share capital at that date (3.70% of the
issued ordinary share capital under the Company's discretionary
share plans).

The extent to which the options will be capable of exercise depends
on the satisfaction of a performance condition. The performance
congition is based on the growth above UK inflation of the
Company's earnings per share (“EPS”), before goodwill amortisation
and exceptional ttems measured from the ysar ended immediately
prior to grant.

For all grants made under the 2003 Pian on or after 25 November
2004 there is a single three-year perfotmance period and, in the event
that the performance conditions are not fully met on the third anniversary
of the date of grant, the options wil lapsa.
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The performance condition for options now granted under the 2003
Pian operates ¢n the following sliding scale:

Multiphe of salary werth of shares under option Total margin over UK inflation after 3 years

First 100% of salary 9%
Second 100% of salary 12%
Next 50% of salary 16%

Greater than 250% of salary 15% to 21%

The performance of the Company is initially measured over three
financial years, starting with the financial year in which the option
grant takes place. For awards granted in 2003, to the extent that the
performance target is not fully met at the end of the initial three-year
period, a subsequent retest on the fourth anniversary of grant can be
undertaken, but from the same performance-related hase prevalling
at the time the awards were made and with prorated targets for EPS
growth, Should the performance target not be met on this subsequent
date, the option wilt lapse.

Provided the performance condition has been satisfied an cption
may be exercised at any time until it iapses, 10 years from the date
of grani. No amount is payable on the award of an option.

The Committee can set different EPS targets from those described
above for future options, provided that the new conditions are no less
challenging in the circumnstances than the initial ones. Similarly, the
Commitiee can vary the terms of existing options to take account of
technical changes, for example, changes in accounting standards.
The amended target will be materially no less challenging as a result
of any such change. The Committee continues to believe that the
EPS condition is appropriate for share options, as it requires
substantial improvement in the Company’s underlying financial
performance and complements the inherent requirement for share
price growth for an option to have value.

Following the introduction of international Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS”), the Group now reports resutts on this new

basis. EPS calgulated under the IFRS basis will be utilised to measure
performance in respect of options granted since 2005 but EPS and,
to the extent required, return on capital employed, will be calculated
on as near a UK GAAP basis as possible in respect of options
granted prior to 2005 under which performance is still required

to be measured in order to assess whether options have vestead,




The table below shows the number of share options held by Directors Fﬁ';“?;e nighast micmarket orice of he Company's ordinary shares durn the vear wass 1452 pence
in office during the year under the executive share option schemes as A o Iowest s 107 pensss. The yoorand prioe Was 1140 porce. e
at 31 July 2006. {) The performance conditions 1o oplions granted under the 1984 and 1989 Schemes between

May 1994 and December 1996 are that they may not be exercised unless the growth in eamings

. . per share over a period of three consecutive financial years exceeds the growth in the UK Retall

Executive share option schemes 2005/06 Prices Index over the same period by at least 6%. Options granted in, and subsequent o, December
1997 may not be exercised unless growth in eamings per share over a period of three consecutve
financial years exceeds growih in tha UK Retail Prices Indax over the same period by at least 9%.

Oft znsu;t The number of options exercisable for Executive Directors under the 1984 and 1989 Schemes are,
Options Options at 2%05 in addition, determined by the return on capital employed achieved over the same ling three-year
Subscription exercisable N July {or date of period. For options grarted in 1997 and 1988, achieving a return on capital employsd of 15% per
Name of Director piice (p) betwesn 2006  appoirtment annum will enable S0% of options granted to become exercisable, rising on a siding scale to 100%
for achieving & return on capital esmpioyed of 20% or more. With effect from October 1899 the return
C A Banks 483.50 11.12.00 - 10.12.07 22,615 22815 on 1‘37&?,% errcllp!ove?drequired 1o per::‘jﬂ exgroise of r; 00?; of options granted was reduced from 20%
- 10 17.5% and the sliding scale was adjusted accordingly.
381.00 12.11.01-11.11.08 9,235 9,235 (¢} Performance targets not yel met.
397.00 20.10.02-19.10.09 6,815 5,815
468,00 03.05.04 - 02.05.11 400,000 400,000
467.0C 1211.04-11.11.13 135,400 135,400

543.00 04.11.05-03.11.12 213,161 225,000
743.00 27.11.06-26.11.13" 263,098 263,098
949.00 04.11.07 ~03.11.14% 163,428 153,429
1185.00 03.11.08 -02.11.15% 138,010 -

F N Hord 349.75 201003 -18.10.10 40,000 50,000
467.00 1211.04-11.11.11 75,000 75,000

54300 04.11.05-03.11.12 60,000 60,000

74300 27.11.06-~26.11.13" 65,037 85,037

949.00 04.11.07 ~03.11.14¢ 78,162 78,162

1185.00 03.11.08 ~02.11.159 68,474 -

C A § Homsby 48500 20.08.04 -~ 19.06.11 - 14,762
467.00 1211.04 -11.11.11 - 14,600

543.00 04.11.05-03.11.12 - 80,000
74300 27.11.06 -~ 26.11.13¢ 101,871 101,871
949.00 (04,71.07 ~ 03.11.14% 101,321 101,321

1185.00 03.11.08-~02.11.15% 117,179 -

R H Marchbank  349.75  20.10.03 -~ 18.10.1¢ - 15,600
467.00 1211.04 ~11.11.11 30,000 30,000

543.00 04.11.05-03.11.12 30,000 30,000

743.00 27.11.06-~ 26.11.13% 30,000 30,000

949.00 04.11.07 ~03.11.14® 34,195 34,185

1100.00  21.03.08 ~20.03.15% 50,000 50,000

1185.00  G03.11.08 ~02.11.15% 62,869 -

F W Roach 54300 04.11.05-08.11.12 25,000 25,000
74300 27.11.06-26.11.13% 30,000 30,000

948.00 04.41.07 ~03.11.14% 21,711 21,71

1185.0C 08.11.08~-02.11.,15% 27,341 27,341

1281.00  18.01.09 - 17.01.169 50,000 -

S P Webster 483.50 1212.00-11.12.07 7,000 9,450
381.00 13.11.01-12.11.08 5,000 25,000

397.00 21.10.02 - 20.10.09 22,000 22,000

349.75 23.10.03 - 22.10.10 50,000 50,000

467.00 13.11.04-1211.11 75,000 75,000

543.00 0511.06-04.11.12 80,000 80,030

74300 28.11.06-27.11.13% 90,679 90,679
949.00 056.11.07 - 04.11.14@ 79,293 79,203
1185.00  04.11.08 - 03.11.159 90,189 -
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Giains made on executive share options during the year to 31 July 2006

Value Valug

Total reafisable realisabie

Optian options 2006 2005

Name of Director prices exercised L0000 £000

483.5p 381p 349.75p 485p A67p 543p
C A Banks 11,83g¢ 11,838 80 762
F N Hord 10,000 10,000 86 204
C A 5 Hornsby 14,7620 14,6009 11,8399

68,181% 109,362 781 1,105

A H Marchbank 15,0007 15,000 149 -

S P Webster 2,450¢ 20,000¢ 22,450 213 222

Date of exercise Closing market price on date of exercise {pence}

(a) 12 December 2005 1213
() 13 December 2005 1213
(o) 16 December 2006 1220
() 11 January 2006 1283
{e} 26 January 2006 1342

The value realisable from gains made on share options is the difierence between the market value on the date of exercise and the original option price before any relevant tax deductions, although in most cases,

some or all of the shares have Been retained by the relevant director.

Savings related share option schemes

The UK- and US-based Executive Directors may, along with all eligible
employees, also participate in the UK Savings Related Share Option
Scheme (*SRSCS”) and the Employee Share Purchase Plan ("ESPP”)
respectively. Under the SRSOS, participants who enter into a savings
contract for three, five or seven vears, 10 a maximum lavel of £250
per month, are granted options to subscribe for shares in the
Comparny. Under the ESPP, a US Code 423 Plan, US participants
may enter into & one-year savings contract to a maximum fevel of
$400 per month. The Board may determine that the options granted
under either scheme may be granted at a discount. The maximum
discount, as applied to the 2006 awards, is 20% for the SRSOS and
16% for the ESPP of the average market prices used to determing the
price of the award. The following table sets out the number of share
options held under the SRSOS and ESPP by the Executive Directors.

Savings related share option schemes 2005/06

Opticns at

Subscription Options at 1 August 2005

price Cptions exercisable 31 July for date of

Name of Director {pence) on or between 2006  appointment)
C A Banks 935.85 01.65.06 - 21.05.08 - 272
§81.00 01.06.08 -~ 30.11.08 1,075 1,075

1236.00 01.05.07 - 21.05.07 222 -

F N Hord 935.85 01.05.06 ~ 21.05.06 - 272
1238.00 01.05.07 - 21.05.07 222 -

C A S Hornshy 935.85 01.05.06 - 21.05.08 - 272
1238.00 01.05.07 - 21.05.07 222 -

R H Marchbank 412.00 01.06.06 - 30.11.08 - 2,293
935.85 01.05.06 - 21.05.06 - 272

1164.00 01.08.09 - 30.11.09 803 -

F W Roach 935.85 01.05.06 -21.05.08 - 272
1236.00 01.05.07 - 21.05.07 222 -

S P Webster 412,00 01.06.06 - 30.11.08 - 917
1164.00 01.06.09 - 30.11.12 803 -
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Gains made on savings related share options
during the year to 31 July 2006

Value Value
Total realisahle reglisable
options 2006 2008
Namg of Dirsctor Option prices exercised £000 £000
412p  935.85p
C A Banks 27{ 270 1 11
F N Hord 2709 270 1 1
C A 8 Hornsby 270 270 1 1
R H Marchbank 2,2930 2709 2,563 19 1
F W Roach 2709 270 1 ~
8 P Webster 917 17 7 6
Date of exercise Closing market price on date of exercise {pence)
{a) 15 May 2008 1242
0} 5 .Jure 2008 1203

The total nurber of cptions exercised by each of Messrs Banks,
Hord, Hornshy, Marchbank and Roach under the Employee Share
Purchase Plan ("ESPP”) was reduced by 2 (which lapsed) from the
total of 272 as listed at 1 August 2005, due to exchange rate
fluctuations.




Pensions

Mr Webster, as a UK Executive Director, participates in the Wolseley
Group Retirement Benefits Plan (the "Plan®). The Plan is a defined
benefit scheme and provides benefits based on final pensionable
salaries. The Company makes contributions to the Plan based on
the recommendation of the Plan actuary. Bonuses payable ta UK
Executive Directors are not pensionable. Mr Webster currantly
contributes 7% per annum of his pensionable salary to the Plan.

The Finance Act 1983 introduced an eamings cap (the “Cap”) for
employees joining the Plan after 31 May 1989. This has the effect

of limiting the amount of an employee’s salary that can be pensioned
through a tax approved pension scheme. A Flan specific earnings cap
was introduced from 6 April 2006 when the Cap was prospectively
abolished. The current Plan specific limit, to which Mr Webster is
subject, is £107,400 per annum. The Company has agreed to provide
Mr Webster with benefits which are broadly comparable with those
that would have applied under the Plan had the Cap not been
introduced. This was, until & April 2006, provided for by payments
into a Funded Unapproved Retirement Benefits Scheme (“FURBS™.

The Committee approved the Company’s approach in response to
the UK pensions simplification, which became effective on 8 April
2006 for those Executive Directors who are, or will become, members
of the UK approved pension plan. Such Directors have the option

of either maintaining the existing pensicn promise, in which case the
executive would be responsible for any additional taxation arising;

or ceasing to accrue pension benefit above the lifetime allowance in
respect of service from 6 April 2006 and instead, receiving a cash
retirement benefit allowances, subject to income taxation consistent
with the Company’s cost neutral objective. The Gompany will not
compensate Board members for any change in their personal tax
liability. Mr Webster elected to cease to accrue pension benefit above
the lifetime allowance in the Plan and to receive a cash retirement
allowance in respect of the excess and in respect of prior underfunding
of the FURBS.

Past service benefit would remain linked to future salary increases
subject to a cap similar to the existing Cap.

Additionally, the Finance Act 1989 capped life assurance payable
through an approved pension scheme in respect of such executives.
The Company has taken out an insurance policy to cover that part
of the life assurance for Mr Webster which is in excess of the Cap.
The amount charged to the profit and loss account during the year
in respect of his future obligation was £2,988 (2005: £66,812).

Messrs Banks, Hornsby, Marchbank and Roach, who are US citizens,
participate in the defined contribution pension arrangements of
Ferguson Enterprises, Inc. In line with US practice, Messis Banks,
Hornsby and Marchbank received contributions at the level of 15%

of their eamnings (for this purpose $420,000 for Mr Banks and
$400,000 for Messrs Hornsby, Marchbank and Roach of bonus

was included with base salary). Bonus ceased 1o be included

in the calculation of pension contributions frorm 1 August 2006.
Contributions will increase (but will be limited 1o base salary) 1o 20%
for Mr Homisby and to 23% for Messrs Marchbank and Roach.
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Mr Hord, also a US citizen, participates in the defined benefit and
defined contribution plans of Stock Building Supply, inc. Mr Hord's
pensionable earnings include his bonus up to a maximum of
$742,400 as agreed when the bonus scheme was introduced in order
to preserve his pension entitlement at that time. Mr Hord is also a
member of a US non-qualified plan, which will provide a benefit for

20 years after retirement at age 60 of 40% of final pensionable salary.
At Mr Hord’s choice and with Company consent, the benefit can be
paid over a period of 1, 5, 10 or 15 years with the total amount of the
benefit, in cash terms, being the same.

The following table shows those Executive Directors participating in
money purchase pension plans and the cost of the Group's
contributions thereto:

2006 2005
Pensions: Money Purchase Plans £000 £000
C A Banks 151 138
F N Hord 5 4
C A S Hornsby 9 88
R H Marchizank 107 26
F W Roach” 52 -

“Mr Roach was appointed 1o the Board on 16 December 2005.

A US subsidiary undertaking has a commitment to a former Director,
who is a US citizen, to pay a joint survivor pension of $300,0C0 per
annum for 15 years from 1 August 1993. The net present value of
the future obligation at 31 July 2006 was £298,000 (2005: £460,110),
which has been charged in prior years’ accounts.

Additionally, Brossette, a French subsidiary undertaking, has a
commitment to a former Director, who is a French citizen, to pay

an annual pension of €221,833 (2005: €215,392), with a widow's
entitierent of 80%, subject to an annual increase based on the
agreed French pension index. The full actuarial cost of this arrangement
was provided in previous years as part of Brossette's ongoing pension
obligations. The Company is guarantor of this future pension
commitment which at 31 July 2006 was approximately £2.3 million
(2005: £1.9 million).

The following table shows the Executive Directors in office on 31 July
2008 who participated during the year in the Group's defined benefits
plans and the amounts of benefit accrued at the end of the year as i
the Director had Jeft service on 31 July 2008, the change in accrued
benefit over the year, the transfer value at both the beginning and end
of the year as well as the change in the transfer value over the year
as required by the Directors' Remuneration Report Regutations 2002.
The increase in transfer value figures represents an obligation on the
pension fund or the Company - they are not sums due or paid to

the Birector. The Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority require
additional disclosure of the change in accrued benefit net of inflation
and the transfer value of this change. These pension liabilities are
calcutated using the cash equivalent transfer value method prescribed
in the Listing Rules.
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Pensions
Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 Listing Rules

Increase/ Transter value

{decrease) of the increase/

in transfer value Increase (decrease)

2006 it pension 2006

Pension Increase in {excluding Pension 2008 {excluding

accumulated PENSIon Transfer value rmember  accumulated {net of member

Age at 2006 2006 2006 2005  contributions) 2008 revaluation)  contrbutions)

31 July 2006 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 E0DO
F N Hord 59 326 4 4,518 4,470 (110 326 (11} {134)
S P Webster 53 43 24 634 267 354 43 23 328

"As previously noted Mr Webster elected, with effect from & April 2008, to cease 1o accrue pension benefit above the Ifetime allowance in the Plan and 1o receive a cash retirement aliowance in respect of the excess and in
respect of prior underfunding of the FURBS, which became a defined contribution amangement from the same date. The figures shown in the table above reflect this change and show the information required under the
Listing Rules and unger the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 in respect of that part of his arrangements that continue 1o accrue pension on a definad benefit basis notwithstanding the changes that
came ito effect from 6 Apl 2006, The figure of £70,000 included in the columr headed “pensioniie assurance™ in the emoluments table on page 63 includas £23,117 in respect of the cash retirement allowance

payable with effect from 8 Aprit 2006.

External directorships

Executive Directors are encouraged to take on not more than one
external Non Executive Directorship on a non-competitor board,

as the Committee believes there are significant benefits to be
achieved 1o both the Company and the individual. In order to avoid
any conflict of interest, all appointments are subject to the Board's
approval. Executive Directors may retain payments received in respect
of these appointments. Mr Banks is a Non Executive Director of
Bunzl plc and of TowneBank/Peninsula (formerly Harbor Bank), for
which the annual rate of his fees is respectively £56,500 and $600
per meeting attended. Mr Banks attended one meeting of the
Board of TowneBank/Peninsula during the year (2005: £56,000 and
$0). Mr Homisby is 2 Non Executive Director of Virginia Company
Bank for which he received 3,000 stock options at $10 each on
appointment. Mr Hord is a Non Executive Director of Investors
Management Corporation for which the annual rate of his fees is
$22,000 (2005: $18,000). Mr Webster is a Non Executive Director
of Bradford and Bingley plc, for which the annual rate of his fees

is £60,000 (2005: £60,000).

Executive share ownership

A share ownership programme was introduced with effect from

1 August 2004. It is designed to encourage all Directors and
members of the Executive Committee to build up a shareholding
with 2 value of 1.5 times annual base salary for the Group Chief
Executive; 1 times annual base salary for all Executive Directors;

1 times annual fees for all Non Executive Directors, including

the Chairman; and 0.5 times annual base salary for all Executive
Committee members. For Executive Directors and members of
the Executive Committee this may be achieved by retaining shares
received as a result of participating in a Company employae share
plan (other than the shares sold to finance option exercises,

or to pay a National Insurance or income tax fiabllity or overseas
equivalent). The programme specifically excludes the need for
executives to make a personal investment should awards not vest.
Normally these levels of shareholding should be expected to be
achieved within three to five years from the time the individual is
included in the programme. The Commiftee reviewed and noted
the progress which has been macde towards meeting these targets
during the year. Directors’ current shareholdings are set out on
page 53.
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Policy on remuneration of Non Executive Directors

The remuneration of Non Executive Directors during the year under
review was made up of a basic fee and an additional fee where a
Non Executive Director acts as Chairman of either the audit or
remuneration committees and for the Director nominated as Senior
Independent Non Executive Director, Fees are reviewed from time
to time by the Board. The Non Executive Directors have letters of
engagement rather than service contracts and do not participate

in any incentive plan, nor is any pension payable in respect of their
services as Non Executive Directors, The Board's policy is that Non
Executive Directors are normally appointed for an initial term of three
years, which is then reviewed and extended for a further three-vear
period. Appointments may, however, be terminated upon six months'
notice. There are no provisions for compensation in the event of
termination. The terms and conditions of appointment of the Non
Executive Diractors are available for inspection at the Company's
registered office during normal business hours and at the Annual
General Meeting.

The Board of Directors of Wolseley plc has approved this
Remuneration report.

Y

On behalf of the Board

Andrew J Duff

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
25 September 2006
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Group income statement

Year ended 31 July 2006

2006 2005
Notes Em £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 2 14,158 11,256
Cost of sales {10,222) (8,174)
Gross profit 3,936 3,082
Distribution costs {2,413} (1,830)
Administrative expenses: amortisation of acquired intangibles {48} 13))
Administrative expenses: other (665) {468)
Administrative expenses: total (713) (474)
Other income 24 24
Operating profit 2,3 834 702
Finance revenue 4 49 27
Finance costs 5 (114) 64)
Profit before tax 769 665
Tax expense & (232) (186)
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 537 479
Earnings per share 8
Basic eamnings per sharg 80.77p 81.61p
Diluted earnings per share 90.02p 80.75p
Non-GAAP measures of performance 9
Trading profit 882 708
Profit before tax and the amortisation of acquired intangibles 817 671
Group statement of recognised
income and expense |
Year ended 31 July 2006
2006 2005
£m £m
Profit for the financial year 537 479
Net exchange adjustments offset in reserves (124) 57
Cash flow hedges
— fair value gains and losses 14 (11}
- reclassified and repotted in net profit for the vear ) -
Actuarial gain/(loss) on retirement benefits 7 )
Change in fair value of available-for-sale investments (N -
Tax [charge)/credit recognised in the income statement & (13) 34
Net (losses)/gains not recognised in the income statement (124) 76
Total recognised income for the year attributable to shareholders 413 555

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Group halance sheet

As at 31 July 2006

2006 2005
Notes £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets: goodwill 11 1,173 815
Intangible asssts: other 12 333 133
Property, plant and equipment 13 1,144 883
Deferred tax assets 15 16 55
Trade and other receivables 17 36 37
Financial assets: avaiiable-for-sale investments 14 21 6
2,723 1,829
Cunrent assets
Inventories 16 1,954 1,706
Trade and other receivables 17 2,650 2,198
Current tax receivable 1 7
Financial assets: trading investments 19 4 5
Derivative financial assets 20 10 3
Financial receivables: construction loans (secured) 21 313 262
Cash and cash eguivalents 22 416 381
5,348 4,562
Assets held for sale 18 7 8
Total assets 8,078 6,499
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 23 2,294 1,943
Current tax payable 91 70
Borrowings: construction loans (unsecured) 21 313 262
Bank loans and overdrafts 24 192 439
Obligations under finance leases 25 18 4
Detivative financial liabilities 20 29 14
Provisions 26 29 22
Retirement benefit obligations 27 29 17
2,995 2,771
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 23 25 18
Bank loans 24 2,084 1,045
Obligations under finance leases 25 57 58
Deferred 1ax lizbilities 15 88 62
Provisions 26 77 63
Retirement benefit obligations 27 160 181
2,491 1,427
Total liabilities 5,486 4,198
Net assets 2,592 2,301
Shareholders’ equity
Called up share capital 28 149 148
Share premium account 30 288 241
Foreign currency translation reserve 30 (49) 82
Retained earnings 30 2,204 1,830
Equity shareholders’ funds 2,592 2,301

The consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 129 were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 September 2008 and were signed
on its behalf by 7

e

Chip Hornsby Stephen P Webster
Group Chief Executive Group Finance Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Group cash flow statement

Year ended 31 July 2006

2006 2005
Notes £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generatad from operations 34 850 765
Interest received 45 26
Interest paid (102) 67)
Tax paid (206) (s
Net cash generated from operating activities 587 583
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of businesses (net of cash acquired) 32 (822) (408)
Disposals of businesses (nat of cash disposed o) 33 2 5
Purchases of property, plant and eguipment (326) {218
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 52 74
Purchases of intangile assets {20) 21
Purchases of investments (23) -
Proceeds from disposal of investments - 1
Net cash used in investing activities (1,137) (565}
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the issue of shares to sharsholders 31 33
Purchases of shares by Employee Benefit Trusts 27) {19)
Proceeds from new borrowings 2,486 410
Repayments of borrowings and derivatives {1,405) (234)
Finance lease capital payments U7 (5)
Dividends paki to sharehclders (162) {(145)
Net cash generated from financing activities 206 40
Net cash generated 356 58
Effects of exchange rate changes (8) (26)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 348 32
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdraits at the beginning of the year 35 {56) {89)
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the end of the year 35 292 (56)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial staterments.
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Group accounting policies

Year endad 31 July 2006

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS™)
as adopted by the European Union, including interpretations issued by
the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (*IASE") and its commitiees
and with those parts of the Companies Act 1985 applicable to
companies reporting under tFRS. The disclosures required by IFRS 1,
“First-Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards”
concerning the transition from UK GAAP to IFRS are given in note 45.
The date of transition to IFRS is 1 August 2004.

A summary of the principal accounting policies applied by the Group in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements is set out below.

Basis of accounting

The consofidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention as madified by the revaluation of available
for sale investments and financial assets and liabilities held for trading.

First-time adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards

IFRS 1, “First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards” sets out the procedures that the Group must follow
when it adopts IFRS for the first time as the basis for preparing its
consolidated financial statements. The Group is reguired to establish
its IFRS accounting policies as at 31 July 2008 and, in general, apply
these ratrospectively 1o determine the IFRS opening balance sheet at
its date of transition, 1 August 2004.

Certain gptional exemptions to this general principle are available
under IFRS 1 and the significant first-time adoption choices mads by
the Group are as follows:

¢ The Group has elected not to apply IFRS 3 retrospectively to
business combinations that took place befora 1 August 2004.
As a rasult, in the IFRS opening balance sheet, goodwill arising
from past business combinations of £666 million remains as stated
under UK GAAP at that date.
* The Group has elected to recognise all cumulative actuarial gains
and losses in relation to post employment defined benefit schemes
at the date of transition. In addition, the Group has elected to
recognise actuarial gains and losses in full in the period in which
they occur in a statement of recognised income and expense.
The Group has elected 1o apply IFRS 2, “Share Based Payment”
only 1o equity-settied awards that had not vested as at 1 August
2004 and were granted on or after 7 Movermnber 2002 and
cash-settled awards that had not vested as at 1 August 2004.
+ The Group has elected to reset the foreign currency translation
reserve to zero at 1 August 2004, Going forward, IFRS requires
amounts taken to reserves on the retranslation of foreign
subsidiaries to be recorded in a separate foreign cunmency
translation reserve and be included in the future calculation
of profit or loss on sale of the subsidiary.
The Group has elected to implement I1AS 39, “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” and IAS 32, “Financial Instruments:
Disclosure and Presentation” at its date of transition, 1 August 2004
and apply hedge accounting where the requirements of 1AS 38
are met.
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Consolidation

The consolidated financial information includes the results of the parent
Company and its subsidiary undertakings drawn up to 31 July 2006.

The trading results of businesses acquired, sold or discontinued during
the year are included in profit on ordinary activities from the date
of effective acquisition or up to the date of sale or discontinuance.

Intra-group transactions and balances and any unrealised gains
and losses arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
oh consolidation.

Foreign currencies

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
subsidiary undertakings are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the subsidiary undertaking operates
{the “functional currency™). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in sterling, which is the presentational currency of the Group
and the functional currency of the parent Company.

The trading results of overseas subsidiary undertakings are translated
into sterling using average rates of exchange ruling during the relevant
financial pericd.

The balance sheets of overseas subsidiary undertakings are transtated
into sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the period end.
Exchange differences arising between the translation into stering of
the net assets of these subsidiary undertakings at rates ruling at the
beginning and end of the year are recognised in the currency
franslation reserve as are exchange differences on foreign currency
borowings to the extent that they are used to finance or provide

a hedge against foreign curency net assets.

Changes in the fair value and the final setflement value of derivative
financial ingtruments, entered into to hedge foreign currency net
assets and that satisfy the hedging conditions of I1AS 39, are
recognised in the currency translation reserve (see the separate
dccounting policy on derivative financial instruments).

In the event that an overseas subsidiary undertaking is sold, the

gain or Y0ss on disposal recognised in the income staterment is
determined after taking into account the cumulative currancy
translation differences that are attributable to the subsidiary
undertaking concerned. As permitted by IFRS 1, the Group has
elected to deem the cumulative currency translation differences of
the Group to be £nil as at 1 August 2004. As a result the gain or loss
on disposal of an overseas subsidiary undertaking does not include
currency translation differences arising before 1 August 2004,

Foreign currency transactions entered into during the year are
translated into sterfing at the rates of exchange ruling on the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet dats. All currency translation differences are taken to the income
staternent with the exception of differences on foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are used to finance or provide

a hedge agalnst foreign currency net asssts as detailed above.




Group accounting policies

Year ended 31 July 2006

Revenue

Revienue is the amount receivable for the provision of goods and
services falling within the Group’s ordinary activities, excluding intra-
group sales, estimated and actual sales returns, trade and early
settlement discounts, value added tax and similar sales taxes.

Revenue from the provision of goods is recognised when the risks
and rewards of ownership of goods have been transferred fo the
customer. The risks and rewards of ownership of goods are deemed
to have been transferred when the goods are shipped fo, or are
picked up by, the customer.

Revenue from services, other than those that arise from construction
service confracts (see helow), are recognised when the service
provided to the customer has been completed.

Revenue in respect of construction service contracts, where the
Group is providing framing lumber installation setvices to resicential
property companies, is recognised using the percentage of complstion
method, with the percentage complete being determined by
comparing the percentage of costs incurred to date with the
estimated total costs of the contract, Losses on these cantracts,

if any, are recognised in the period when such losses become
probable and can be reasonably estimated.

Revenue from the provision of goods and all services is only
recognised when the amounts to be recognised are fixed or
determinable and collectablity is reasonably assured.

Vendor rebates

The Group enters into arrangements with certain vendors providing

for inventory purchase rebates. These purchase rebates are accrued
as eamed and are recorded inttially as a reduction in inventory with a
subsequent reduction in cost of sales when the related product is sold.

Business combinations

The Group has applied the purchase method in its accounting for
the acquisition of subsidiaries.

As permitted by IFRS 1, the Group has elected net to apply IFRS 3
"Business Combinations” to acquisitions of subsidiarias that were
recognised before 1 August 2004 and as a result the carrying amount
of goodwil recognised as an asset under UK GAAP has been brought
forward unadjusted as the cost of goodwil recognised under IFRS as
at 1 August 2004. IFRS 3 has been applied with effect from 1 August
2004 and goodwill amortisation ceased from that date.

The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and #iabilities incurred or assumed

at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable o the
acquisition. ldentifizble assets acquired and liabitities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any
minority interest.
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The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.

If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the Group’s share
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary undertaking at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiary undertakings is included in
intangible assets.

Goodwill is not amortised but is tested annually for impairment and
cartied at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and Josses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity scld.

Goodwil is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. Each of those cash-generating units represents
the lowest level within the Group at which the associated goodwill

is monitored for managerment purposes and are not larger than the
primary or secandary reporting segments determined in accordance
with IAS 14 “"Segmentai Reporting™.

Other intangible assets

An intangible asset, which is an identifiable non-mongtary asset
without physical substance, is recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the expected future economic benefits attributable to
the assat will flow to the Group and that its cost can be measured
reliably, The asset is deemed to be identifiable when it is separable
or when it arises from contractual or other legal rights.

intangible assets, primarily brands, frade names and customer
relationships, acquired as part of a business combination are
capitalised separately from goodwill and are camied at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is calcutated using the reducing balance method for
customer relationships and the straight-ine method for other
intangible assats. The cost of the intangible assets is amortised over
their estimated useful lives, which can range from Jess than a year
to 25 years, depending on the nature of the intangible asset.

Computer software that is not integral to an item of property, plant
and equipment is recognised separately as an intangible asset and
is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumutated
impairment losses. Costs include software ficences, consulting costs
attributable to the development, design and implementation of the
computer software and internal costs directly attributable to the
development, design and implementation of the computer software,
Costs in respect of training and data conversion are expensed as
incurred, Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
$0 as to charge the cost of the computer software to the income
statement over its estimated useful life (3-5 years).




Property, plant and equipment (“PPE”)

PPE is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, except for land and assets in the
course of construction, which are not depreciated and are carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. In addition,
subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as apptepriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the iterm wil
flow to the Group and the ¢ost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred,

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost of each asset to its residual value over its estimated
useful life, as follows:

Freehold buildings and long leaseholds 35-50 years

Short lsaseholds over the period of the
lease

Plant and machinery 7-10 years

Fixtures and fittings 5-7 years

Computers 3-5 years

Maotor vehicles 4 years

The residual values and useful lives of PPE are reviewed and adjusied
if appropriate at each balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs attributable to assets under construction are charged
to the income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Leased assets

Assets held under finance leases, which are leases where
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset have
transferred to the Group, are capitalised in the balance sheet and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or their useful lives, The
asset is recorded at the lower of its fair value and the present value of
the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease. The capital
elements of future obligations under finance leases are included in
liabilities in the balance sheet and analysed between current and
non-current amounts. The interest elements of future obfigations under
finance leases are charged to the income statement over the periods
of the leases and represent a constant proportion of the balance of
capital repayments outstanding in accordance with the effective
interest rate method.

Leases where the lessor retains substantially alt the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as operating leases. The cost of operating
lsases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) is charged

1o the income statement on a straight fine basis over the periods

of the leases,

Assets held for sale

Assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount wili be

recovered by sale rather than by continuing use in the business. For
this to be the case, the asset must be avallable for immediate sale in
its present candition, management must be committed to and have
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initiated a plan to selt the asset which, when initiated, was expected
10 result in a completed sale within 12 months. Assets that are
classified as held for sale are not depreciated and are measured

at the lower of their carnying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, such as goodwill, are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment and
whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate that the
carrying armount may nct be recoverable. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstance indicate that the camying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset's carying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out {FIFO} method or the
average cost method as appropriate to the nature of the transactions
in those ftems of inventory. The cost of goods purchased for resale
includes import and custom duties, transport and handling costs,
freight and packing costs and other attributable costs less trade
discounts, rebates and other subsidies. It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable seling expenses.

Taxation

Current tax represents the expected tax payable (or recoverable)
on the taxable income for the year using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and taking into
account any adjustments arising from prior years.

Deferred tax is provided in fulf, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilties and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
Deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition

of an asset or liability in a transaction, other than a business
combination, that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantialfy enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or
the deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on

investments in subsidiaries except where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probablg
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.




Group accounting policies

Year ended 31 July 2006

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, in particular, interest rate swaps and
currency swaps, are used to manage the financial risks arising from
the business activities of the Group and the financing of those
activities. There is no trading activity in derivative financial instrumenits.

At the inception of a hedging transaction entailing the use of derivative
financial instruments, the Group documents the relationship between
the hedged item and the hedging instrument together with its risk
management objective and the strafegy underfying the proposed
transaction. The Group also documents its assessment, both at the
inception of the hedging relationship and subsequently on an ongoing
basis, of the effectiveness of the hedge in offsetting movements in the
fair valuss or cash flows of the hedgad items.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised as assets and liabilities
measured at their fair values at the balance sheet date, Where
derivative financial instruments do not fulfil the criteria for hedge
accounting contained in JAS 39, changes in their fair values are
recognised in the income statement.

When hedge accounting is used, the relevant hedging relationships
are classified as fair value hedges, cash flow hedges or net
investment hedges. Where the hedging relationship is classified as a
fair value hedge, the camying amount of the hedged asset or liability is
adjusted by the increase or decrease in its fair value attributable to the
hedged rigk and the resutting gain or loss is recognised in the income
statement where, 1o the extent that the hedge is effective, it will be
offset by the change in the fair value of the hedging iInstrument. Where
the hedging relationship is classified as a cash flow hedge or as a net
investment hedge, to the extent the hedge Is effective, changes in the
fair value of the hedging instrument arising from the hedged risk are
recognised directly in equity rather than in the incotme statement.
When the hedged item is recognised in the financial statements, the
accumulated gains and {osses recognised in equity are either recycled
to the income statement or, if the hedged item results in a non-financial
asset, are recognised as adjustments 1o its initial carrying amount.

Pensions and other post retirement benefits

Contributions to defined contribution pension plans and other post
retirement benefits are charged to the income staternent as incurred.

For defined benefit pension plans and other retirement benefits, the
cost is calculated annually using the projected unit credit method and
is recognised over the average expected remaining service lives of
participating employees, in accordance with the recormmendations

of independent qualified actuaries. The cument service cost of defined
benefit plans is recorded within operating profit. The total expected
return from pension scheme assets less the total interest on pension
scheme liabilities is recorded within finance revenue if a gain and
finance costs if an expense. Past service costs resutting from
enhanced benefits are recorded within operating profit and recognised
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, or immediately if the
benefits have vested. Actuarial gains and losses, which represent
differences between the expected and actual returns on the plan
assets and the effect of changes in actuarial assumptions, are
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recognised in full in the statement of recognised income and expense
in the period in which they occur. The defined benefit liability or asset
recognised In the balance sheet comprises the net total for each plan
of the present value of the benefit obligation at the balance sheet
date, less any past service costs not vet recognised, less the fair
value of the plan assets, if any, at the balance sheet date. Where a
plan s in surplus, the asset recognised is limited to the amount of any
unrecognised past service costs and the present value of any amount
which the Group expects to recover by way of refunds or a reduction
in future contributions.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initialty at fair value and measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect alf amounts due according to the
original terms of the receivables.

Cash and cash equivoalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the
balance sheet to the extent that there is no right of offset and practice
of net settlement with cash balances.

Share capital

The Company only has one class of shares, ordinary shares, which
are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable 1o the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity &$ a deduction from the proceeds, net
of tax.

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s equity share
capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly
atributable incremental costs (net of tax), is deducted from equity
attributable to the company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled,
reissued or disposed of. Where such shares are subsequently sold

or reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly atiributabie
incremental transaction costs and the related tax effects, is included
in equity attributable to the Company's equity holders.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at cost being the fair value
of the consideration received net of transaction ¢osts incurred.

Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the proceeds {net of transaction costs} and the
redermption value being recognised in the income staterment over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the balance sheet date.




Investments

The Group classifies its investments in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; loans and
receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the investments were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its investments at initial recognition and re-evaluates
this designation at every reporting date.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets held for trading which have
been acquired principally for the purpose of sefing in the short-term.
Derivatives also fail within this category unless they are designated as
hedges and the hedge is effective for accounting purposes. Assets in
this category are classified as current.

(b} Loans and receivabies

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
and with no intention of trading. They are included in current assets,
excapt for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance
sheet date, which are classified as non-current assets, Loans

and receivables are included in trade and other receivables in the
balance sheet.

(c} Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with

fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Group’s
management has the posttive intention and ability to hold to maiurity.
They are included in non-current assets unless the investment is due
1o mature within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financlal assets are non-derivative financial assets
that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intéends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the balance sheet date.

Investrments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
far all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Irnvestments are derecogtiised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity investments are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Realised and
unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the “Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” category are
included in the income statement in the period in which they arise.
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised
in equity. When securities classified as avallable-for-sale are sold or
impalred, the accumulated fair value adjustments are included in the
income statement as gains and losses from investment securities.
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Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs and

legal claims are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely than
net that an outflow of resourcas will be required 1o settle the obligation
and the amount can be reliably estimated. Such provisions are
measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date. The discount rate used 1o determine the present value
veflects current market assessments of the time value of money.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions for insurance represent an estimate, based on historical
experience, of the ultimate cost of settling outstanding claims and
claims incurred but not reported at the balance sheet.

Share-hased payments

Share-based incentives are provided to employees under the Group’s
executive share option, long-term incentive and share purchase
schemes. The Group recognises a compensation cost in respect

of these schemes that is based on the fair value of the awards,
measured using Black-Scholes, Binomial and Monte Carlo valuation
methodologies. For eqguity-settled schemes, the fair value is
determined at the date of grant and s not subsequently re-measured
unless the conditions on which the award was granted are modified.
For cash-settled schemes, the fair valug is determined at the date of
grant and is re-measured at each balance sheet date untit the liability
is settled. Generally, the compensation cost is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period. Adjustments are made

to reflect expected and actual forfeitures during the vesting period
due to the failure to satisfy senvice conditions or non-market
performance conditions.

As permitted by IFRS 1, the Group has applied IFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment” retrospectively only to equity-settled awards that had

not vested as at 1 August 2004 and were granted on or after

T November 2002 and cash-settled awards that had not vested

as at 1 August 2004,

Dividends poayable

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in the Group's financial
staternents in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
shareholders of the Company (generally in the case of the final
dividend) or paid {in the case of interim dividends}.




Notes to the consolidated financial

statements

Year ended 31 July 2006

1. Critical accounting estimates

The preparation of financial staternents in accordance with IFRS
requires management to make estimates and assumpticns in certain
circumstances that affect reported amounts. The most sensitive
estimates affecting the financial statements are in the areas of
assessing the recoverability of receivables, the net realisable value of
inventory, the impaiment of goodwill and long-lived intangible assets,
the reserves in respect of setf-insured insurance, the consideration
received from vendors and pensions and other post-retirement benefits,

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Provision is made against accounts that in the estimation of
management may be impaired. Within each of the businesses
assessment is made locally of the recoverability of accounts
receivable based on a range of factors including the age of the
receivable and the creditworthiness of the customer. The provision
is assessed monthly with a detailed formal review of balances and
security being conducted at the full year and half year. Determining
the recoverability of an account involves estimation as to the likely
financial condition of the customer and their ability to subsequently
make payment. If the Group is cautious as to the financial conditicn
of the customer the Group may provide for accounts that are
subsequently recovered. Similarly if the Group is optimistic as to
the financial condition of the customer the Group may not provide
for an account that is subsequently determined to be irrecoverable.
Furthermore, while the Group has a large geographically dispersed
customer base, a slowdown in the markets in which the Group
operates may result in higher than expected uncollectable amounts
and therefore higher (or lower! than anticipated charges for imecoverable
receivables. In recent years the Group has not experienced significant
variation in the amount charged to the income statement in respect
of doubtful accounts, when compared to sales.

The Group held & provision for impairment of receivables at 31 July
2006 amounting to £41 milion {2005: £32 milion).

Inventories

For financial reporting purposes the Group evaluates its inventory
to ensure it is carried at the lower of cost or net realisable value.
Provision is made against slow moving, obsolete and damaged
inventories. Damaged inventories are identified and written down
through the inventory counting procedures cenducted within each
business. Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventories

is assessed by each business as part of their ongoing financial
reporting. Obsolescence is assessed based on comparison of the
level of inventory holding to the projected likely future sales. Future
sales are assessed based on historical experlence and adjusted
where the manufacturer has indicated that it will no longer continue
to manufacture the particular item. To the extent that future events
impact the saleability of inventory these provisions could vary
significantly. For example, changes in specifications or regulations
may render inventory, previously considered to have a realisable
value in excess of cost, obsolete and requiring such inventory to be
fully written off. The Group held allowances in respect of inventory
balances at 31 July 2008 amounting to £134 million (2005: £98 million).
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Impairment of long-lived assets

Wolseley periodically evaluates the net realisable value of long-lived
assets, including goodwill, other intangible assets and tangible fixed
assats, relying on a number of factors, including operating resutts,
business plans and projected future cash flows.

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, such as goodwill, are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment and
whenever events of changes in circurmnstance indicate that the
carnying amount may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstance indicate that the camying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recaverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs 10 sell and value in use. The fair value is in most cases based
on the discounted present value of the future cash flows expected
1o arise from the cash generating unit to which the goodwill relates,
or from the individual asset or asset group. Estimates are used in
deriving these cash flows and the discount rate.

The complexity of the estimation process and issues related to the
assumptions, risks and uncertainties inherent with the application of
the intangible and tangible fixed asset accounting policies affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements. In particular, if different
estimates of the projected future cash flows or a different selection
of an appropriate discount rate were made, these changes could
materially aiter the projected value of the cash flows of the asset and
as a consequence materially different amounts would be reported in
the financial statements.

Self-insured insurance

The Group operates a captive insurance company, Wolseley
Insurance Limited, which is registerad and operational in the Isle

of Man. This company provides reinsurance exclusively to certain
companies within the Group, principally to cover US casualty

and property damage risks. Provision is mace based on actuarial
assessment of the liabilities arising from the insurance coverage
provided. The actuarial assessment of the reserve for future claims
necessarily includes estimates as to the likely trend of future claims
costs and the estimates as to the emergence of further claims
subsequent to the year end. An actuarial review of claims is
performed annually. To the extent that actual claims differ from those
projected the provisions could vary significantly. At 31 July 2008,
the provision for claims arising from this insurance was £47 mifiion
(2005: £35 million).




Consideration received from vendors

The Group enters into agresments with many of its vendors providing
for inventory purchase rebates primarily upon achievement of specified
volume purchasing levels with many of these agreements applying to
sales in a calendar year. For certain agreements the rebate rises as a
proportion of purchases as higher quantities or values of purchasas
are made. The Group accrues the receipt of vendor rebates as part of
its cost of sales for products sold, taking into consideration cumulative
purchasges of inventory to date and projected purchases through

to the end of the qualifying pericd. Rebates are accrued for each
reporting period with an extensive reassessment of the rebates
earned being performed at the end of the financial year and halfway
through the financial year. The Group has agreements with numerous
and geographically dispersed suppliers, but a slowdown in the
markets in which the Group operates, or a significant change in

the profile of products purchased may result in purchases for the
remainder of the year differing significantly from those projected.
Consequently the rebate actually received may vary from that accrued
in the financial statements.

Pensions and other post retirement benefits

The Group operates defined benefit pension schemes in the United
Kingdom and in a number of overseas locations, that are accounted
for using methods that rely on actuarial assumptions to estimate costs
and liabilities for inciusion in the financial statements. These actuarial
assumptions include discount rates, assumed rates of return,

salary increases, amployee turnover rates and mortality rates.

While management believes that the actuanial assumptions are
appropriate, any significant changes to those used would affect the
balance sheet and income statement. The Group considers that the
most significant assumiptions are the discount rate and the expected
return on plan assets. The Group has estimated the sensitivity of
the financial statements to changes in these assumptions as follows:

Impact on Impact on
balance income
sheet statement
2006 2005 2006 2005
Effect of a change in discount rate £m £m £m £m
Increase of 0.5% 55 a7 3 2
Decrease of 0.5% (64) (40) {4) (@
Effect of a change in expected return on assets
Increase of 0.5% 2 2
Decrease of 0.5% @ {2)
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Notes to the consolidated financial

statements

Year ended 31 July 2006

2. Segmental analysis

The Group has a single business segment, the distribution and supply of construction materials and services.

The Group's geographical segments are Europe, consisting of UK and Ireland, France and Central Europe and North America. The Group has
determined that its geographical segments are its primary segments for IFRS reporting purposes. The revenue, operating profit and trading

profit of the Group's geographical segmenits are detailed in the following three tables.

2006 2005
Revenue m £m
UK and Ireland 2,690 2,351
France 1,725 1,644
Central Eurcpe 735 642
Europe 5,150 4,637
North America 9,008 6,619
Group 14,158 11,256

2006 2005
Operating profit £m £m
UK and lreland 188 181
France 90 97
Central Europe 30 30
European central costs (4] 4
Europe 301 304
North America 570 423
Group central costs {37) {25)
Group 834 702

2006 2005
Trading profit {ncte 9) £m £m
UK and Ireland 201 183
France o 98
Central Europe 31 3G
European central costs 4] 4
Europe 316 307
North America 603 426
Group central costs (37 (25)
Group 882 708
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Other segmental information:

Central North Group
UK and Ireland France Europe America Centre Total
For the year ended 31 Jduly 2006 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment 33 22 7 72 - 134
Amortisation of non-acqguired intangibles - - - 1 5 6
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 13 1 1 33 - 48
46 23 8 106 5 188
Additions to property, plant and equipment a3 33 18 217 4 385
Additions to non-acguired intangible assets - - 1 3 21 25
a3 33 19 220 25 330
Additions to goodwill 192 19 11 165 - 387
Additions to acquired intangible assets 83 3 3 162 - 251
Segment assets 1,812 1,063 414 4,247 74 7,610
Reconciliation to total assets as reported in the Group Balance Sheet:
Deferred tax assets 16
Financial assets - current and non-current 25
Current tax receivable 1
Derivative financial assets 10
Cash and cash equivalents 416
Total assets as reported in the Group Balance Sheet 8,078
Segment liabiltties 668 532 136 1,489 102 2,927
Reconciligtion to total liabilities as reported In the Group Balance Sheet:
Current tax payable N
Bank loans and overdrafts 2,276
Obligations under finance leases 75
Derivative financial abilities 29
Deferred tax liabilities 88
Total lizbilities as reported in the Group Balance Sheet 5,486
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Notes to the consolidated financial

statements

Year ended 31 July 2006

2. Segmental analysis continued

Central North Group
UK and Ireland France Eurcpe America Centre Total
For the year ended 31 July 2005 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 35 23 5] 49 1 114
Amortisation of non-acquired intangibles 1 1 - 1 - 3
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 2 1 - 3 - 6
38 25 6 53 1 123
Additions 1o property, plant and equiprment 54 37 12 134 1 238
Additions to non-acquired intangible assets - - - 2 18 21
54 3r 12 136 20 259
Additions to goodwill 34 7 2 78 - 121
Additions to acglired intangible assets 19 3 3 83 - 108
Segment assets 1,226 986 342 3,470 18 6,042
Reconciliation to total assets as reported in the Group Balance Shest:
Deferred tax assets 55
Financial assets ~ current and non-current 11
Current tax receivable 7
Derivative financial assets 3
Cash and cash equivalents 381
Total assets as reported in the Group Balance Sheet 6,499
Segment fiabilities 631 4 124 1,241 19 2,506
Reconciliation to total liabilities as reported in the Group Balance Sheet:
Current tax payable 70
Bank loans and overdrafts 1,484
Obfigations under finance leases 62
Derivative financial abilities 14
Deferred tax liabilities 62
Total liabilities 2s reported in the Group Balance Shest 4,198
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The Group will prepare segmental disclosures in accordance with US GAAP and disclose them in its Form 20-F for the vear ended 31 July 2006,
The disclosure requirements under US GAAP differ from those under IFRS, such that revenue, trading profit and operating profit for North America
will be furtner analysed by operating segment in the Form 20-F. In order to ensure consistency of information disclosed to all investors, the folowing

table is included in these financial statements.

2006 2005
Reveriug £m Em
US Plumbing and Heating 5,396 3,858
US Building Materials 2,966 2,243
Canada 646 512
North Ametica 9,008 6,619
Operating profit £m £m
US Plumbing and Heating 369 258
US Building Materials 168 130
Canada 4 36
North American central costs (11) (1)
North America 570 423
Trading profit (note 9) £m £rn
US Plumbing and Heating 378 260
US Building Materials 192 131
Canada 44 36
North American central costs (11) {1
North America 603 426
The change in revenue and trading profit between the years ended 31 July 2005 and 2006 can be analysed into the effects of changes of
exchange rates, the effects of acquisitions made during the financial year and the effect of taking in a full year's revenue and trading profit of
businesses acquired part way through the previcus year, with the remainder being organic change.
New Increment
acquisitions on 2005 Organic Crganic

2005 Exchange 2006  acquisitions change change 2006
Anatysis of movement in revenue £m £ £m £m £m % £m
UK and Iretand 2,351 - 277 14 48 2.1 2,690
France 1,644 1 27 17 36 2.1 1,725
Central Europe 642 {1 28 19 47 7.4 735
Europe 4,637 - 332 53 131 2.8 5,150
US Plumbing and Heating 3,858 138 264 168 971 24.3 5,396
US Building Materials 2,249 79 262 280 95 41 2,966
Canada 512 60 4 9 81 10.7 646
North America 6,619 274 530 457 1,128 16.4 9,008
Group 11,256 274 862 507 1,259 10.8 14,158
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Notes to the consolidated financial
statements

Year ended 31 July 2006

2. Segmental analysis continued

New Incrernent

acquisttions on 2005 Organic Organic
2005  Exchange 2006 acquisitions change change 2006
Anglysis of change in trading profit (note 9) £m £€m £m £m £m % £m
UK and Ireland 183 - 19 1 2 (1.1 201
France a8 - 2 - @ ©.2) 91
Central Europe 30 - 1 1 {1} 2.1) 31
Eurcpean central costs {4) - - - (3) {7
Eurcpe 307 - 22 2 (15) (4.9} 316
US Plumbing and Heating 260 9 18 10 81 30.0 378
LIS Building Materials 131 5 20 27 2] 6.0 192
Canada 36 4 - 1 3 10.0 44
North American central costs ) - - - {10} (11)
North America 426 18 38 38 83 18.6 603
Group central costs (25) - - - (12} 37
Group 708 18 60 40 56 7.8 882
3. Amounts charged in arriving at operating profit
2006 2005
fm £m
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 134 114
Amortisation of non-acquired intangible assets 6 3
{Profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment and assets available for sale {16) (11)
Staff costs (note 10) 1,943 1,526
Amartisation of acquired intangible assets 48 5]
Operating lease rentals: land and buildings 168 125
Operating lease rentals: plant and machinery 20 12
Amounts included in costs of goods sold with regpect to inventory 10,007 8,182
Amourtts charged to write inventory down o net realisable value 32 11
Trade receivables impairmert 5 (14
Amounts payable to the auditors:
Audit fees 8.1 3.5
Other assurance senvices 0.3 0.3
Taxation 4.0 28
Due diligence reviews 0.2 0.4
Other services - 0.2
Total fees payable to the auditors 9.6 7.2
The increase in audit fees mainly reflects the audit cost associated with S404 of the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act.
4. Finance revenue
2006 2005
£m £m
Interest receivable 49 27

Net interest receivable on construction loans included in finance revenue and finance costs amounted 1o £12 million (2005: £9 million),
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5. Finance costs

2006 2005
£m £m
Interest payabie
— Bank 'oans and overdrafts 110 55
- Finance lease charges 3 3
Net pension finance cost 1 7
Valuation losses/{gains) on financial instruments
— Derivatives held at fair value through profit and loss 27 (1)
- Loans in a fair value hedging relationship (26) -
- Recycled from equity )] -
Total finance costs 114 64
6. Taxation
2006 2005
The tax charge for the year comprises: fm £m
Current year tax charge 230 150
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years 4] 8)
Total curvent tax charge 223 142
Deferred tax charge: origination and reversal of temporary differences 9 44
Total tax charge 232 186
2006 2005
Tax on items charged to equity: £m £m
Current tax (charge)/credit on exchange movements offset in reserves M 25
Deferred tax (charge)/credit on changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges {4 3
Deferred tax (charge)/credit on actuarial loss on retirement benefits ) 2
Deferred tax credit/{charge} on avaitable for sale investments 2 -
Deferred tax (charge)/credit on share based payments 2 4
Total tax on items charged to equity (13) 34
2006 2005
Tax reconciliation: % %
Statutory UK corparation tax rate 30 30
Prior year amounts {1 M
Non deductible and non-taxable items {6) ]
Higher average tax rates in overseas companies 5 3
Effective current tax rate on profit on ordinary activities before tax (and the amortisation of intangibles) 28 28
2006 2005
The tax expense can be analysed as follows: £m £m
UK 18 38
Overseas 205 104
Current tax 223 142
UK 4 7
Qverseas 5 37
Deferred tax ] 44
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Notes to the consolidated financial
statements

Year ended 31 July 2006

7. Dividends
2006 2005
£m £m
Final paid for the year ended 31 July 2005 of 17.6 pence per share (year ended 31 July 2004; 16.0 pence) 104 94
Interim paid for the year ended 31 July 20086 of 8.85 pence per share (year ended 31 July 2005: 8.8 pencs) 58 51
Total 27.45 pence per share (2005: 24.8 pence) 162 145
Proposed final for the year ended 31 July 2006 of 19.55 pence per share (year ended 31 July 2005: 17.6 pence} 128 104

The final dividend will be authorised by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and is not included as a liability in these financial
statements. The final dividend is based on an anticipated 657 miilion shares in issue on 6 October 20086, an increase of 59 milion shares
on the shares in issue as at 31 July 2006 due to a proposed placing.

8. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share of 80.77 pence {2005: 81.61 pence) is calculated on the profit for the year aftributable to equity shareholders of
£537 million (2005: £479 million) on a weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year of 592 million (2005; 587 miilion).
As detailed in note 9 below, the Group believes that profit measures before the amortisation of acquired intangibles provide valuable additional
information for users of the financial statements. Basic earnings per shars, before the amortisation of acquired intangibles, has, therefore, been
presented in the following table.

2006 2005
Before amortisation of acquired intangibles 98.90p 82.60p
Add back: amortisation of acquired intangibles 8.13)p ©.99p
Basic earnings per share 90.77p 8161p

The impact of all potentially dilutive share options on earnings per share would be to increase the weighted average number of shares in issue
to 597 miiion (2005: 533 million) and to reduce basic earnings per share to $0.02 pence (2005: 80.75 pence). Diluted eamnings per share
before amortisation of acquired intangibles is 98.08 pence (2005: 81.74 pence).

9. Non-GAAP measures of performance

Trading profit is defined as operating profit before the amortisation of acquired intangibles and is a non-GAAP measure. The current businesses
within the Group have arisen through internal organic growth and through acquisition. Operating profit includes only the amortisation of acquired
intangibles arising on those businesses that have been acquired subsequent to 31 July 2004 and as such does not reflect equally the
performance of businesses acquired prior to 31 July 2004 {where no amortisation of acquired intangibles was recognised), businesses that
have developed organically (where no intangibles are attributed) and those businesses more recently acquired (where amortisation of acquired
intangibles is charged). The Group believes that trading profit provides valuable additional information for users of the financial statements in
assessing the Group’s performance since it provides information on the performance of the business that local managers are more directly able
to influence and on a basis consistent across the Group.

2006 2005
£m £m
Operating profit 834 702
Add back: amortisation of acquired intangibles 48 6
Trading profit 882 708
Profit before tax 769 665
Add back: amartisation of acquired intangibles 48 6
Profit before tax and the amortisation of acquired intangibles 817 671
10. Employee information and Directors’ remuneration
2006 2005
Employee beneft costs: m m
Wages and salaries 1,630 1,257
Social security costs 249 210
Pension costs — Defined contribution schemes 28 19
Pension costs — Defined benefit schemes (note 27) 14 17
Share options granted to directors and employees 22 23
Total employee benefit costs 1,843 1,526

Details of Directors’ remuneration and share opticns are set out in the Remuneration report on pages 62 to 70, which form part of these financial
statements. The aggregate emoluments for all key management are set out in note 36.
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10. Employee information and Directors’ remuneration continued

Average weekly number of employees: 2006 2005
UK and Irefang 13,869 12,688
France 9,631 9,196
Central Europe 2,983 2,767
Europe 26,483 24,651
North America 38,740 29,017
Group 65,223 53,668

The average weekly number of Group and Europe head office employees is included in UK and Irefand in the above table.

11. Intangible assets: goodwill

£m
Cost and net book value
At 1 August 2004 666
Exchange rate adjustment 31
Additions 120
Disposals 2)
At 31 July 2005 815
Exchange rate adjustment (29)
Additions 3g7
Disposals -
At 31 July 2006 1,173
The carrying value of gocdwill by segment is as follows:

2006 2005
fm £m

UK and Ireland 410 219
France 153 135
Central Europe 61 50
Europe 624 404
Notth America 549 411
Group 1,173 815

All goodwill has arisen from business combinations. On transition to IFRS, the balance of gooawill as measured under UK GAAP was allocated
to cash generating units (CGUs). These are independeant sources of income streams and represent the lowest level within the Group at which
the associated goodwitl is monitored for management purposes, which may be at country, divisional, brand or regional level. Goodwill arising
on business combinations after 1 August 2004 has been allocated to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that business combination.

The Group tests goodwill annually for impaimment, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUSs are determined from value in use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections based

on five year financial forecasts approved by management. The key assumptions for these forecasts are those regarding revenue growth, net
margin and the level of working capital required to support trading, which management estimates based on past experience and expectations
of future changes in the market. To prepare value in use calculations, the cash flow forecasts are extrapolated after the five-year period at the
estimated average long-term inflation rate for each market ranging from 1% to 3%) and discounted back to present value. The key assumption
is the discount rate, which uses an estimate of the Group's weighted average cost of capital, based on the three-month historic volatility of
Wolseley shares and on benchmark interest rates, adjusted for the risk attributable to individual CGUs.

impairment tests were performed for all CGUs during the year ended 31 July 2008. No impairments were identified.
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12. Intangible assets: other

Software Trade names Customer

costs and brands  relationships Other Totai
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 August 2005 40 14 87 7 148
Exchange rate adjustment - (1) (12) - (13)
Additions 25 26 220 5 276
Disposals (12) - - - (12)
At 31 July 2008 53 39 295 12 399
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 August 2005 9 - 4 2 15
Exchange rate adjustment (1) - @) - (3)
Charge for the year 6 5 40 3 54
At 31 July 20086 14 5 42 5 66
Net book amount at 31 July 2006 39 34 253 7 333
Software Trade names Customer
costs and brands  relationships Cther Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 August 2004 19 - - - 19
Additions 21 14 87 7 129
At 31 July 2005 40 14 87 7 148
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 August 2004 2] - - - &
Charge for the year 3 - 4 2 9
AL 31 July 2005 ] - 4 2 15
Net book amount at 31 July 2005 31 14 83 5 133
Net book amount at 1 August 2004 13 - - - 13

Software costs are either purchases from third parties or intemally generated. Other intangible assets arise on businass combinations. Included
in the amounts above are £28 million (2005: £25 million) relating to assets under construction.
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13. Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings

Operating Plant
Finance leasehaold machinery
Freehold legse  improvernents equipment Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 August 2005 619 56 146 717 1,538
Exchange rate adjustment (17) (1} (10) (29 (67)
MNew buginesses 46 1 6 46 99
Additions 104 8 48 205 365
Disposals and transfers {25) - @ (53) {80)
Property reclassified as held for sale 7 - - - {7)
At 31 July 2006 720 64 188 886 1,858
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 August 2005 131 11 81 432 655
Exchange rate adjustment {3) M 3 {15) @2)
Charge for the year
- owned assets 22 - 12 85 119
- leased assets - - 14 15
Disposals and transfers ®) - @ 44 (52)
Property reclassified as held for saie (1 - - - M
At 31 July 2008 143 11 88 472 714
Owned assets 577 - 100 375 1,052
Assets under finance leases - 53 - 39 92
Net book amount at 31 July 2006 577 53 100 414 1,144
Net book amount at 1 August 2005 488 45 65 285 883
Cost
At 1 August 2004 507 50 121 630 1,308
Exchange rate adjustment 19 2 3 20 44
New businesses 67 - 1 12 80
Additions 86 6 24 122 238
Disposals and transfers &4 @ 3) 67 (126)
Property reclassified as held for sale {6) - - - &
At 31 July 2005 619 56 146 77 1,538
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 August 2004 117 11 66 395 589
Exchange rate adjustment 3 - 2 10 15
Charge for the year
- owned assets 16 - 15 72 103
- leased assets - 1 - 10 11
Disposals and transfers 3 (1) 23] (55) 1)
Property reclassifiec as held for sale @ - - - (@)
At 31 Juty 2005 131 11 a1 432 655
Owned assets 488 - 65 253 806
Assets under finance leases - 45 - 32 77
Net book amount at 31 July 2005 488 45 65 285 883
Net book amount at 1 August 2004 350 39 55 235 719

Included in the amounts above are £88 million (2005: £48 milion) relating to assets undar construction. At 31 July 2006 £92 milion of property,
plant and equipment had been pledged as security for liabilities (2005: £77 million).
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14. Financial assets — available for sale investments

2006 2005
£m £m
Financial assets 21 G

These assets comprise investments in listed and unlisted companies, tradeable government securities and fiduciary deposits. They are primarily
equity securities that have no fixed maturity or yield.

15. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The deferred tax assets and liabilities shown in the balance shest are analysed as follows:;

2006 2005
Deferred tax m om
Ceferred tax assets 16 55
Defered tax liabiliies (88) (82)

72) M
Current 67) (40}
Non-current (5 a3
72) (7

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the Group and movernents thereon during the current and prior
reporting period:

Goodwill Share Retirement

and based benefit
intangibles payment  Properties  obligations Inventory Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 August 2004 () 15 40 29 (26) 72 43
Charge to income (10) g 1 45 {16} (72) (44)
Charge 1o equity - 4 - 2 - 3 9
Acquisition of subsidiaries (13} - - - - 4 ©
Currency translation adjustrent - ) - 3 - 2 (6)
At 31 July 2005 (30) 26 (39) 73 (42 5 ]
Charge to income 9 (7) @ &) (15) 7 @
Charge to equity - ®) - 3 - 2 (11)
Acquisition of subsidiaries {45 - {5) 3 - 4 &)
Currency translation adjustment 2 - - (1 3 2 5]
At 31 July 2006 (64) 13 (46) 71 54 8 (72)

There are other potential deferred tax assets in relation to tax losses totalling £43 million (2005: £13 miflion) that have not been recognised
on the basis that their future economic benefit is uncertain, Al of these losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

No deferred tax liabifity has been recognised in respect of a further £459 million {2005: £406 million} of unremitted earnings of subsidiaries
because the Group is in a position te control the timing of reversal of the asscciated temporary deferred tax differences and it is probable
that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Wolseley ple Annual Report and Accounts 2006
92 Notes to the consaolidated financial statements




16. Inventories

2008 2005
£m £
Goods purchased for resale 1,954 1,706

£10,007 milion has been charged to operating profit in relation to inventories recognised as an expense in the year (2003: £8,182 miilion). in
addition an amount of £32 million has been charged to the income statement to write down inventories to net realisable value (2005: charge
of £11 million).

17. Trade and other receivables

2006 2005
Current £m £m
Trade receivables 2,309 1,864
Less: provision for impaiment 41) (32)
Net trade receivables 2,268 1,832
Other receivables 107 131
Prepayments and accrued income 275 135
2,650 2,198
Non-current
Other receivables 36 37

£5 million has been charged to operating profit in respect of impairment losses recognised in the year on receivables (2005: credit of

£14 million). Other recelvables classified as non-current include an amount of £31 million (2005: £32 million} which has been discounted at a
rate of 5.2% (2005: 4.5%) due to the long-term nature of the receivable. The fair value of the remaining balances in trade and other receivables
approximates to book value.

Concentration of credit risk in trade receivables is limited as the Group’s customer base is large and unrelated. Accordingly, management
consider that there is no further credit risk provision required above the current provision for impairment.

18. Assets held for sale

2006 2005

£m £m

Properties awaiting disposal 7 8
19. Financial assets: trading investments

2006 2005

£m £m

US Life Assurance policies {denominated in US dollars) 4 5

These securities have no fixed maturity or yield.
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20. Derivative financial instruments

2006 2005
Gurrent assets £m £m
Interest rate swaps 10 2
Currency swaps: at fair value through profit and loss - 1
Derivative financial assets 10 3

2006 2005
Current liabilities : £m £m
interest rate swaps 27 2
Currency swaps: net investment hedge 2 (12}
Derivative financial fiabilities {29) (14]

Interest rate swaps
The Group uses interest rate swaps to manage its exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings. The fair value of interest rate swaps
is estimated on the basis of the market values of equivalent instruments at the balance sheet date.

The Group's bank borrowings generally attract variable interest rates based on 6 month LIBOR. Certain interest rate swaps are designated and
effective as cash fiow hedges, with the valuation gains being deferred in equity until realised.

2006 2005
Hedge of interest rate cash flows £m £m
At 1 August - (1}
Valuation gains on effective hedges credited to equity 9 1
Valuation losses charged to income statement (1) -
At 31 July 8 -

The Group’s private placement borrowings are at fixed rates. Certain interest rate swaps are designated as hedges of the fair values of these
bomrowings. The movement in fair value of these interest rate swaps has been analysed into a proportion that is effective as a hedge and a
proportion that is ineffective: both pertions have been charged to the income statement with the effective portion offsetting the change in fair
value of the hedged borrowings. The ineffective portion was less than £1 million.

2006 2005
Hedge of fair value of fixed interest borrowings £m £m
At 1 August - -
Valuation losses charged to income statement (26) -
Exchange 1 -
At 31 July (25) -

Outstanding interest rate swap contracts at 31 July 2006 comprised fixed interest payable on notional principal of US$850 miion, €770 millon
and £7 million (2005; US$575 million and €785 milion) and fixed interest receivable on notional principal of US$1,079 million. The contracts
expire between September 2006 and November 2020 (2005: August 2005 and August 2009) and the geins deferred in equity will reverse in
the income staterment over that period. The fixed interest rates vary between 2.313% and £.415% (2005: 2.0375% and 4.3275%).
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Currency swaps

The Group uses currency swaps either to obtain the optimum return on its surpius funds or to hedge cash flows in respect of committed
transactions. The fair value of currency swaps has been estimated as the cost of closing out the contracts using market prices at the balance
sheset date.

At the balance sheet date the Group had entered into certain short-term currency swaps amounting to assets of US$3 milioh (2005: assets
of €130 million, C$33 million and CHF 22 million) and liabiities of £2 million (2005: £4 milion, US$53 milion and C$170 million) which were held
at fair value through the income statement,

2006 2005
At fair valye through income statement £m £m
At 1 August 1 -
Valuation gains charged to income statement - 1
Transferred to ‘net investment in overseas operations’ (1 -
At 31 July - 1

At the balance shest date the Group had entered into certain short-term currency swaps amounting to assets of US$E27 miilion, €222 million
and CHF 22 million (2005: asset of £287 milion) and liabilities of £419 milion and C$169 million {2005: liabilities of US$525 million) which were
designated and effective as hedges of net investments in overseas operations. Valuation gains have bheen deferred in equity.

2006 2005

Hedge of net investment in overseas operations £m £m

At 1 August (12) -

Transferred from ‘at fair value through income statement’ 1 -

Cash settlements in the pericd 4 -

Valuation gains/fosses) on effective hedges credited/{charged) to equity 5 {12)

At 31 July 2 (12)
2 1. Construction loans

2006 2005

£m £m

Construction loans receivable (secured) 313 2682

Borrowings to finance construction loans {urnsecured) (313) (262}

Construction loans receivable, which are secured principally against homes in the course of construction or completed homes awaiting saie,
are made to customers of Stock Building Supply Inc and are all denominated in US dollars, These loans have an average maturity of @ months
(2005:; 8 months). As at 31 July 20086, the effective rate of interest thereon was 8.85% (2005 8.98%).
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22. Cash and cash equivalents

2006 2005

£m £m

Cash and cash eguivaients 359 371
Short-term bank deposits 57 10
Total cash and cash equivalents 416 381

The effective interest rate as at 31 July 2006 on cash and cash equivalents was 2.1% (2005: 2.0%). The average maturity of short-term bank
deposits was 1 week (2005: 1 week). The fair values of cash and cash equivalents approximate to book value due to their short maturities.

The currency analysis of cash and cash equivaients is as follows:

Sterling 104 33
US dollar 230 224
Euro 56 a4
Cther 26 30
Total 416 381

23. Trade and other payables

2006 2005
Current m £m
Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade payables 1,504 1,273
Bills of exchange payable 188 194
Other tax and social security 142 102
Cther payables 148 8C
Share based payment liabilities - 12
Accruals 305 280
Deferred income 7 2
Total trade and other payables 2,294 1,843
Non-current
Other payables 25 18

The fair value of other payables falling due after more than one year is estimated at £21 mifion (2005: £15 million), by discounting the
anticipated cash flows at a money market rate of appropriate maturity. The fair value of other amounts included in trade and other payables
approximates to book value.
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24. Bank loans and overdrafts

2006 2005
Current fm £m
Bank overdrafts 124 437
Bank loans 68 2
Total bank loans and overdrafts 192 438
The fair values of current overdrafts and loans approximate to book value due to their short maturities.
The currency analysis of bank loans and overdrafis is as follows:
Sterling - -
US dollar 65 265
Eurc 116 122
Other 11 52
Total 192 439

2006 2005
Non-current £fm £m
Bank loans 1,465 1,043
Cther loans 1 1
Senior unsecured notes 617 -
US Industrial Revenue Bonds 1 1
Tatal bank loans 2,084 1,045
The non-cusrent loans are repayable as follows:
Due in one t0 two years 35 516
Due in two to five years 403 529
Due in over five years 1,646 -
Total 2,084 1,045

At 31 July 2006, £851 millien of loans carried a fixed interest rate (2005: £34 million). The weighted average interast rate paid on fixed
interest borrowings is 5.0% (2005: 6.2%,). Interest receipts and payments on the floating rate assets and liabilities are determined by
reference 1o short-term benchmark rates applicable to the relevant currency or market, such as LIBOR.
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24. Bank loans and overdrafts continued

The fair value of fixed interest rate loans payable after one year is £621 milion, compared to their book value of £626 milion (2005: no material
difference). The floating rate loans payable after one year generally atiract variable interest rates based on 6 month LIBOR. Thus the fair value
of thesa instruments approximates to their book value.

The Group's undrawn committed facilities amount to £780 million. Further details of these centrally managed facilities and the financial risk
management activities of the Group are set out in the Performance review on pages 39 to 41.

The currency analysis of non-current loans is as follows:

2006 2005

£m £m

Sterling 136 1
US dollar 1,246 485
Euro 645 558
Other cumrencies 57 31
Total 2,084 1,045

The Group’s financial assets and fabilities are exposed to both fair value interest rate risk {fixed rate borrowings) and cash flow interest rate risk
(floating rate borrowings). The interest rate profile of the financial assets and liabilities that comprised the Group's net debt at 31 July 2006 and
31 July 20085, after incluging the effect of interast rate swaps, are set out in the following tables.

Assets at 31 July 2006 Weighted
Weighted average time
average fixed for which

Currency interest rate  rate is fixed
Currency Floating Fixed swaps Total % Years
Sterling 104 - - 104 - -
US dollars 550 - - 550 - -
Euros 63 - - 683 - -
Other currencies 26 - - 26 - -
Total 743 - - 743
Liabilities at 31 July 2006 Weighted

Weighted  average time
average fixed for which

Currency interest rate  rate is fixed

Currency Fioating Fixed SWaps Total % Years

Sterling (135) (5) 419 (559) 9.5 10.0

US dollars (1,255) {(423) 336 (1,342 5.0 2.9

Euros (235) (563) 152 (6486) 3.0 20

Other cunrencies 143) (32) (71) (146) 5.6 44
Total {1,668) (1,023) @ (2,693)

Assets at 31 July 2005 Weighted

Weighted average time

average fixed for which

Currency interest rate  rate is fixed

Currency Floating Fixed SWaps Total % Years

Sterling 33 - - 33 - -

US dollars 4N - - 41 - -

Eurcs 100 - - 100 - -

Other currencies 30 - - 30 - -
Total 654 - - 854
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Liabilities at 31 July 2005 Waightod
Weighted average time
average fixed for which

Currency interest rate  rate is fixed
Currency Floating Fixed swaps Total % Years
Sterling - 3] 282 277 - -
US dollars (725) (274 329 (1,328) 4.2 15
Eurgs (250} (463) a0 {623) 3.0 2.6
Cther currencies (53) (38) (54 (145) 8.0 1.4
Total (1.028) {(780) {11) (1,819)

Hedge of net investment in overseas operations

The Group has financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies which have been designated as hedges of the net investment in its
subsidiaries in North America and Europe. The value of these financial instruments at the balance sheet date was:

2006 2005

fm £m

US dollar 926 922
Euro 611 573
Other cumencies 112 106
Total 1,649 1,601

The gain on transtation of the borrowings into sterling of £58 million (2005: loss of £36 milion} has been taken to the translation reserve.

25. Ohligations under finance leases

Gross Gross Net Net
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m fm £m
Due within one year 24 6 18 4
Due in one to five years 50 30 37 23
Due in over five years 28 42 20 35
102 78 75 62
Less: future finance charges 27) (18)
Present value of finance lease obligations 75 62
Current 18 4
Non current 57 58
Total obligations under finance leases 75 62

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its property, plant and equipment under finance leases. The average lease term is ¥ years
(2005: 7 years). For the year ended 31 July 2006, the average effective borrowing rate was 4.7% (2005: 4.9%). Finance lease obligations
included above are secured against the asssts concerned.

The cumrency analysis of the present value of finance lease obligations is as follows:

Net Net

2006 2005

£m £m

Sterling 5 4
US dollar 26 16
Euro 37 34
Other 7 8
Total 75 652
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2b. Provisions

Environmenta! Wolselay Other
and legal Insurance  provisions Total
£m £m £m £m
At 1 August 2004 30 33 20 a3
Utllised in the year - )] {1} (t0)
Charge for the year 2 10 1 13
Transfers - - 3 (3)
New businesses - - - -
Exchange difference 1 1 - 2
At 31 July 2005 33 35 17 85
Utilised in the year - @) () (12)
Charge for the year 6 23 6 35
Transfers 1 - {4 (3)
New businesses 1 - 4 5
Exchange differences 2 @ - 4
At 31 July 2006 39 47 20 106
Provisions have been analysed between current and non current as follows:
Environmental Wolseley Other
and legal Insurance provisions Toral
At 31 July 2006 £m £m £m £m
Current 8 13 8 28
Non current 3 34 12 77
Total provisions 39 47 20 106
Environmental Wolscley Cther
and legat Insurance  provisions Total
At 31 July 2005 £m £m £m £m
Current 2 9 11 22
Non current 31 26 6 63
Total provisions 33 35 17 85

Woiseley Insurance provisions represent an estimate, based cn historical experience, of the ultimate cost of settling cutstanding and potential
claims on certain risks retained by the Group {principally US casualty and global property damage).

Environmental and legal liabilities include known and potential legal claims and environmental liabilities arising from past events where it is
probable that a payment will be made and the amount of such payment can be reasonably estimated. Included in this provision is an amount
of £31 million (2005: £32 milion) related to ashestos litigation involving certain Group companies. This liability is fully covered by insurance and
accordingly an equivalent insurance receivable has been recorded in ‘Trade and other receivables’ (note 17). The liability has been actuarially
determined as at 31 July 2008 based on advice from independent professional advisors. The provision and the related receivable have been
stated on a discounted basis using a long-term discount rate of 5.2% (2005: 4.5%). The level of insurance cover available significantly exceeds
the expected level of future claims and no profit or cash flow impact is therefore expected to arise in the foreseeable future.
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27. Retirement benefit obligations
(i) Description of plans

United Kingdom

The principal plan cperated for UK employees is the Wolseley Group Retirement Benefits Plan which provides benefits based on final
pensionable salaries. The assets are held in separate trustee administered funds. The plan's retirement benefits are funded by a contribution
from employees with the balance being paid by Group companies. The contribution rates paid by employees at 31 July 2006 are either 5% or
6% of earnings depending on the level of benefits that were accruing at that date. The Group and employee contribution rates are calculated
on the Projected Unit Method and agreed with an independent consulting actuary.

Qutside the United Kingdom

North America

The principal plans operated for US employees are defined contribution schemes, which are established in accordance with US 401k rules.
Companies contribute to both employee compensation deferral and profit sharing plans. Contributions are charged to the income statement in
the period in which they fall due. In the year to 31 July 2005 the cost of defined contribution plans charged to the income statement was

£23 milion (2005: £18 million).

In addition, the Group operates three defined benefit schemes in the United States. In Canada a defined benefit scheme and a defined
contribution scheme are operated. Two of the US plans and the Canadian plan are funded; two plans are closed to new entrants. The majority
of assets are held in trustee administered funds independent of the assets of the companies. The closed plans how provide a minimum pension
guarantee in conjunction with a defined contribution plan. The remaining plans provide benefits based con final pensionable salaries. The
contribution rate is calculated on the Projected Unit (credit) Method as agreed with independent consulting actuaries.

Europe

Both defined contribution and defined berefit schemes are operated. Liabilities arising under defined benefit schemes are calculated in
accordance with actuarial advice. Contributions to defined contribution schemes are accounted for in the period in which they fall due. The cost
of defined contribution schemes charged to the income statement was £5 million (2005: £1 million).

Post retirement health care
There are no material obligations 1o provide post retirement health care benefits.

The Group expects to contribute £23 million to the UK defined benefit scheme in the year ending 31 July 2007 and £15 millicn to the non-UK
schemes.

(i} Financial impact of plans

2006 2003
As disclosed in the balance sheet £m £m
Current liability (29) (7
Non-current liabifity {160) {181)
Total liability {189) (198)
2006 2006 2005 2005
Anaiysis of balance sheet liablity £m fm £m £m
Fair value of plan assets:
UK 501 404
Non-UK 112 105
613 509
Prasenit value of defined benefit obligation:
UK (619) (527)
Non-UK (182) (180)
(801) (707)
Net deficit ’ {188) (198)
Unrecognised past service cost 1 -
Unrecognised surplus @ -
Net liability recognised in balance sheet (189) (198)
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27. Retirement benefit obligations continued

{ii) Financial impact of plans (continued)

2006 2005

Analysis of total expense recognised in income statement fm £m
Current service cost 19 18
Past service cost 9 _
Curtailment 7 -
Setiiernent (5) )
Charged to administrative expenses 14 17
Interest on pension liabilities 36 35
Expected return on scheme assels {35} {28}
Charged to finance costs 1 7
Total expense recognised in income statement 15 24
2006 2005

Analysis of amount recognised in the staterment of recognised income and expense £m £m
Actuarial gainfloss) 8 &
Unrecognised past service cost 1 -
Unrecognisad surplus @ -
7 (4)

Deferred tax thereon 2) 2
Total amount recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense 5 2

The cumulative amount of actuarial gains recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense was a gain of £3 milion (2005: loss

of £4 millicn).

The assets in the UK schemes and the expected rates of return were:

2006 2005
UK

Long-term Long-term

rate of rate of
return Value at retum Value at
expected at 31 July expected at 31 Jduly
31 July 2006 31 July 2005
2006 £m 2005 £m
Equities T7.4% 344 7.3% 354
Bonds 4.2% 154 4.1% 49
COther 5.0% 3 5.0% 1
Total market value of assets 6.5% 501 6.9% 404
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The assets in the non-UK schemes and the expected rates of return were:

2006 2005
non-UK non-UK
Long-term lLong-term
rate of rate of
return Value at retum Value at
expected at 31 July expectedat 31 July
31 July 2006 31 July 2005
2006 £m 2005 £m
Equities 8.0% 59 7.2% 55
Bonds 5.1% 39 4.8% 38
Property 5.3% 9 5.3% 9
Other 3.0% 5 3.0% 3
Total market value of assets 6.6% 112 6.2% 105
UK Non-UK Total UK Non-UK Total
2006 2006 2006 2005 2005 2005
Fair value of plan assets £m fm £m £m £m £m
At 1 August 404 105 509 323 73 396
Expected return on plan assets 28 7 35 22 6 28
Actuarial gain 36 - 36 46 4 50
Employer's contributions 24 6 30 20 7 27
Participants’ contributions 8 1 9 5 1 3]
Acguisition 17 - 17 - 17 17
Transfers - 1 1 - - -
Benefits paid {16) (&) (22) 12} (8) (20
Currency translation - 2 2) - 5 5
At 31 July 501 112 613 404 1056 509
Actual return on plan assets 64 7 71 68 10 78

Tha expected long-term rates of return for equities have been determined by refererice to government biond rates (minimum risk rates) in the
countries In which the plans are based. To reflect the additional risks associated with equities, expected long-tenm rates of return on equities
include a risk premium. These risk premiums are long-term assumptions and were set after taking actuarial advice and considering the
assumptions used by listed companies. The expected long-tenm rates of return far other assets are determined in 2 similar way, i.e. by using
an appropriate risk premium relative to government bonds in the relevant country. For the UK scheme a premium of 3.0% per vear as at

31 July 2006 (2005: 3.0%) was applied to the expected return from government bonds. For the principal overseas schemes in the USA,
Canada and Switzerland a similar approach was adopted with returns set by reference to long-term bond rates after taking actuarial advice.

The Group's investment strategy for its funded post employment plans is decided locally by the Group and, if relevant, the trustees of the plan
and takes account of the relevant statutory requirements. The Group's objective for the investment strategy is to achieve a target rate of return
in excess of the increase in the liabilities, while taking an acceptable amount of investment risk relative to the liabilities.

This objective is implemented by using specific aliocations to a variety of asset classes that are expected over the long-term 1o deliver the target
rate of return. Most investment strategies have significant allocations to equities, with the intention being that this will result in the ongoing cost
to the Group of the past employment plans being fower over the long-term and within acceptable boundaries of risk.

For the UK scheme the policy is to invest approximately 75% of the assets in equities and 25% in other asset classes, principally bonds.

The investment strategy is subject to regular review by the scheme trustees in consultation with the Group. For the overseas schemes the
investment strategy involves the investment in defined levels of predominantly eguities with the remainder of the assets being invested in cash
and bonds.
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27. Retirement benefit obligations continued

(i} Financial impact of plans (continued)

UK Non-UK Total UK Nen-UK Tota
2006 2006 2006 2005 2005 2005
Present vaiue of defined benefit obligaticn £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 August 527 180 707 460 131 591
Current service cost 14 5 18 13 5 8
Past service cost - 1 1 - - -
Curtailment and settlernent - (6) {&) - {1) (1)
Interest cost 26 10 36 26 9 35
Participants” contributions 8 1 9 5 1 6
Acquisitions 28 - 28 - 17 17
Benefits paid (16) (5] {22) {12) (10 22)
Transfers - 5 5 - - -
Actuarial {gainyloss 32 {4) 28 35 19 54
Currency translation - 4 (4) - 9 9
At 31 July 619 182 801 527 180 707
2006 2005
Analysis of present value of defined benefit obligation £m £m
Amounts arising from wholly unfunded plans 57 44
Amounts arising from plans that are wholly or partly funded 744 663
801 7Q7
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{iii) Valuation assumptions

The financial assumptions used to estimate defined benefit obligations are:

2006 2005
UK Non-UK UK Non-UK
Discount rate 5.1% 5.1% 5.0% 51%
Infiation rate 3.1% 1.4% 2.8% 1.4%
Increase to deferred bensfits during deferment 3.1% 2.2% 2.8% 2.0%
Increases 10 pensions in payment 3.0% 1.5% 2.7% 0.8%
Salary increases 4.6% 2.4% 3.3% 2.5%
The life expectancy assumptions used to estimate defined bensfit obligations at 31 July 2008 are:
2006
UK Non-UK
Current pensioners (at age 65) — male 19.0 18.3
Current pensioners {at age 65) - female 219 20.9
Future pensioners (at age 65) — male 19.8 17.9
Future pensioners (at age 65) - female 228 204
UK Non-UK UK Non-UK
2006 2006 2005 2005
History of experience gains and losses £m £m £m £m
Fair value of plan assets 501 112 404 105
Present value of defined benefit obligation (619) (182) 627 {180)
Deficit in the plan (118) (70) {123) {75)
Experience adjustments to scheme assets
Amount 36 - 46 4
Percentage of scheme assets 7% - 11% 4%
Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities
Amount - @ - -
Percentage of the present value of scheme liabilties - 1% - -

Wolseley plc Annual Report and Accounts 2006
105 Notes to the consolidated financial statements




Notes to the consolidated financial
statements

Year ended 31 July 2006

28. Share capital
Allotted
Authorised and issued

2006 2005 2006 2005
Number of ordinary 25 pence shares (million) 800 800 598 592
Nominal value of ordinary 25 pence shares (£ million) 200 200 149 143
All the zllotted and issued shares are fully paid or credited as fully paid.
Allotment of shares
From 1 August 2005 to 31 July 2006, new ordinary shares of 25 pence each in the Company have been issued as follows:

Proceeds to the Group

Allottees Nurmber of shares Price per share (p) £m Purpose of issue
Various 2,318,435 251.00 - 935.85 17 Exercise of savings related share options
Various 3,235,350 349.75 - 543.00 14 Exercise of executive share options/stock appreciation rights

5,553,785 31

Limits on grant of options

The maximum number of shares over which options may be granted {but excluding any which lapse) under all share option schemes and the
stock appreciation plan in any ten year period is 10% of the issued share capital from time to time. The number of shares over which options
may be granted under all such schemes as at 31 July 2006 was 59,769,622 (2005: 59,214,243) of which 20,632,264 (2005: 15,510,000)
have already been issued pursuant to options exercised in the ten year period ended on 31 July 20086.

The maximum number of shares over which options may be granted (but excluding any which lapse) under the rules of the executive share
option schermnes in any ten year period is 5% of the issued share capital from time to time. The number of shares over which options may be
granted as at 31 July 2006 was 28,884,811 (2005; 29,607,122) of which 6,181,623 (2005: 4,886,655) have already been issued pursuant to
optians exercised on or before 31 July 2006.

Executive Benefit Trusts

Three Employee Benefit Trusts have been established in connection with the Wolseley Share Option Plan 2003 and the Wolseley ple 2002
Long Term incentive Scheme. During the year one of these trusts purchased 2,011,478 ordinary shares of the Company, with a nominal value of
£1 million, for a cash consideration of £27 milion. The market value of the 4,011,478 shares held by the employee benefit trusts at 31 July 2008,
which have a nominal value of £1 million, was £46 milion (2005: £24 milion) and none of them had been allocated to employegs or Directors
at that date. Dividends due on shares held by the Employee Benefit Trusts are waived in accordance with the provisions of the trust deeds.

29. Share-based payments

The Group operates six share option plans: the 1984 Executive Share Option Scheme, the 1989 Executive Share Qption Scheme and the
Wolseley Share Option Plan 2003 {collectively, the “Executive Option Schemes"); the Wolseley Employees Savings Related Share Option Scheme
1981 and Wolseley Irish Sharesave Scheme 2000 (collectively, the “Employees Savings Cption Schemes”); and the Wolseley Employee Share
Purchase Plan 2001 (the “ESPP”). The Wolselsy Employees International Stock Appreciation Plan (the "SAP") expired during the year ended

31 July 2006.

Awards granted under the Executive Option Schemes are sublject to a condition such that they may not be exercised unless the growth in
earnings per share over a period of three consecutive financial years exceeds growth in the UK Retail Price Index over the same period by at
least 9% and consequently vast over a period of three years. Awards granted under the Employee Savings Option Schemes vest over periods
ranging from three to seven years. Awards granted under the Employee Share Purchase Plan vest over a one-year period. Awards granted
under the SAP vested over a period of five years.

The Group also operates a Long Term fncentive Scheme (“LTIS"} for senior executives. Under this Scheme, executives will be awarded
& variable number of shares depending on the level of total shareholder return over the next three years relative 1o that of @ number of
comparator companies. The vesting period is three years. The maximum award under the scheme is determined at grant date and then
adiusted at vesting date in accordance with the market performance condition.
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Share options outstanding during the year
Year ended 31 July

2006 2006 2005 2005
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
Shares price Shares price
000’s £ 000s £
Executive Option Schemes

Outstanding as at 1 August 11,809 7.22 11,061 5.64
Granted 4,588 11.87 4131 9.51
Exercised (1,358) 5.09 (2,819 437
Surrendered or expired {457) 8.89 (564) 7.07
Outstanding as at 31 July 14,582 8.83 11,809 7.22
Exercisable as at 31 July 3,172 510 1,831 442
Weighted average fair value of options granted during the year 3.97 3.06

Employees Savings Option Schemes, ESPP and SAP
Quistanding as at 1 August 8,129 6.38 10,708 4.83
Granted 1,521 12.01 3,434 9.26
Exercised {2,725) 3.80 (4,215) 4,85
Surrendered or expired (3,247) 8.75 {1,798) 6.24
Qutstanding as at 31 July 3,678 8.53 8,129 6.38
Exercisable as at 31 July 88 4.44 7e 4,12
Weighted average fair value of options granted during the year 3.83 2.70

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the period was £12.67 (2005: £10.18). The total
intrinsic value of options exercised during the period was £22 miilion (2005: £29 milion). The aggragate intringic value of options outstanding
and exercisable at 31 July 2006 was £48 miilion and £21 million respectively {2005: £98 milion and £14 million;.

Maximum number of shares that can be issued under the Long Term Incentive Scheme

Year ended 31 July

2006 2006 2005 2005

Share Share

price at price at

award award

Shares date Shares date

000's £ 000's £

QOutstanding as at 1 August 604 9.27 - -
Granted 730 11.29 628 9.27
Surrendered or expired (12) 9.25 (24) 9.25
Qutstanding as at 31 July 1,322 10.3¢ 604 9.27
Exercisable as at 31 July - - - -
Weighted average fair value of shares awarded 3.99 4.85
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29. Share-based payments continued

Details of options exercisable

Options outstanding and exercisable at 31 July 2006 under the Executive Option Schemes, the Employees Saving Option Schemes and ESPP

can be analysed as follows:

Cptions Qutstanding Qptions Exercisable

Weighted Weighted
average Weighted average Weighted
rermnaining average remaining average
contractual exercise contractual exercise
Shares life price Shares life price
Range of exercise prices 000's Years £ 000 Years £
£2.51 - £3.50 404 2.5 3.15 211 3.8 3.48
£3.51 - £4.50 668 2.0 4,07 198 2.1 3.96
£4.51 - £5.50 2,740 5.7 5.14 2,740 5.7 5.14
£5.51 - £6.50 228 1.1 5.62 3 1.1 5.63
£6.51 - £7.50 3,774 6.3 7.29 57 6.8 7.37
£7.51 - £8.50 24 7.9 8.42 - - -
£8.51 - £9.50 4,376 7.4 5.40 52 7.8 9.44
£10.51 - £11.50 50 8.6 11.Q0 - - -
£11.51 - £12.50 5,883 7.3 11.90 4 7.7 11.64
£12.51 - £13.50 111 9.5 12.81 - - -
18,258 6.5 8,77 3,265 54 5.08

The fair value at the date of grant of options awarded during the year has been estimated by the binomial methodology for all schemes except

the LTIS, for which a Monte Carlo simulation was used.

The principal assumptions required by these methodalogies were:

Long Term

Executive Share Options Employee Share Options Incentive Schemes

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Risk free interest rate 4.45% 4.72% 4.52% 4.60% 4.40% 4.70%
Expected annual increase in dividends* 10% 10% 10% 10% - -
Expected dividend yield* - - - - 2.75% 2.29%
Expected volatility 38.00%  40.10% 3106 40.00% 20.58% 27.74%
Expecied life 5.7years 5.7 years 1-Tyears 1-7years 3years 3years

“The Initlal assurmption was for 2006 interim and final dividends of 9.68 pence and 198.36 pence respectively (2005: 8.73 pence and

17.45 pence respectively).

Expected volatility has been estimated on the basis of historic volatility over the expected term. Expected life has been estimated on the basis

of historical data on the exercise pattern.
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30. Shareholders’ funds and statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

Retained Eamings

Profit

Share Share  Transiation Hedging Own and Loss
Capital Premiurm Raserve Reserve Shares Account Total

For the year ended 31 July 2006 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders - - - - - 537 537
Exchange loss on translation of overseas operations - - (182) - - - (182}
Exchange gain on transiation of borrowings designated

as hedges of overseas operations - - 58 - - - 58
Valuation galn on interest rate swaps (less amounis

reclassified and reported in net income) - - - 8 - - 8
Valuation gain on currency swaps - - - 5 - - 5
Actuarial gain on retirement benefits - - - - - 7 7
Change in fair value of available-for-sale investments - - - - - (7 ]
Tax on gains/{losses) not recognised in the income statement - - N {4) - (2) (13)
Total recognised income and expense - - (131) 9 - 535 413
New share capital subscribed 1 30 - - - - 31
Premium on share opticns issued through

share symmetry arrangements - 17 - - - {17 -
Purchase of own shares by Employee

Benefit Trust - - - - (27) - (27)
Credit to equity for share-based payments - - - - - 38 36
Dividends - - - - - (162) {162)
Net additions 1o shareholders’ funds 1 47 (131) 9 (27 392 29
Opening shareholders’ funds 148 241 82 (8} a9 1,857 2,301
Closing shareholders' funds 149 288 {49 1 {46) 2,249 2,592
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30. Shareholders’ funds and statement of changes in shareholders’ equity continued

Retained Eammings

Profit
Share Share  Tranglation Hedging Cwn and Loss
Capital Premium Reserve Reserve Shares Acoount Total

For the year ended 31 July 2005 £m €m £m £m £m £m £m
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders - - - - - 479 479
Exchange gain on translation of overseas operations - - 93 - - ~ 83
Exchange loss on translation of borrowings cesignated

as hedges of overseas operations - - (36) - - ~ (36)
Valuation gain on interest rate swaps - - - 1 - - 1
Valuation loss on currency swaps - - - (12 - - (12)
Actuarial loss on retirement benefits - - - - - (4 (4)
Tax on gains/losses) not recognised in the income statement - - 25 3 - 6 34
Total recognised income and expense - - g2 (8 - 481 555
New share capital subscribed 2 31 - - - - 33
Premium on share options issued through

share symmetry arrangements - 10 - - - (10) -
Purchase of own shares by Employee

Benefit Trust - - - - (19) - (19)
Credit to equity for share-based payments - - - - - 23 23
Dividends - - - - - (145) (145)
Net additions to shargholders’ funas 2 41 82 (8) (19) 348 447
Opening shareholders’ funds 146 200 - - - 1,508 1,854
Closing shareholders’ funds 148 241 82 8 (19) 1,857 2,301

31. Acquisitions

A list of businesses acquired during the year and the meonth of acquisition, is set out on page 146. All these businesses are engaged in
the distribution of building materials. In all these acquisitions, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital and has accounted

for the transaction by the purchase method of accounting.

Far  Frovisional
Book values value fair values
acquired  alignments acquired
All acquisitions £m £m £m
Intangible fixed assets
- Customer relationships - 220 220
— Trade names and brands - 28 26
- Other 13 (8) 5
Property, plant and equipment 68 31 98
Inventories 186 {7 148
Receivables 310 13) 307
Cash, cash eguivalents and bank overdrafts 5 - 5
Borrowings (76) - (76)
Payables {205) (3)] (211)
Deferred tax (1) (50) (51)
Retirarnent benefit obligations - {11) an
Provisions 2 3) (5}
Total 267 189 456
Geoodwill arising 387
Consideration 843
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Fair  Provisional

Book values valug  fair vaiues

acquired  alignments acquired

All acquisitions £m £m £m
Satisfied by:

Cash 799

Deferred consideration 35

Contingent consideration 2

Directly attributable costs 7

Total consideration 843

The fair value adjustments shown above for the year ended 31 July 2006 are provisional figures, being the best estimates currently available.
Further adjustments to goodwill may be necessary when additionat information is available concerning some of the judgementtal areas.

The goodwill arising on these acguisitions is attributable to the anticipated profitability of the new markets and product ranges to which
the Group has gained access and to additional profitability and operating efficiencies in respect of existing markets.

The acquisitions contributed £862 million o revenue, £60 miltion to trading profit and £33 millicn to the Group's operating profit for the

period between the date of acquisitiocn and the balance sheet date.

If each acquisition had been completed on the first day of the financial year, Group revenue would have been £14,940 millicn and Group

trading profit would have been £834 million.

32. Anqalysis of the net outflow of cash in respect of the purchase of businesses

2006 2005

£m £m

Purchase consideration (note 31) 843 423
Deferred and contingent consideration (net of payments in the year) {16) (25)
Cash consideration 827 398
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts acquired (5) )
Net cash outflow in respect of the purchase of businesses 822 406
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33. Disposuols

The Group made no disposals of operations in the year ended 31 July 2006. £2 million of deferred consideration was received in the year in
respect of a disposal in the year ended 31 July 2005.

34. Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

2006 2005

£m £m

Profit for the year 537 479
Net finance costs 85 a7
Tax expense 232 186
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 134 114
Amortisation of non-acquired intangibles 6 3
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (18) (11)
Amoitisation of acquired intangitiles 48 6
Increase in inventories (171) (56)
Increase in trade and other receivables {243) (180)
Increase in trade and other payables 217 168
Increase in provisions and cther liabilities 19 -
Share based payments and other non-cash items 22 19
Cash generated from operations 850 765

35. Reconciliation of opening to closing net debt
New
finance Fair value Exchange

At1 August Gashflows Acquisitions leases adjustments  movement At 31 July

For the year ended 31 July 2008 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cash anc cash equivalents 381 52 - - - (17 416
Bank overdrafts {437) 304 - - - g (124)
(56) 356 - - - (8) 292

Financial assets: trading investments 5 - - - - (1) 4
Derivative financial instruments {11} 4 - - {13) 1 (19)
Bark loans {1,047) (1,085) (74) - 26 28 (2,152
Obligations under finance leases 62) 17 2 (30 - 2 (75)
(1,171) (708) (76) (30) 13 22 (1,950)

New
finance Fair value Exchange

At 1 August  Cash flows  Acquisitions leases adiustments  movement At 31 July

For the year ended 31 July 2005 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 201 66 - - - 24 381
Bank overdrafts (379 8) - - - (80) 437
{88) 58 - - - (26} (56}

Financial assets: trading investmants 6 (1 - - - - 5
Derivative financial instruments (N - - - (10) - (R}
Bank loans (835) (176) )] - - {35) (1,047)
Obligations under finance leases (52} 5 - (13) - @2 62)
970 {(114) 4] (13) (10) (63} {1,371)
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36. Related party transactions

There are no related party transactions requiring disclosure under IAS 24, Related Party Disclosures other than the compensation of key
management personnel which is set out in the following table.

2006 2005
Key management perscnal compensation (including directors) fm £m
Salaries, bonuses and other short-term employee benefits 9 8
Termination and post employment benefits 1 1
Share based payments 4 1
Total compensation 14 10
More detailed disclosures on the remuneration of the Directors are provided in the Remuneration report on pages 62 to 70.
37. Capital commitments
Authorised capital expenditure which was contracted for but not provided in these accounts was as follows:

2006 2005

£m £m

Property, plant and eguipment 77 96
Intangible assets: scftware 14 -
Total capital commitments 91 96
38. Operating lease commitments
Futwre minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for the following periods are:

2006 2005

£m em

Within one year 199 153
Later than one year and less than five years 533 402
After five years 372 323
Total cperating lease commitments 1,104 878

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group for certain of its properties. Some of these operating lease arangements have
renewal options and rental escalation clauses, though the effect of these is not material. No arrangements have been entered into for contingent
rental payments.

The total minimum sublease payments expected to be received under non-cancellable subleases at 31 July 2006 is £8 million (2005: £5 million).
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39, Contingent liabilities

The Group has the following guantffiable contingent Tiabilities which arosa in the ordinary course of business and which have not been provided
in these accounts since no actual liability is expected to arise:

2006 2005

£m £m

Sundry guarantees, performance bonds and indemnities 114 78
Obligations under forward foreign exchange contracts 497 413

An gmount of £499 million (2005: £402 million) is expected to be received from counterparties in respect of the obligations under forward
foreign exchange contracts detailed above.

As of 31 July 2008, cash deposits of Wolseley Insurance Limited amounting to £52 miffion (2005: £41 million) were charged in favour of
Lloyds TSB Bank plc to secure letters of credit provided by that banic.
40. Post balance sheet events

The Group has made the following acquisitions since 31 July 2006:
Estimated Estimated Estimated

Date of Percentage cost net assets goodhwil
Name acquistion acquired em £m £m
Water Works Suppliers Corporation August 2006 100% 5 4 1
Palerme Supply Co., Inc. August 2006 100% 21 9 12
Lunts Heath Limited August 2006 100% 1 - 1
Sigmatec SAS August 2006 100% 1 - 1
United Automatic Heating Supply Lid. Septernber 2006 100% 3 2 1
Morris Insulation Limited, et al September 2006 100% 18 5 13

Both the cost of acquisition and the fair values of assets and lizbiliies acquired are estimates, based on information available to the Group at
the date of approval of these financial statements. Further adjustments will be necessary when additional information is available.

The acquisition of DT Group, announced on 24 July 2006 is expected to be completed on 25 September 2008. Further details of this
acquisition and a vendor placing of approximately 59 million ordinary shares are provided in the Performance review on page 39.
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41. Parent company

Wolseley plc is a limited liabifity company incorporated in England
angd Wales and domiciled in the United Kingdom. It operates as the
ultimate parent company of the Wolseley Group. Its registered office is
Parkview 1220, Arlington Business Park, Theale, Reading RG7 4GA,
United Kingdom.

42. Accounting standards, interpretations and
amendments to published standards not yet
effective

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards have besn published that are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 August 2006 or later
periods, but which the Group has not early adopted. The new
standards which are expected to be refevant 1o the Group’s
operations are as follows:

Amendment to IAS 39 and IFRS 4 “Financial Guarantee
Contracts” (effective from 1 August 2006)

This amendment requires issued financial guarantees, other than
those previously asserted by the entity to be insurance contracts,
o be initially recognised at their fair value and subsequently
measured at the higher of: () the unamortised balance of the
related fees received and determined; and (b) the expenditure
required 1o setile the commitment at the balance sheet date.
Management is currently assessing the impact of this amendment
on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendment to IAS 39 “Cash Flow Hedge Accounting

of Forecast Intragroup Transactions” {effective from

1 August 2006)

This amendment allows the forelgn curency risk of a highly
probable forecast intragroup transaction to qualify &s a hedged
itarm in the cansolidated financial statements, provided that: (@) the
transaction is denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity entering into that transaction; and (b) the
foreign currency risk will affect consolidated profit or loss,
Management does not expect acoption of this amendment to
have a significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendment to IAS 39 “The Fair Value Option” (effective
from 1 August 2006)

This amendment changes the definition of the financial instruments
classified at fair value through the income statement and restricts
the ability to designate financial instruments as part of this category.
Managerment does not expect adoption of this amendment to have
a significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” {effective from
1 August 2007} and amendment to 1AS 1 “Presentation of
Financial Statements - Capital Disclosures” {effective from
1 August 2007)

IFRS 7 introduces new disclosures of gualitative and quantitative
information about exposure to risks arising from financial instruments
including specified minimum disclosures about credit risk, liquidity
risk and market risk, including sensitivity analysis to market risk,
The amendment to IAS 1 introduces disclosures abaut the level

of an entity's capital and how it manages capital. Management is
currently assessing the impact of IFRS 7 and the amendment to
IAS 1 on the Group's financial statements.

IFRIC 7 “Applying the restatement approach under [AS 29"
(effective from 1 August 2006)

IFRIC 7 deals with the accounting when an entity identifies the
existence of hyperinflation in the economy of its functicnal currency
and how deferrad tax items in the opening balance sheet should be
restated. The Group has operations in hyperinflationary economies.
The Group has assessed the impact of the interpretation and
concluded it is not likely to have a significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.

tFRIC 8 “Scope of IFRS 2" (effective from 1 August 2006)
IFRIC 8 clarifies that transactions within the scope of IFRS 2 “Share
Based Payment” include those in which the entity cannot specifically
identify some or all of the goods and services received. The Group
has assessed the impact of this interpretation and has concluded it is
not likely to have a significant irmpact on the Group's financial statements.

IFRIC 9 “Reassessment of embedded derivatives” (effective
from 1 August 2006)

IFRIC 8 clarifies that an entity should assess whether an embedded
derivative Is required t¢ be separated from the host contract and
accounted for as a derivative when the entity first becomes a party
to the contract. Subsequent reassessment is prohibited unless

there is a change in the contract terms, in which case it is required.
The Group has assessed the impact of this interpretation and has
concluded it is not likely to have a significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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43. Summary of significant differences between
International Financial Reporting Standards and
accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union (IFRS", which differ in certain
significant respects from generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States ("JS GAAP". Such differences involve methods
for measuring the amounts shown in the financial statements;,

as well as additional disclosures required by US GAAP.

A summary of the principal differences applicable to the Group is set
out below:

(i) Goodwill

On transition to IFRS, the amount of goodwill at 1 August 2004 is the
previous carrying amount under UK GAAPR. Under IFRS goodwill is no
longer amortised but tested annually for impairment.

Prior to 1 August 1998, purchased goodwill was written off to
reserves in the vear of acquisition as permitted under UK GAAP.

Since 1 August 1998, all acquired goodwill has been capitalised and
amortised over a period not exceeding 20 years. If a subsidiary or a
business is subsequently sold or closed, previously written off goodwill
which was the result of the initial acquisition is taken into account in
determiring the profit or loss on sale or closure.

Under US GAAP prior to 1 August 2002, goodwill arising on
acquisitions pricr to 1 July 2001 was capitalised and amortised

over its estimated useful life, not exceeding 40 years, Following
implementation of SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intanglble Assets,”
gooawilt is no longer amortised, but is reviewed at feast annually

for impairment.

The Group completed the required impairment tests under both IFRS
and US GAAP during 2006, which indicated that no impairment
charge was required under either set of accounting principles.

(i)) Intangible assets

Under IFRS, the accounting for business combinations prior to
transition to IFRS has not been revisited. Therefore intangible assets
arising in respect of acquisitions prior to the transition date of

1 August 2004, previously recognised under US GAAR, have not
been recognised under IFRS and remain within goodwil.

(i) Contingent purchase consideration

Under IFRS, contingent purchase consideration is recorded as part of
the purchase cost at the date of acquisition i it is raliably measurable
and probable. Under US GAAP, this cost is not recognised until the
contingency is resolved and the amount dsterminable.
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(iv} Pensions

Under IFRS, pension costs are accounted for in accordance with
IAS 19 (revised 2004). Under US GAAP, pension costs comprise the
estimated cost of benefits accruing in the pericd as determined in
accordance with SFAS 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions”
and 8FAS 88, “Employers’ Accounting for Settlements and
Curtailments of Definect Benefit Plans and for Termination Benefits.”

Under (FRS, actuariai gains and losses, which represent differences
between the expected and actual returns on the plan assets and the
effect of changes in actuarial assumptions, are recognised in full in the
statement of recognised income and expense in the period in which
they occur. The defined benefit liability or asset recognised in the
balance sheest comprises the net total for each plan of the present
value of the benefit obligation at the balance sheet date, less any past
setvice costs not yet recognised, less the fair value of the plan assets,
if any, at the balance sheet date. Where a plan is in surplus, the asset
recognised is limited to the amount of any unrecognised past service
costs and the present value of any amount which the Group sxpects
o recover by way of refunds or a reduction in future contributions.

Under US GAAP, the annual pension cost comprises the estimated
cost of benefits accruing in the period as determined in accordance
with SFAS 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions.” SFAS 87
requires the use of the projected unit credit actuarial method for
determining defined benefit pension costs and provides for the
deferral of actuarial gains and losses (in excess of a specified corridar)
that result from changes in assumptions or actual experience.

(v) Deferred taxation

Under IFRS and US GAAP, deferred tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their canying amounis in the
consolidated financial statements. There is & difference in the definition
of tax basis between IFRS and US GAAP, which gives rise 1o an
additional deferred tax liability under IFRS. Under IFRS, deferred tax

Is not accounted for if it arises fom initial recognition of an asset or
liability in & transaction, other than a business combination, that at

the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss.,

Under US GAAP, a valuation allowance is established against deferred
tax assets when it is more likely than not that some portion or all
of these will not be realised. Under IFRS it is recognised net.

Under IFRS the deferred tax asset in relation to share based payments
is based upon the intrinsic value of the share option and is adjusted
at every year end to reflect changes in the share price valuation,

as well as pre-vesting forfeitures, changes in tax rate, relocation of
employees, or changes in tax legislation. If the cumulative estimated
tax deduction — either during vesting or on exercise — exceads the
“book expense” tax deduction, the difference is cradited to equity.




Under US GAAP this asset is based upon the fair value expensed
under SFAS 123R and only adjusted for pre-vesting forfaitures,
changes in tax rate, relocation of employees, or changes in 1ax
legistaticn. If the final tax deduction exceeds book expense ("windfall”),
the difference Is credited to additional paid-in capital. If the final tax
deduction is less than book expense (“shortfall”), the difference is
included in additional paid-in capital to the extent there have been
previous windfalls credited; otherwise the difference is recorded in

the income statement,

(vi) Share-based payments

Under the transition provisions of IFRS, the Group has elected to
apply [FRS2 “Share-based Payment” retrospectively only to equity-
settled awards that had not vested as at 1 August 2004 and were
granted on or after 7 Novermber 2002 and to cash-settled awards
that had not vested as at 1 August 2004, Under US GAAR, the Group
adopted SFAS 123 (Revised), "Share-Based Payments” with effect
from 1 August 2005 using a modified prospective transition method
and the Group's prior periods have not been restated to reflect and
do not include the impact of, SFAS 123 (R). Under SFAS 123 (R)
share based compensation expense is recognised during the period
based on the poriion of share based payments awards that is
ulimately expected to vest during the pericd.

The Group operates a number of plans which are defined within
note 29, The Executive Option Schemes are subject to a condition
such that they may not be exercised unless the growth In earnings
per share over & period of three consecutive fiscal years exceeds
growth in the UK Retail Price Index over the same period by at least
9% (for options granted in and after December 1897). Under IFRS
such options are treated as equity-settled.

For the year ended 31 July 2005 the Group was accounting for the
Exacutive Option Schemes under SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock
Based Compensation.” The condition described above was regarded
as a performance condition and such options were also treated as
equity-settied. On application of SFAS 123 (R}, the condition is not
regarded as a perfoormance condition, as the performance target is
set by reference 1o an index, rather than being fixed at the date of
award. As the condition is not a service or market condition sither, the
options are accounted for as kabilities under US GAAP and revalued
at every reporting date until the option has vested.

Under SFAS 123, the cumulative cost recorded up to 31 July 2005
in respect of exscutive options was £11 milion. Under SFAS 123 (R),
£18 miliion has been charged in the year ended 31 July 2006 in
respect of the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.
Under SFAS 123 (R), the charge in the vear ended 31 July 2008 in
respect of executive options is £12 million.

Wolseley plc Annual Report and Accounts 2006
117 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(vii) Sale and leaseback accounting

Under IFRS, in a sale and leaseback transaction where the leaseback
is recognised as an operating lease and the sale price equals fair
value, the profit or loss on the sale should be recognised immediately.
Under US GAAP, in general, the gains or losses ¢n disposal of

the properties are deferred and amortised over the term of the
operating lease.

(villj Other adjustments

Restructuring costs

Under IFRS, a provision for restructuring costs is recognised only
when a present obligation (legal or constructive) exists as a result of
a past event; it is probable that a transfer of economic bengfits will
be required 1o settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

Under US GAAP, for restructuring plans initiated after 1 January 2003,
a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity can only
be recognised when the liability is incurred. An entity’s commitment to
a plan, by itself, does not create a present obligation to others that
meets the definition of a liability. The timing of recognition and relateg
measurement of a liability for one-time termination benefits in relation
to employees who are to be involuntarily terminated depends on
whether the employees are required to render service until they are
terminated in order o receive the termination benefits and, if so,
whether employees will be retained 10 render service beyond the
minimum retention period.

Capitalised interest

Under IFRS, the Group has chosen not to capitalise interest on
specific or general borrowings to finance the construction of certain
property, plant and equipment. Under US GAAP, this interest is
capitalised. The amount of interest capitatised is based on a weighted
average method considering the general borrowings outstanding
during the period.

Employers’ payroll taxes in respect of share-based payments
Under IFRS, employers’ social security liability arising from share-
based payment fransactions is recognised over the same period

or periods as the share-based payment charge. Under US GAAR,
employers’ payroll taxes due on the exercise of share options are
recoghised as an expense when the fiability arises, which is generally
at the option's exercise date.
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Year ended 31 July 2006

44, Reconciliation between IFRS and US GAAP

The following is a summary of the material adjustments to consolidated profit for the financial year and consolidated shareholgers’ funds that

would have been reguired in applying the significant differences batween IFRS and US GAAR.

Notes 2005 2005
Recongiliation of consolidated profit for the financial year note 43) £m £m
Profit for the financial year under IFRS 537 479
US GAAP adjustments:
Amortisation of intangible assets (i 8 )
Pensions QY] (13) (15)
Leases {vil) (12) {19)
Share based payments i 1 5
Other (wviil) 1 7
Deferred taxation ) 13 2}
Taxation effect of US GAAP adjustments 7 6
Profit for the year before effect of accounting change 526 444
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (vi} (18) -
Tax effect of change in accounting principle 2 -
Profit for the financial year under US GAAP 510 444
Presentation of earnings per share under US GAAP
Basic earnings per share before cumulative effect of accounting change (pence) 88.91 75.61
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax {pence) {2.70) -
Basic earnings per share (pence) 86.21 75.61
Diluted earnings per share before cumulative effect of accounting change {pence) 88.10 74.94
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax (pence) (2.68) -
Diluted earnings per share (pence) 8542 74.94
Weighted average shares outstanding {millions) 592 587
Dilutive effect of stock options (millions) 5 5
Weighted average shares outstanding assuming dilution (millions) 597 502

2006 2005

Reconciliation of consoligated sharehofders” funds Notes fm £m
Shareholders’ funds under IFRS 2502 2,301
US GAAP adjustments:
Goodwill ] 170 174
Intangibie assets (i) 82 94
Contingent consideration {iii) 19 31
Pensions (v 96 88
Leases (vii) (15} 2)
Share-based payments {vi) (23) 12
Other {viii} 8 7
Deferred taxation V) 13 7
Taxation effect of US GAAP adjustments {73) (99)
Total US GAAP adjustments 277 312
Shareholders’ funds under US GAAP 2,869 2,613
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45, Reconciliation of net assets and profit under
UK GAAP to IFRS

This is the first year that the Group has presented its financial
statements under IFRS. In the year ended 31 July 2005, Wolselay plc
reported under UK GAAP.

IFRS 1, “First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards” sets out the procedures that the Group must follow
when it adopts IFRS for the first time as the basis for preparing its
consolidated financlal statements. The Group is required to establish
its IFRS accounting policies as at 31 July 2006 and, in general, apply
these retrospectively to determine the IFRS opening balance sheet at
its date of transition, 1 August 2004.

Certain opticnal exemptions to this general principle are available
under IFRS 1 and the significant first-time adoption choices made by
the Group are as follows:

Business combinations before 1 August 2004 (IFRS 3,
“Business Combinations”)

The Group has elected not to apply IFRS 3 retrospectively to business
combinations that took place before 1 August 2004, As a resutt, in
the IFRS opening balance sheet, goodwill arising from past business
combinations (£665.9 million) remains as stated under UK GAAP at
that date.

Employee Benefits - actuarial gains and losses (IAS 19,
“Employee Benefits™)

The Group has elected 1o recognise all cumulative actuarial gains
and losses In relation to employee benefit schemes at the date of
transition. In addition, the Group has elected to recognise actuarial
gains and losses in full in the period in which they occur in &
statement of recognised income and expense.
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Share-based Payments (IFRS 2, “Share-based Payment”)

The Group has elected to apply IFRS 2 only to equity-settled awards
that had not vested as at 1 August 2004 and were granted on or after
7 November 2002 and cash-setiled awards that had not vested as at
1 August 2004.

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (IAS 21, “The Effects

of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”)

The Group has elected to reset the foreign currency translation
reserve to zero at 1 August 2004. Going forward, IFRS requires
amounts taken to reserves on the retranslation of foreign subsidiaries
to be recorded in a separate foreign currency translation reserve

and be included in the future calculation of profit or loss on sale

of the subsidiary.

Financial Instruments {IAS 39, “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” and IAS 32, “Financial
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation”)

The Group has elected to implement IAS 32 and IAS 39 at its date
of transition, 1 August 2004 and apply hedge accounting where the
requirements of IAS 39 are mat,

The Group is also required to provide reconciliations of equity at the
transition date, equity at 31 July 2005 and profit for the year ended
31 July 2005 under UK GAAP and IFRS and to provide explanations
of the effect of the transition on its financial position, financial
performance and cash flows. These are presented in the

following tables.
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Year encled 31 July 2006

45. Reconciliation of net assets and profit under UK GAAP to IFRS continued

Restatement of profit and loss account

Effect of

UK GAAP transition IFRS
Year ended 31 July 2005 Notes £m £ £m
Revenue 14] 11,257 (m 11,256
Cost of sales (ix) (8,175j 1 (8,174)
Gross profit 3,082 - 3,082
Distribution costs (1,930) - (1,930)
Administrative expenses: amortisation of acquired intangibles ® {43) 37 (&)
Administrative expenses: other ()-(v), (vill), () (455) (13} (468)
Administrative expenses: total {498) 24 474
Other operating income 24 - 24
Operating profit 678 24 702
Finance revenue 27 - 27
Finance costs {ii), iy, (3, (ix) I57) 4] (G4)
Profit before tax 648 17 665
Tax expense {wii) {187) 1 {186)
Profit for the period 461 18 479
Restatement of reconciliation of shareholders’ funds

Effect of

UK GAAP transition IFRS
Year ended 31 July 2005 Notes £m £m £m
Profit for the financial year 461 18 479
Net exchange adjustments offset in reserves {viii) 60 (3) 57
Cash flow hedges
- net fair value gains Y] - (11) (11)
Actuarial loss on retirement benefits (iiiy - (&) (4)
Tax credit recognised directly in equity {wii} 25 9 34
Net gains not recognised in the income statement 85 9 76
Total recognised income for the year attributable to shareholders 546 9 555
New share capital subscribed 33 - 33
Purchase of own ghares {19) - {19)
Credit to equity for share-based payments (iv) - 23 23
Dividends (i) {155) 10 (145)
Net additions 10 shareholders' funds 405 42 447
QOpening shareholders’ funds 1,802 48) 1,854
Clesing shareholders’ funds 2,307 (&) 2,301
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Restatement of balance sheet

Effect of
UK GAAP transition FHS

At 31 July 2005 Notes £m £rn £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets: goodwill )] 866 (51) 815
Intangible assets: other {i - 133 133
Property, plant and equipment {i, {ii), ix} 916 {33) 883
Deferred tax asset (il 26 29 55
Trade and other receivables 37 - 37
Financial assets: avallable for sale investments (i) 4 2 6

1,849 80 1,929
Current assets
Inventories {ix) 1,705 1 1,706
Trade and other receivables (iit), (ixy 2,213 8 2,205
Financial assets: trading investments 5 - 5
Derivative financial assets ) - 3 3
Financial receivables: construction loans (secured) (ix) 264 @ 262
Cash and cash equivalents 381 - 381

4,568 (6) 4,562
Assets held for salg {ix) - 8 8
Total assets 6,417 82 6,499
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (i-(v), (vid, (%) 2,029 {86) 1,943
Current tax payable 70 - 70
Botrowings: construction loans (unsecured) (i 264 ) 262
Bank loans and overdrafts () 437 2 439
Obligations under finance leases (iiy 4 - 4
Derivative financial liabilities {v) - 14 14
Provisions 22 - 22
Retirement benefit obligations 17 - 17

2,843 (72) 2,771
Non-current liabilities
Trace and other payables 18 - 18
Bank loans 1,045 - 1,045
Obligations under finance leases (i 44 14 58
Deferred tax liabilities vil) 71 @ 62
Provisions (i, {ix) 57 6 B3
Retirerment benefit obligations (iil) 32 149 181

1,267 160 1,427
Total liabilities 4,110 88 4,198
Net assets 2,307 6) 2,301
Shareholders’ equity
Called up share capital 148 - 148
Share premium account 241 - 241
Fereign currency translation reserve - 82 82
Retained earnings 1,818 (88) 1,830
Shareholders’ funds 2,307 &) 2,301

Wolseley plc Annual Report and Accounts 2006
121 Notes to the consolidated financial statements




Notes to the consolidated financial

statements

Year ended 31 July 2006

45. Reconciliation of net assets and profit under UK GAAP to IFRS continued

Restatement of balance sheet

Effect of
UK GAAP  transition IFRS
As at 1 August 2004 Notes £m £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets: goodwill 666 - 666
Intangible assets: other ] - 13 13
Property, plant and equipment @, @, ix) 716 3 719
Deferred tax asset fuil) 34 25 59
Trade and other receivables 34 - 34
Financial assets: available-for-sale invastments ) 2 - 2
1,452 41 1,483
Current assets
Inventories 1,602 - 1,502
Trade and other receivables {ix) 1,897 ®) 1,892
Financial assets: trading investments o) - 6
Financial receivables: construction lcans (secursd) {ix) 188 3) 185
Cash and cash equivalents 291 - 2H
3,884 8 3,876
Agsets held for sale () - 7 7
Total assets 5,336 40 5,376
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and cther payables (ii}-(viy, (ix) 1,701 (77) 1,624
Current tax payable 162 - 152
Borrowings: construction loans (unsecured) (x) 188 (3) 185
Bank loans and overdrafts () 378 3 382
Obligations under finance leases )] 5 3 8
Derivative financial liabilities ) - 1 1
Provisions 26 - 26
Retirement benefit obligations 26 - 26
2,477 (73) 2,404
Nen-current liabilities
Bank loans 832 - 832
Obligations under finance leases (i) 22 22 44
Deferred tax liabilties fvii) 31 (15) 16
Provisions {in, (i) 51 (3] 87
Retirement benefit obligations (iii) 21 148 169
957 161 1,118
Total liabilities 3,434 88 3,522
Net assets 1,902 (48) 1,854
Shareholders' equity
Called up share capital 146 - 146
Share premium agcount 200 - 200
Foreign currency translation reserve - - -
Retained earnings 1,556 (48) 1,508
Shareholders’ funds 1,902 {48) 1,854
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Restatement of cash flow statement

Effect of

UK GAAP transition IFRS
Year ended 31 July 2005 £m £m Em
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 764 1 765
Interest received 26 - 26
Interest paid (56) (1) 57)
Tax paid (151} - (151)
Net cash generated from operating activities 583 - 583
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of businesses (net of cash acquired) (406) - {40g)
Disposals of businesses (net of cash disposed of) 5 - 5
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (239) 21 218
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 74 - 74
Purchase of intangible assets - @1 1)
Proceeds from disposal of current agset investments 1 - 1
Net cash used in investing activities (565) - (565)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the issue of shares to shareholders 33 - 33
Purchase of shares by Employee Benefit Trusts (19 - (19
Proceeds from new borrowings 410 - 410
Repayment of borrowings and derivatives (234) - (234)
Finance lease capital payments (%) - )
Dividends paid to shareholders {145) - (145)
Net cash generated from financing activities 40 - 40
Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts 58 - 58
Effects of exchange rate changes (26) - (26)
Cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts at the beginning of the year (88) - (88)
Cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts at the end of the year (56) - (56)

Effect of

UK GAAP transition IFRS
Year ended 31 July 2005 £m £m £m
Profit for the year 461 18 479
Tax expense 187 (1) 186
Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment and amortisation of non-acquired intangibles 114 3 117
Profit on dispasal of property, plant and equipment (11 - (11)
Armortisation of acquired intangibles 43 (37} 6
Net finance costs 30 7 a7
Increase in inventories (55) (N (56)
Decrease in trade and other receivables (181) 1 (180)
Decrease in trade and other payables 169 )] 168
Decrease in provisions and cther liabilities 7 4! -
Share-based payments and other non-cash items - 19 19
Net cash flow from operating activities 764 1 765

Wolseley plc Annual Raport and Accounts 2006
123 Notes to the consolidated financial statements




Notes to the consolidated financial
statements

Year ended 31 July 2006

45. Reconciliation of net assets and profit under UK GAAP to IFRS continued

() Intangible assets

Arising on business combinations

Under UK GAAP, gocdwill was amortised over its useful economic life, tested for impairment and provided against as necessary. Under IFRS,
goodwill is no longer amortised but must be tested for impairment as at 1 August 2004 (the transition date) and at least annually thereafter.
Goodwill amortisation charged under UK GAAP during the year ended 31 July 2005 has been credited back to the income statement under IFRS.

In addition IFRS requires identifiable intangible assets to be recognised separately on the balance sheet and consequently certain intangible
assets, such as contractual customer relationships and trade names, which were previously recorded as part of gocdwill under UK GAAR,
have been separately recognised as intangible assets under IFRS and amortised over their expected useful lives.

Software

Under UK GAAP software was included in plant and equipment and the allocation of its cost over its estimated useful life was charged as
depreciation. Under IFRS, only software which is necessary to operate hardware is included in plant and equipment. Other expenditure on
software is included in intangible assets and the allocation of its cost over its estimated useful life is charged as amortisation.

Year enced

31 July 2005

Increase/(decrease) in income statement headings £m
Administrative expenses: amortisation of acquired intangibles 37
Administrative expenses: other _
Profit for the year 37
At At

31 July 2005 31 July 2004

Increase/{decrease) in balance sheet headings £m £m
Intangible assets: goodwill 51 -
Intangible assets: other 133 13

Property, plant and equipment {31} (12)
Equity 51 i

(ii) Leases

IAS 17, “Leases” requires that the land and buildings elements of property leases are considered separately for the purposes of determining
whether the lease is a finance or operating lease. The majority of the Group’s leased buildings are on short-term leases and, consistent with
UK GAAP, are classified as operating leases under IFRS. There are, however, a small number of leases where the building element of the lease
has been reclassified as a finance lease based on the criteria set out in 1AS 17.

Under UK GAAP, committed rental increases, which could be considered in the same way as infliationary increases and increases due to market
comparables, were generally recognised as they arose and property lease incentives were generally recognised over the pericd to the first
market rent review. Under IFRS, committed rental increases and lease incentives are required to be spread over the entire lease term.

Year ended

31 July 2005

Increase/(decrease) in income statement headings £m
Administrative expenses: other -
Finance costs (M)
Profit for the year (1
At At

31 July 2005 31 July 2004

Increase/{decrease) in balance sheet headings £m Em
Property, plant and eqguipment 11 24
Trade and other payables (included in current liabilities) (1) {1)
Oblkigations under finance leases: dug in less than one year - (3)
Obligations under finance leases: due in more than one year (14) 22)
Provisions (included in non-current liabilities) {4) 4
Equity 8 &)
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(iii) Post-employment benefits

Under UK GAAP, the Group accounted for post-employment benefits under SSAP 24, “Accounting for pension costs”, whereby the cost of
providing defined benefit pensions and post-retirement healthcare benefits was charged against operating profit on a systematic basis with
surpluses and deficits ansing recognised over the expected average remaining service lives of participating employees. The Group has adopted
the amendment to IAS 19, "Employee Benefits” which allows actuarial gains and losses to be charged to equity and as a result, the net deficit

on the Group’s defined benefit pension schemes is carried in full in the Group’s IFRS balance sheet,

Year ended

31 July 2005

Increase/{decrease) in incarne statement headings £m
Administrative expenses: other 8
Finance costs {7)
Profit for the year 1
Year ended

31 July 2005

Increase/(decrease) in statement of recognised income and expense headings £m
Actuarial loss on retirement bensaiits @
Net gains not recognised in the income statement )
At At

31 July 2005 31 July 2004

Increase/{decrease) in balance sheet headings £m £m
Trade and other receivables (3) -
Trade and other payables - 2
Provisions {included in non-current liabilities) - @
Retirement benefit obligations (included in non-current liabifities) (149) (148)
Equity (152) {148)
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statements

Year ended 31 July 2006

45, Reconciliation of net assets and profit under UK GAAP to IFRS continued

{iv) Share-based payments

Under UK GAAP, the cost of awards made under the Group’s employee share schemes was based on the intrinsic value of the awards,
with the exception of SAYE schemes for which no cost was recognised. Under IFRS 2, “Share-based Payment”, the cost of employee share
schemes, including SAYE schemes, is based on the fair value of the awards, which must be assessed using an option-pricing model. The

Group has principally used a binomial model for this purpose.

Generally, for an equity-settled award, the fair valug of the award at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting petiod,
with adjustments being made to reflect expected and actual forfeitures during the vesting period due to failure to satisfy service conditions or
achieve non-market parformance conditions, such as EPS growth targets. For a cash-settled award, the fair value of the award at each balance
shest date is used to calculate the probable liability of the Group; changes in this liabiiity from the opening to clesing balance sheet are charged

or credited to the income statement.

Year ended

31 July 2005

Increase/{decrease) in income statement headings £m
Administrative expenses: other 21)
Profit for the year {21)
Year ended

31 July 2005

Increase/{decrease) in statement of changes in sharehoider’s equity headings £m
Credit to equity for share-based payments 23
Net additions to sharehclders’ funds 23
At At

31 July 2005 31 July 2004

Increase/{decrease) in balance sheet headings £m £m

Trade and other payables

(12) (14)

Equity

(12) (14
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(v} Derivatives and hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative contracts to manage its economic exposure to movements in interest rates and currency exchange rates. Under

UK GAAFR, such derivative contracts were not recognised as assets and liabilities on the balance sheet and gains or losses arising on them were
not recognised until the hedged item had itself been recognised in the financial statements.

Under IFRS all derivative financial instruments are accounted for at fair market value whilst other financial instruments are accounted for either at
amortised cost or at fair valie depending on their classification. Subject to stringent criteria, derfvative financial instruments, financial assets and
financial liabilities may be designated as forming hedge relationships as a result of which fair value changes are offset in the income statement
or charged/credited to equity depending on the nature of the hedge relationship. Hedge accounting has been applied to the Group’s interest

rate swaps (which are hedging floating rate cebt) and foreign currency financial instruments (which are hedging the net assets of the Group's
foreign operations).

Year ended

31 July 2005

Increases{decrease] in income statement headings £m
Administrative expenses: other M
Finance costs 1
Profit for the year -
Year ended

31 July 2005

Increase/(decrease) in statement of recognised income and expense headings £m
Cash flow hedges: net fair value losses (11}
Net gains not recognised in the income statement (11)
At At

31 July 2005 31 July 2004

Increase/(decrease) in balance sheet headings £m Em
Derivative financial assets 3 -
Derivative financial liabilities (14) (1)
Equity (11) (1)

{vi} Post balance sheet events

Under UK GAAP dividends were recognised in the period to which they related. IAS 10, “Events after the Balance Sheet Date” requires that
dividends declared or approved after the balance sheet date should not be recognised as a liability at that balance sheet date as the liability does
not represent a present obligation as defined by 1AS 37, “Provisions, Contingent Liahilities and Contingent Assets”.

At At

31 July 2005 31 July 2004

Increase/(decrease) in balance sheet headings £m £m
Trade and other payables 104 94
Equity 104 94
Year ended

31 July 2005

Increase/{decrease} in statement of changes in shareholders' equity headings £m
Dividends 10
Net additions to sharsholders' funds 10
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Notes to the consolidated financial
statements

Year ended 31 July 2006

45. Reconciliation of net assets and profit under UK GAAP to IFRS continuec

(vii) Taxation

Under UK GAAP, deferred tax was provided on timing differences between the accounting and taxable profit (an income statement approach).
Under IFRS, deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the book carrying value and tax base of assets and liabilties (a balance
sheet approach). As a result, the Group's IFRS balance sheet includes an additional deferred tax liability it respect of fair value property
revaluations on acquisitions and property roll-over gains.

In addition, deferred tax has been recognised on the adjustments between UK GAAP and IFRS with the majority of the net deferred tax asset
refating to the adjustments for share options and post-empioyment benefits (reflecting the substantially increased defined benefit liability
under IFRS).

Year ended

31 July 2005

Increase/(decrease) in income staterment headings £m
Income tax expense 1
Profit for the year 1
At At

31 July 2005 81 Jduly 2004

Increase/(decrease) in balance sheet headings £m £m
Deferred tax assets 29 25
Deferred tax liabilities 2] 15
Equity 38 40
Year ended

31 July 2005

Increase/(decrease) in statement of recognised income and expense headings £m
Tax credit recognised directly in equity 9
MNet gains not recognised in the income statement 9

{vil) Foreign exchange gains and losses

A small number of the Group’s subsidiary companies have changed their functional currency in order to comply with the more stringent functional
currency reguirements of IAS 21, “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” which requires companies that are acting on behatf of the
parent company to have the same functional currency as the parent company. As a result, some foreign exchange differences arising in these
companies have been recarded in the Group's income statement under IFRS rather than in equity;, under UK GAAPR,

Year encled

31 July 2008

Increaser(decrease) in income statement headings £m
Administrative expensas: other 3
Profit for the year 3
Year ended

31 July 2005

Increass/{decrease} in staternent of recognised income and expenss headings £m
Net exchange adjustments offset in reserves @
Net gains not recognised in the income statement 3
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(ix) Other adjustments

« The Group holds invoiced products on its premises for customer call-off: under UK GAAP such products are generally treated as sold,

while under IFRS they are held in Inventory.

+ Available-for-sale financial assets are stated at historical cost under UK GAAPR, but at fair value under IFRS.

* Assets held-for-sale are shown in a single balance sheet caption under IFRS, but under UK GAAP are included in property, plant and
equipment, frade and other recsivables or, where they arise out of foreclosed loans, in cohstruction loans receivable.
= Under IFRS haoliday pay is accrusd over the period when employees render the senvice that increases their entittement to paid leave.
Under UK GAAR, there is no requirement to adjust salary costs to reflect the timing when such benefits are taken.

Year ended

31 July 2005

Increase/(decrease) in income statement headings £m
Revenue (1)
Cost of sales 1
Administrative expenses: other @
Finance costs _
Profit for the year (2
At At

31 July 2005 31 July 2004

Increase/{decrease) in balance sheet headngs £m £m
Property, plant and equipment (13) (©)
Financial assets: available-for-sale investments (included in non-current assets) 2 -
Inventories 1 -
Trade and other receivables (5) (5)
Construction loans receivable (secured) 2) 3)
Assets held for sale 8 7
Trade and cther payables {5) ()
Borrowings: construction loans (unsecured) 2 3
Bank loans and overdrafts (@ (3)
Provisions (ncluded in non-current fiabilities) 2) -
Equity (16) (14)
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of Wolseley plc

We have audited the group financial statements of Wolseley pic for
the year ended 31 July 2006 which comprise the group income
statement, the group balance shest, the group cash flow statement,
the group statement of recognised income and expense and the
related notes. These group financial statements have been prepared
under the accounting policies set out therein.

We have reported separately on the parent company financial
statements of Walseley plc for the year ended 31 July 2006.

We have also audited the disclosures required by Part 3 of Schedule 7A
10 the United Kingdom Companies Act 1885 contained in the Directors’
Remuneration report (“the auditable part”.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors' responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and

the group financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and for preparing Part 3 of Schedule 7A information

ir accordance with applicable United Kingdom law, are set out in the

Staterment of Directors’ Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the group financial statements and the
auditable part of the Remuneration report in accordance with relevant
legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and lreland). This report, including the opinion, has been
prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in
accordance with Sectlon 235 of the Companies Act 1885 and for no
other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom
this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the group financial
staternents give a true and fair view and whether the group financial
statements and the auditable part of the Remuneration report have
been property prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985
and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. We also report to you if, in our
opinian, we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding
directors’ remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects
the company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the 2003 FRC
Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the
Financial Services Authority and we report if it does not. We are not
required 1o consider whether the board’s statements on intermal
control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the
effectiveness of the group’s corporate governance procedures

or its risk and control procedures.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and
consider whether it is consistent with the audited group financial
statements. The other information comprises only the Directors®
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report, the unaudiied part of the Directors’ Remuneration report,
the Chairman’s Statement, the Group Chief Executive’s review, the
Performance review and the Corporate Governance Statement, We
consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any
apparent misstaternents or material Inconsistencies with the group
finangial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any
other information.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accardance with International Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland)} issued by the Auditing Practices Board.
An audit includes exarmination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant
to the amounts and disclosures in the group financial statements.

It aiso includes an assessment of the significant estimatas and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the group
financial statements and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate 1o the group's circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and expfanations which we considered necessary in order
1o provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance
that the group financial statements and the auditable part of the
Remuneration report are free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our cpinion we
also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information
in the group financial statements and the auditable part of the
Remuneration report.

Opinion
In our opinicn:

+ the group financial statements give a true and fair view, in
accordance with \FRSs as adopted by the European Union,
of the state of the group's affairs as at 31 July 2006 and of its profit,
statement of recognised income and expense and cash flows for
the year then ended,

+ the group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation;

+ those paris contained within the Remuneration report required by
Part 3 of the Schedule 7A to the United Kingdom Companies Act
1885 have been properly prepared in accordance with the UK
Companies Act 1985 and

» the information given in the Directors’ report is consistent with the

roup financial statements.

Y/%\.Lé%&__. Cao /ao' LLh

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors

London

25 Beptermber 2006




Company balance sheet

As at 31 July 2006

Restated
{note 1)
2006 2005
Notes £m £rn
Fixed assets
[nvestments 2 4,382 1,535
4,382 1,535
Current assets
Debtars 3 1,166 3,422
Cash and cash equivalents 49 9
1,215 3,431
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 4 (1,968) (2,666)
Net current (liabilities)/assets {753} 765
Total assets less current liabilities 3,629 2,300
Creditors: amounts falling due after one year 5 (1,176) (837)
Net assets 2,453 1,463
Capital and reserves
Called up share capiial 6 149 148
Share premium 7 288 241
Profit and loss reserve 7 2,016 1,074
Equity shareholders’ funds 8 2,453 1,463

The Company financial statements on pagesy131 to 139 were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 September 2008 and were signed on
its behalf behalf by

(S

Chip Hornsby Stephen P Webster
Group Chief Execilive Group Finance Director

The accompanying Netes are an integral part of these Company financial statements.
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Notes to the Company
financial statements

Year ended 31 July 2006

1. Company accounting policies

Basis of accounting

Thesa Companies Act financial statements are prepared under the
historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable UK
accounting standards. As permitted by the Companiss Act 1985
the Company has not presented its own profit and loss account.

The principal accounting policies, as set out below, have bean applied
consistently throughout the pericd. Financial Reporting Standards 17
“Retirement Benefits” {FRS 17), 20 “Share-based Payment” (FRS 20),
21 “Events After The Balance Shest Date” FRS 21), 23 “The Effects
of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” (FRS 23), 25 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation” {FRS 25) and 26 “Financial
Instruments: Measurement” (FRS 26) have been adopted by the
Company for the first time in these financial statements. The
cumulative impact on the Company's reserves at 1 August 2005 of
applying these new accounting standards is an increase in reserves
of £98 million, primarily as a result of the reversal of the 2005 final
dividend, which has been accounted for as a prior period adjustment.

Note 27 on pages 101 to 105 and note 29 on pages 106 to 108
of the Wolseley plc consolidated financial staternents form part of
these financial statements.

Foreign currencies

The cost of the Company’s investmernts in overseas subsidiary
undertakings is translated into sterling at the rate ruling at the date
of investment.

Foreign currency transactions entered into during the year are
translated into stering at the rates of exchange nuling on the dates

of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabiities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruting at the
halance sheet date. All currency translation differences are taken to the
income statement with the exception of differences on foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are used o finance or provide a
hedge against foreign currency investments.

investments
Fixed asset investments are recorded at cost less provision
for impairment.

Taxation

Current tax represents the expected tax payable {or recoverable)
on the taxable income for the year using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheat date and taking into
account any adjustments arising from prior vears,
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Provision is made for deferred taxation in so far as a ability or asset
has arisen as a resuit of transactions that had occurred by the
balance sheet date and have given rise to an abligation 1o pay moere
tax in the future, or the right 10 pay Jess tax in the future. An asset
has not been recognised to the extent that the transfer of economic
benefits in the future is uncertain. Defarred tax assets and liabilities
recognised have not been discounted. Provision is made for UK or
fareign taxation arising on the distribution to the UK of retained profits
of overseas subsidiary undertakings where dividends have been
recognised as receivable.

Derivatives and financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, in particular, interest rate swaps and
currency swaps, are used to manage the financial risks arising from
the business activities of the Company and the financing of those
activities. There is no trading activity in derivative financial instruments.
At the inception of a hedging transaction entailing the use of derivative
financial instruments, the Company documents the relationship
between the hedged item and the hedging instrument together

with its risk management objective and the strategy underlying the
proposed transaction. The Company also documents its assessment,
bath at the inception of the hedging refationship and subsequently

on an ongoing basis, of the effectiveness of the hedge in offsetting
movements in the fair values or cash flows of the hedged items.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised as assets and liabilities
measured at their fair values at the balance sheet date. Whera
derivative financial instruments do not fUlfll the criteria for hedge
accounting contained in FRS 28, changes in their fair values are
recognised in the income staternent.

When hedge accounting is used, the relevant hedging relationships
are classified as fair value hedges, cash flow hedges or net
investrment hedges. Where the hedging relationship is classified as a
fair value hedge, the carrying amounit of the hedged asset or liability is
adjusted by the increase or decrease in its fair value attributable to the
hedged risk and the resutting gain or loss is recognised in the income
statement where, to the extent that the hedge is effective, it will be
offset by the change in the fair value of the hedging instrument. Where
the hedging relationship is classified as a cash flow hedge or as a nat
investment hedge, 1o the extent the hedge is effective, changes in the
fair value of the hedging instrument arising from the hedged risk are
recognised directly in equity rather than in the income statement.
When the hedged item is recognised in the financial staternents, the
accumuiated gains and losses recognised in equity are aither recycied
10 the income statement or, if the hedged item results in a non-financial
asset, are recognised as adjustrments to its initial camying amount.




Pensions and post-retirement benefits
Contributions 1o defined contribution pension plans and other post-
retirement benefits are charged to the income statement as incurred.

For defined benefit pension plans and other retirement benefits, the
cost is catculated annually using the projected unit credit method and
is recognised over the average expected remaining service lives of
participating employees, in accordance with the recommendations

of independent qualified actuaries. The current service cost of defined
benefit plans is recorded within operating profit, the expected retum
from pension scheme assets is recorded within finance revenue and
the interest on pension scheme liabilities is recorded within financs
costs. Past senvice costs resutting from enhanced benefits are
recorded within operating profit and recognised on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, or immediately if the benefits have
vested, Actuarial gains and losses, which reprasent differences
between the expected and actual returns on the plan assets and the
effect of changes in actuarial assumptions, are recognised in full in the
statement of recognised gains and losses in the period in which they
occur. The defined benefit liability or asset recognised in the balance
sheet comprises the net total for each plan of the present value of
the benefit obligation at the balance shest date, less any past service
costs not yet recognised, less the fair value of the plan assets, if any,
at the balance sheet date. Where a plan is in surplus, the asset
recognised is limited to the amount of any unrecognised past service
costs and the present value of any amount which the Company expects
1o recover by way of refunds or a reduction in future contributions.

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash in hand, deposits held at

call with banks, other short-term highly liguid investments with

original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabifities on the
balance sheet to the extent that there is no right of offset and practice
of net settlernent with cash balances.

Share capital

The Company only has one class of shares, ordinary shares, which
are classified as equity. Incremental costs direcily atiributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown N equity as a deduction
from the proceeds, het of tax.

Where the Company o the Company's trust purchases the
Company's equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly atfributable incremental costs (net of tax),
is deducted from squity attributable to the Company's equity holders
until the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where such
shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received,
net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the
related tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the Company’s
equity holders.
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Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at cost baing the fair value of the
consideration received net of transaction costs incurred.

Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value being recognised in the income statement over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as cunrent liabilities unless the Company
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Share-based payments

Share-based incentives are provided to employees under the
Company’s executive share option, long-term incentive and share
purchase schemes. The Company recognises a compensation cost
in regpect of thess schemes that is based on the fair value of the
awards, measured using Black-Scholes, Binomial and Monte Carlo
valuation methodotogies. For equity-settled schemes, the fair value is
determined at the date of grant and is not subsequently remeasured
unless the conditions on which the award was granted are modified.
For cash-settled schernes, the fair value is determined at the date of
grant and is remeasured at each balance sheet date until the liability
is settled. Generally, the compensation cost is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period. Adjustments are made to
reflect expected and actual forfeitures during the vesting period due
to the failure to satisfy sarvice conditions or achieve non-market
performance conditions.

The Company has applied FRS 20 retrospectively only to equity-
settled awards that had not vested as at 1 August 2004 and were
granted on or after 7 November 2002 and cash-seftled awards that
had not vested as at 1 August 2004.

Dividends payable

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in the Company’s
financial statements in the peried in which the dividends are approved
by the shareholders of the Company (generally in the case of the final
dividena) or paid (in the case of interim dividends).




Notes to the Company
financial statements

Year ended 31 July 2006

2. Fixed asset investments

£m
Cost as at 1 August 2005 1,566
Additions 4,825
Disposals (1,983
Cost as at 31 July 2006 : 4,408
Provisions as at 1 August 2005 {30)
Disposals 4
Provisions as at 31 July 2006 {26)
Net book value as at 31 July 2006 4,382

All of the above investments are in unlisted shares. Particulars of principal subsidiary undertakings are listed on pages 141 and 142 of the
Annual Report.

3. Debtors
Restated
2006 2005
Amgounis falling due within cne vear £m £rn
Amounts due from Group companies 1,143 3,410
Corporation tax recoverable 8 -
Deferrad tax 5 9
Derivative financial assets 10 -
Other debtors and prepayments - 3
Total debtors 1,166 3422
4. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Restated
2006 2005
£m £m
Bank loans and overdrafts 33 66
Derivative financial liabilities 4 iR
Amounts due to Group companies 1,916 2,561
Corporation tax - 2
Other creditors 10 26
Total creditors: amounts falling due within one vear 1,968 2,666
5. Creditors: amounts falling due after one year
2006 2005
£m £m
Bank loans 1,176 837
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6. Share capital

Allotted
Authorised and issued
2006 2005 2006 2005
Number of ordinary 25 pence shares (million) 800 800 588 592
Nominal value of ordinary 25 pence shares (£ million) 200 200 149 148
All the allotted and issued shares are fully paid or credited as fully paid.
From 1 August 2005 to 31 July 2008, new ordinary shares of 25 pence each in the Company have been issued as follows:
Proceeds to the Company
Aliottees MNumber of shares Price per share (o) £m Purposs of issue
Various 2,318,435 251.00 - 935.85 17 Exercise of savings related share options
Various 3,235,350 349,75 -~ 543.00 3 Exercise of executive share options/stock appreciation rights
5,653,785 48
7. Reserves
Profit and
Share Loss
Premium Reserve
£m £m
At 1 August 2005 (as previously reported) 241 976
Prior period adjustments - a8
At 1 August 2005 (restated) 241 1,074
Shares issued 47 -
Purchase of own shares for employee benefit trust - @7
Profit for the period _ 101
Dividends - (162)
Equity settled employee share options - 20
Deferred tax on equity settled employee share options - 1
Cash flow hedges - 13
Deferred tax on cash flow hedges - @)
At 31 July 2006 288 2,016

Included in the profit and loss reserve is an amount of £939 million which may not be distributable. The balance of £1,077 million is distributable,
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Notes to the Company
financial statements

Year encied 31 July 2006

8. Reconciliation of movements in equity shareholders’ funds

£m
Opening shargholders’ funds (as previously reported) 1,365
Prior period adjustments 98
Qpening sharehoiders’ funds (restated) 1,463
Issue of share capital of £0.26 each 1
Share premium on issue of shares 47
Purchase of own shares for employee benefit trust 27)
Profit for the period 1,401
Divicends (162)
Equity settied employee share options 20
Deferred tax on equity settlad smployes share options i
Cash flow hedges 13
Deferred tax on cash flow hedges oy
Closing shareholders’ funds 2,453

9. Retirement benefit obligations

The Company participates in the Wolseley Group Retirerment Benefits Plan. This is a defined benefit multi-employer plan, the assets and

liabilities of which are held independently from the Group. The Company is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of
the plan and accordingly accounts for the plan as if it were a defined contribution plan. Information in respect of the plan is provided in note 27,

on pages 101 to 105, to the Wolseley plc consolidated financial staternents.

10. Share-based payments

Details of share options grantad by Group comparnigs to employees and that rémain outstanding, over the Company's shares are set out

in note 29, on pages 106 and 108, to the Wolseley plc consolidated financial statements. The Company recognised an equity-settied share-based

payment charge of £3 million in the year (2005: £1 million).

11. Derivative financial instruments

2006 2005
Current assets fm £m
Interest rate swaps 10 2
Currency swaps: at fair value through profit and loss - 1

Derivative financial assets 10 3

2006 2005

Current liabilities £m £m

Interest rate swaps 2) )}
Currency swaps: at fair value through profit and loss & (12
Derivative financial liabilities @ (14)

Interest rate swaps

The Company uses interest rate swaps 10 manage its exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings. The fair value of interest rate

swaps is estimated on the basis of the market values of equivalent instruments at the bafance shest date.
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The Company’s bank borrowings generally attract variable interest rates based on 6 month LIBOR. Certain interest rate swaps are designated
and effective as cash flow hedges and the valuation gains have been ceferred in equity until realised.

2006 2005
Hadge of Interest rate cash flows £m £m
At 1 August - o)
Valuation gains on effective hedges credited to equity 9 1
Valuation losses charged to profit and loss (1) -
At 31 July 8 -

Outstanding interest rate swap contracts at 31 July 2006 comprised fixed interest payable on notional principal of US$650 million and

€770 miliors (2005:; US$575 miillion and €785 million) and fixed interest receivable on notional principal of US$350 milion. The contracts expire
between September 2006 and August 2009 (2005: August 2005 and August 2009) and the gains deferred in equity will reverse in the profit
and loss account over that period. The fixed interest rates varied between 2.313% and 5.415% {2005: 2.0375% and 4.3275%).

Currency swaps

The Company uses currency swaps elther to obtain the optimum return on its surplus funds or to hedge the spot exchange rate risk of its
assets and liabilities, principally loans. The fair value of currency swaps has been estimated as the cost of closing out the contracts using
market prices at the balance sheet date.

2006 2005
At fair value through profit and loss £m £m
At 1 August (11) -
Valuation gains/(losses) charged to profit and loss 5 (11)
Cash settlements in the period 4 -
At 31 July @ (11)

At the balance sheet date the Company had entered into certain shori-term currency swaps amounting 1o assets of US$627 mifion, €222 million
and CHF 22 mifion (2005: assets of £287 million) and liabilities of £419 million and C$169 million (2005: liabilities of US$525 million).

12. Bank loans and overdrafts

2006 2005
Current £m £m
Bark overdrafts 38 66
The fair values of current overdrafts and loans approximate to book value due to their short maturities.
The cunrency analysis of bank loans and overdrafts is as follows:
Sterling (150} -~
US dollar 80 66
Euro 100 -
Other 8 -
38 66
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Notes to the Company
financial statements

Year ended 31 July 2006

12. Bank loans and overdrafts continued

2006 2005
Non-current fm £m
Bank loans 1,176 837
The non-current loans are repayable as follows:
Due in one to two years 34 373
Dueg in two to five years 99 484
Due in over five years 1,043 -
1,176 837

At 31 July 2008, no loans carried a fixed interest rate (2005: nil). Interest payments on floating rate loans are determined by reference to
short-terrm benchmark rates applicable to the relevant currency or rmarket, such as LIBOR.

The currency analysis of non-current loans is as follows:

2006 2005

£m £m

Sterling 120 -
US dollar ] 618 433
Euro 406 404
Other 32 -
1,176 837

13. Contingent liabilities

Provision is made for the Directors’ best estimate of known legal claims and legal actions in progress. The Company takes legal advice as to
the likelihood of success of claims and actions and no provision is made where the Directors consider, hased on that advice, that the action
is unlikely to succeed or a sufficiently reliable estimate of the potential obligation cannot be made.

The Company has the following quantifiable contingent liabilities which arose in the ordinary course of business and which have not been
provided In these accounts sihce no actual liability is expected to arise:

2006 2005

£m £m

Value added tax of certain subsidiary undertakings 5 5
Sundry guarantees, performance bonds and indemnities 1,018 7
Cbligations under forward foreign exchange contracts 497 413

An amount of £499 milion {2005: £402 million) is expected to be received from counterparties in respect of the obligations under forward
foreign exchange contracts detailed above.

In addition, the Company has given its principal UK bank authority to transfer at any time any sum outstanding to its credit against or towards
satisfaction of the fiability to the bank of cartain subsidiary undertakings.

The Company acts as guaranior or surety for various subsidiary undertakings in financing and other agreements entered into by them in the
normal course of business and has given indermnities anc warranties 1o the purchasers of businesses from the Company and certain Group
companies in respect of which no material liabilities are expected to arise. Additionally, the Company has issued a guarantee to the trustees of
the Wolseley Group Retirement Benefits Plan in respect of the solvency of the plan and has guaranteed the pension payable by Brossette BT
to Mr. G. Pinault, a former Director.
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14. Employees, employee costs and audit fees
The average number of employees (including Directors) of the Company in the year ended 31 July 2006 was 15 (2005: 14). Total employee

costs of the Company for the year were £6 million (2005: £6 million) and audit fees incurred by the Company in the year were £0.1 million
(2005: £0.1 million).

15. Related party transactions
The Company has taken advantage of the exernption available under FRS 8 “Related Party Disclosures” to dispense with the reguirement to

disclose transactions with subsidiaries, 30% or more whose voting rights are held within the Group and which are included in the Wolseley plc
consolidated financial statements.

16. Post balance sheet events

The Board has declared a final dividend for the year ended 31 July 2008 of 19.55 pence (2005: 17.60 pence). This dividend has not been
included as a liability as at 31 July 2008,

In addition, a vendor placing of approximately 58 milion ardinary shares of the Company is expected 1o take place on 25 September 2006.
Further details of this are provided in the Performance review on page 39.
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of Wolseley pic

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Wolseley
plc for the year ended 31 July 2006 which comprise the company
balance sheet and the related notes. These parent company financial
statermnents have been prepared under the accounting policies set

out therein.

We have reported separately on the group financial statements of
Wolseley plc and the auditabie part of the Directors’ Remuneration
teport for the vear ended 31 July 2006.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the
parent company financial statements in accordance with applicable
faw and Unfted Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Acceptied Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement
of Directors’ Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the parent company financial statements
in accordance with relevant legal and reguiatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and ‘reland). This report,
including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the
company’s members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of
the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose. We do not, in
giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person 1o whom this report is shown or into
whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior
consent in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent company
financial staternents give a true and fair view and whether the parent
company financial siatements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985, We report to you

whether in our opinion the information given in the Directars’ report

is consistent with the parent company financial staterments, We also
report To vou if, in our opinion, the company has not kept proper
accounting records, if we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law
regarding directors’ remuneration and ofher transactions is not disclosed.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and
consider whether it is consistent with the audited parent company
financial statements. The other information comprises only the
Direciors’ report, the unaudited part of the Directors’ Remuneration
report, the Chairman's statement, the Group Chief Executive’s review,
the Performance review and the Corporate Governance statement.
We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of
any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the
parent company financial statements. Qur responsibilities do not
extend 1o any other information.
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Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with intemational Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant

to the amounts and disclosures in the parent company financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the
parent company financial statements and of whether the accounting
policles are appropriate ta the company's circumstances, consistently
applied and adequately disclosad.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance
that the parent company financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error.

In forming our opinicn we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the parent company financial statements.

Opinion
in our opinior:

* the parent company financial statements give a true and fair
view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, of the state of the company’s affairs as
at 31 July 2006;

« the parent company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985; and

+ the information given in the Directors’ report is consistent with
the parent company financial statements.

LULP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

25 September 2006




Principal subsidiary undertakings

and their directors

Year ended 31 July 2006

Europe

UNITED KINGDOM
*Wolseley UK Limited, Royal Leamington Spa,
Warwickshire CV31 3HH

{incorporated and operational in the United Kingdom)
A Barden, G Flanagan, M J Neville, | Tillotson

IRELAND

*Heatmerchants Lid, Athlone, Co. Westmeath
{incorporated ana operational in the Republic of Ireland)
A Barden, S McBride, M McCague, B McTernan, M J Nevillg,
M O'Brien, P Roche, C Soden

*Brooks Group Limited, Athlone, Co. Westmeath
ncorporated and operational in the Republic of Ireland)
A Barden, 5 McBride, V Nally, M J Neville, P Roche, C Soden

FRANCE
*Brossette SA, 69007 Lyon
{incorporated and operational in France)
P Buckingham (on behalf of Cofiger SAS), R H Marchbank, M J White

*PB & M SA, 9200 Courbevoie
{Incorporated and operational in France)
P Buckingham {on behalf of Cofiger SAS), R H Marchbank, M J White

AUSTRIA

*QAG AG, 1110 Vienna
(incorporated and operational in Austria)
J Dutter, KH D Jones

Supervigsory Board: P Buckingham, E Cihlar, P Frank,
| TWotson, M J White

ITALY
*Manzardo SpA, 39100 Bolzano
{Incorporated and operational in Haly)
K H D Jones, C Manzardo, R H Marchbank, S P Webstar, M J White
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SWITZERLAND
*Wolseley (Schweiz) AG, 8902 Urdorf
(Incorporated and operational in Switzertand)
K H D Jones, R H Marchbank, A Stucker, H Wiedmar

NETHERLANDS
*Wasco Holding B.V.,, Twello

(Incorporated and operational in the Netherlands)
A Barden, KH D Jones, O G J van den Belt

LUXEMBOURG

*Comptoir des Fers et Métaux SA, L-1882 Luxembourg
(Incorporated and operational in Luxembourg)
Y Cheret, K H D Jones, & H Marchbank, M J White

HUNGARY
*Mart Kft., H-2120 Dunakeszi
(Incorporated and operational in Hungary)
W Hatzl, K H D Jones

CZECH REPUBLIC

*Wolseley Czech Republic spol. s.r.o., 619 00 Brno
(Incorporated and operational in the Czech Republic)
K HD Jones, J Rehurek, C Vogelesang

DENMARK

*Electro - Qil International A/S, DK-2600 Glostrup
{Incorporated and operational in Denmark)
K H D Jones, B Qestergaard, H Petersen

BELGIUM

*Wasco-Centratec NV, 1070 Anderlecht
{lncarporated and operational in Belgiumy)
R Coates, F D’Have, K H D Jones, L | Veld




Principal subsidiary undertakings

and their directors

Year ended 31 July 2006

North America

USA

*Ferguson Enterprises Inc, Newport News, Virginia 23602
(Incorporated and aperational in the United States of America)
J R Englieh, J H Garrett, S F Grosslight, M L Grunkemeyer,
W S Hargette, C A S Hornsby, F W Roach, L J Stoddard, & P Strup,
J Stegeman, J Wilcox, B Miller

*Stock Building Supply Holdings Inc, Raleigh,
North Carclina 27617
(Incorporated and operational in the United States of America)
J J Appleman, F N Hord, C A S Hornsby, J F Major

CANADA

*Wolseley Canada Inc, Buriington, Ontario
{Incorporated and operational in Canada)
J Ballance, G Gamble, C A S Hornsby, P R Lachance,
M D Lamontagne, G Petrin, | Thompson, B Wilcox

*Wolseley Industrial Products Group Inc, Burlington, Ontario
(Incorporated and operational in Canada)
C A S Hornsby, P R Lachance, M D Lamontagne, K Parles

Service companies

*Ridgeflower Limited

(Incarporated and operational in the United Kingdom}
*WF (Cherwell) LP

(Established and operational in Guamsey)
*Wolseley Capital Inc.

(incorporated and operational in the United States of America)
*Wolseley Capital Limited

(Incorporated and operaticnat in the United Kingdom)
*Wolseley Capital (Parkview) Limited

(Incorporaied and operational in the United Kingdom}
*Wolseley Finance (Arlington No. 1)

{Incorporated and operational in the United Kingdorm)
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*Wolseley Finance (Gibraltar) Limited

(incorporated in Gibraltar and operational in Luxembourgj
*Wolseley Finance (Isle of Man) Limited

(Incorporated in the isle of Man and operational in the United Kingdorm)
*Wolseley Finance (Rockhopper) S.a.rl.

fincorporated and operational in Luxembourg)
*Wolseley Finance {(Parkview No. 1) Limited

(Incorporated and operational in the United Kingdom)
*Wolseley Finance (Parkview No. 2} Limied

(Incorporated and operational in the United Kingdom)
*Wolseley Finance (Thames) Limited

(Incorporated and operational in the United Kingdom)
*Wolseley Finance (Theale) Limited

{Incorporated and operational in the United Kingdom}
“Wolseley Finance (USA), LLC

(Incorporated and operational in the United States of America)
*Wolseley (Group Services) Limited

(Incorporated and operational in the United Kingdom;)
Wolseley Group Holdings Limited

{incorporated and operational in the United Kingdom)
*Wolseley Moldings (lreland}

(Incorporated in the Republic of Ireland and operational

in the United Kingdom)
*Wolseley Holding A/S

{incorporated and operational in Denmark)
*Wolseley Holdings Canada inc.

(Incorporated and operational in Canada)
*Wolseley-Hughes Limited

(Incorporated and operational in the United Kingdom)
*Wolseley Insurance Limited

(incorporated and operational in the Isle of Man)
*Wolseley Internaticnal Limited

{incorporated and operational in the United Kingdom)
*Wolseley Investments Inc.

(Incorporated and operational in the United States of America)
*Wolseley North American Services, Inc.

(Incorporated and operational in the United States of America)
*Wolseley Overseas Limifed

{incorporated and operational in the United Kingdom)
“Wolseley Treasury {USD)

(ncerporated and operational in the United Kingdom)
*Wolseley UK Finance Limited

(Incorporated in Guernsey and operaticnal in the United Kingdom)

Al subsidiary undertakings have been included i the consolidation.
Shareholdings in companies marked * are held by intermediate
subsidiary undertakings,

All shareholdings in the above subsidiary undertakings are of ordinary
shares or equity capital, plus the following preference shares in the
case of:

Wolseley UK Finance Limited  100%
Wolseley Insurance Limited 100%
Wolseley Investments Inc. 100%




Five year summary

IFRS UK GAAP
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
£m £m £m £m £m
Revenue
UK and Ireland 2,690 2,351 2,107 1,889 1,674
France 1,725 1,644 1,821 658 544
Central Europe 735 642 520 410 300
Europe 5,150 4,837 4,248 2,957 2,518
US Piumbing and Heating 5,396 3,858 3,380 3,155 3,231
US Builcing Materials 2,966 2,249 2,044 1,713 1,858
Canada 646 512 448 396 361
North America 9,008 6,619 5,880 5,264 5,450
14,158 11,266 10,128 8,221 7,968
Trading profit
UK and Ireland 201 183 163 144 131
France 91 98 g2 33 33
Central Europe 31 30 21 16 11
Europe Centra) Costs mn {4) - - -
Europe 316 307 276 199 175
US Plumbing and Heating 378 260 230 180 180
US Building Materials 192 131 109 81 94
Canada 44 36 32 28 26
North America Central Costs (11) (1) - - -
North America 603 426 371 289 300
Group Central Costs 37 (25) (28) (15) (11
882 708 619 473 464
Amortisation of acguired intangibles (48) ®) - - -
Goodwill amottisation - - (39 (30) N
Operating profit 834 702 580 443 437
Net interest (payable) (65) 37) (21) (17 (27)
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 769 665 559 426 410
Current {ax charge (227) (142) (153) {118) (108}
Deferred tax charge (5) (44 i) (10 {14}
Profit on ordinary activities after tax 537 479 397 298 288
Ordinary dividends (174) {155) (139} (123) (109}
Net assets employed
intangible fixed assets 1,506 948 666 687 503
Property, piant and equipment 1,144 833 719 717 582
Other net assets, excluding liquid funds 1,892 1,691 1,458 1,197 1,061
4,542 3,472 2,843 2,601 2,146
Financed by
Share capital 149 148 146 145 145
Share premium 288 241 200 178 169
Foreign currency translation reserve (49) 82 - - -
Profit and loss account 2,204 1,830 1,556 1,451 1,286
Shareholders' funds 2,592 2,301 1,902 1,774 1,600
Net debt 1,950 1,171 941 827 546
Net assets employed 4,542 3,472 2,843 2,601 2,146
Cumulative goodwill and acquired intangibles written off 667 619 613 574 544
Gross capital employed 5,209 4,091 3,456 3,175 2,690
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Five year summary |

IFRS UK GAAP
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Earnings per share hefore amortisation of goodwill

and acquired intangibles 98.90p 82.60p 74.84p 56.69p 54.58p
Basic earnings per share 90.77p 81.61p 68.15p 51.53p 49,96p
Dividends per share (in respect of the financial year) 29.40p 26.40p 23.80p 21.20p 18.90p
Cover for ordinary dividends 3.1 3.1 2.9 2.4 2.5
Gearing ratic (note 1) 75.2% 50.9% 49.5% 46.6% 34.1%
Net tangible assets per ordinary share 181.61p 22855p 211.26p 187.26p 189.86p
Return on gross capital employed (note 2) 18.8% 19.1% 18.4% 18.7% 16.7%
Average number of employges 65,223 53,668 48,379 39,299 37,136
Aggregate wages and salaries (£ milion) 1,630 1,257 1,108 843 897
Number of shares in issue at year end (million) 598 592 585 581 578
Number of branches at year end
Europe 2,861 2,486 2,383 2,266 1,799
North America 1,797 1,434 1,244 1,183 1,156
Total branches 4,658 3,920 3,637 3,449 2,955
US dollar translation rate
Incorme statement/profit and loss 1.7885 1.8514 1.7522 1.5851 1.4569
Balance sheet 1.8673 1.7564 1.8188 1.6076 1.5622
Canadian dollar translation rate
Income statement/profit and loss 2.0595 2.2997 2.3473 2.3835 2.,2866
Balance sheet 21128 2.1464 2.4229 2.2427 2.4749
Euro translation rate
Income statement/profit and loss 1.4577 1.4587 1.4635 1.5038 1.8085
Balance sheet 1.4628 1.4479 1.5144 14171 1.5934

Note 1. The gearing ratio is the ratio of net borrowings, excluding construction loan borrowings, to shareholders’ funds.
Note 2. Returim o gross capital employed is the ratio of trading profit (before loss on disposal of operations and the amortisation of goodwill and
acquired ntangibles) to the aggregate of average shareholders’ funds, minority interests, net debt and cumulative goodwill written off.
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Pro forma information
in United States dollars

IFRS UK GAAP
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
$m $m 3m $m $m
Revenue
UK and ireland 4,811 4,353 3,692 3,013 2439
France 3,085 3,044 2,840 1,049 792
Central Europe 1,315 1,188 911 654 437
Europe 9,211 8,585 7,443 4,716 3,668
US Plumbing and Heating 9,651 7,142 5,940 5,033 4,707
US Buiiding fMateriais 5,305 4,164 3,581 2,732 2,707
Canada 1,155 948 782 632 526
Narth America 16,111 12,254 16,303 8,397 7,840
25,322 20,839 17,746 13,113 11,608
Trading profit
UK and Ireland 359 339 286 230 191
France 163 181 161 62 48
Cenitral Europe 55 55 37 25 16
Europe Central Costs (12) i - - _
Europe 565 568 484 317 255
US Plumbing and Heating 676 481 403 287 262
US Building Materials 343 243 191 129 137
Canada 79 67 56 45 38
North America Central Costs (20) @) - - -
North America 1,078 789 650 461 437
Group Central Costs {66) {48) {49) 24) {(18)
1,577 1,311 1,085 754 676
Amortisation of acquired intangibles {86} (11 - - -
Goodwill amottisation - ~ (68) 148) (39)
Operating profit 1,491 1,300 1,017 706 637
Net interast (payable) (116) (69) {37) a7 (39)
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 1,375 1,231 280 879 598
Current tax charge (406) {263} (268} (188 (158)
Deferred tax charge {9 (81) (16) (15) {20)
Profit on ordinary activities after tax 960 887 696 476 420
Ordinary dividends {313) (288) (244) (196) (159)
Net assets employed
Intangible fixed assets 2,812 1,665 1,212 1,104 785
Property, plant and equipment 2,136 1,463 1,308 1,152 910
Other net asssts, excluding fiquid funds 3,533 2,870 2,654 1,825 1,657
8,481 6,098 5174 4,181 3,362
Financed by
Share capital 278 260 266 233 226
Share premium 538 423 364 286 264
Foreign currency translation reserve {o1) 144 - - -
Profit and loss account 4,115 3,214 2,831 2,333 2,010
Shareholders’ funds 4,840 4,044 3,461 2,852 2,500
Net debt 3,641 2,057 1,713 1,329 852
Net assets employed 8,481 6,098 5174 4,181 3,352
Cumulative goodwil written off 1,245 1,087 1,115 922 849
Gross capital employed 9,726 7,185 6,289 5103 4,201

The above information has been extracted from the five year summary on pages 143 and 144. Income statement figures have been translated
using the relevant year's income statement/profit and loss US dollar translation rate as set out on page 144. Balance sheet figures have been
translated at the relevant year's balance sheet US dollar franslation rate as set out on page 144,
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Acquisitions completed during the year

Country of
Name Date incorporation
Sudbury Valve Fitting & Corrol Ltd, August 2005 Canada
Park Supply August 2005 USA
S & S Fabrication & Supply Co. August 2005 USA,
HGH Plumbing Supplies Limited September 2005 UK
Contractors Field Products, Inc. September 2005 USA
Economy Heating & Plumbing Supply Co., Inc. September 2005 Usa
Endries Incorporated & Endries international Inc. September 2005 USA
Centratec NV, October 2005 Belgium
Encon Limited October 2005 UK
William Wilson Holdings Limited Qctober 2005 UK
Cammillia Vafiey Supply October 2005 USA
Seigles, Inc. October 2005 USA,
John H. Frischkorn Jr., Incomorate November 2005 UsaA
Canyon Drive Lumber, LP November 2005 USA,
LAB Distributing, Inc. November 2005 USA
Mobile Supply Company, Inc. November 2005 usa
SAS MCSO December 2005 France
South Tahoe Flumbing Supply December 2005 USA
SAS Charpentes Calonge January 2006 France
SAS Bigmat Boismat January 2006 France
Friosol AG January 2006 Switzerland
Colgan Distributors, Inc. and Colgan Cabinets, Inc. January 2006 USA
Can-Con Industries Inc. February 2006 Canada
SA Alain Carrelages February 2006 France
Universal Supply Co Company, Ing. February 2006 USA
Central Georgia Plumbing Supply Co., Inc. February 2006 USA
SAS Centrale Reolaise des Bois March 2006 France
SAS A+ (Cenirale des Materiaw) March 2006 France
Hermann Frei March 2006 Switzerland
Nevill Long Limited March 2006 UK
K & A Lumber Company, Inc. March 2006 UsA
indiana Plumbing Supply Oc., Inc. March 2006 USA
Alamao Pipe and Supply Company March 2006 USA
SAS DAFI April 2006 France
K & R Buiding Supplies Limtted April 2006 UK
AG Electrical Holdings Limited April 2006 UK
MOJ Inc. Aprit 2006 USA
Pipe Products, Inc. April 2006 UsA,
Davis Homes LLC - Wholesale Division April 2006 USA
Davies Water Equipment Co. Of Wisconsin, Inc. April 2006 USA
SA Borgetto Materiaux May 2006 France
Ivybridge Building Supplies Limited May 2006 UK
Brandon Hire plc May 2006 UK
Efficient Electric Enterprises Inc. Group May 2008 USA
Central Lighting, Inc. May 2006 USA
Central Supply Company, Inc. May 2006 USA
Supply North Central Group, Inc. May 2006 USA
Davidson Electrical Wholesale Supply, Inc. June 2008 UsSA
Coleman Floor Company, Inc. June 2008 USA
Marmon Keystone Anbuma N\ July 2006 Belgium
Lariviere July 2006 France
SARL Depont Materiaux July 2006 France
Martin Architectural Products, LLC July 2008 UsA

Wolseley plc Annual Regort and Accounts 2008
146 Acquisitions completed during the ysar




Group information

Head Office and Registered Office
Parkview 1220

Arlington Business Park

Theale

Reading RG7 4GA

Telephons:  +44 {0) 118 929 8700

Fax: +44 (0) 118 928 8701
Website: www.wolseley.com
Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Corporate brokers
UBS Limited
Haoare Govett Limited

Solicitors

Frashfields Bruckhaus Deringer

Burges Salmon LLP

Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP

UK Registrars

Lloyds TSB Registrars

The Causeway

Worthing

West Sussex BNSS 6DA

Telephione:

within the UK: 0870 241 3834

from overseas: +44 121 433 8000
Website: www.lloydstsb-registrars.co.uk

American Depositary Receipts

The Bank of New York

Investor Relations

PO Box 11258 Church Street Station
New York, NY 10286 - 1258

Telephone:

within the US toll free: 1-888-BNY-ADRS
from overseas: +1 212 815 3700
Websita: https:/Awww.stockbny.com

NYSE specialist firm
Spear, Leeds & Kellogg
120 Broadway

6th Fioor

New York, NY 10271

Wolseley plc Annual Report and Accounts 2006
147 Group infarmation

Principal committees of the Board

Audit committee

James | K Murray — Chairman
Gareth Davis

Nigel M Stein

Remuneration committee

Andrew J Duff - Chairman (from 7 Novernber 2005)
Gareth Davis

Robert M Walker (Chaimnan untit 31 October 2005}

Nominations committee

John W Whybrow — Chairman

Charies A Banks (until 31 July 26086)
Gareth Davis

Andrew J Duff

Claude A S Hornsby (from 1 August 20086}
Robert M Walker

Treasury committee

Stephen P Webster ~ Chaimman

Chatles A Banks {until 31 July 2006)
Claude A S Hornshy (from 1 August 2006}
Michaet J R Verrier




Shareholder information

Shareholders can register on-line to view their Wolseley plc
shareholding details using Shareview, a service offered by our
registrars, Lloyds TSB Registrars. To access the service, you should
log on to www.shareview.co.uk and complete the simple on-screen
registration process. You will then need fo enter your surname,
posicode, e-mail address and shareholder reference number
(which is detailed on the form of proxy accompanying this Report).

By logging on 1o www.shareview.co.uk, you will be able to do all
of the following at the click of a2 mouse:

* check your shareholding in Wolselsy plc 24 hours a day;

* register your e-mail and mailing preference (post or electronic)
for future shareholder mailings;

* gain easy access to a variety of shareholder information including
indicative valuations and payment instruction details;

* gceess ihe share dealing facility; and

* use the internet to appoint a proxy for you at general meetings
of the shareholders.

The Company can, at shargholders’ request, send sharsholdsrs

an e-mail notification each time a new shareholder repert or other
shareholder communication is put on the website. Shareholders will
then be able to read and/or download the information at their leisure,
but will still be able to request paper copies of the documents should
they so wish.

To encourage more shareholders to convert to e-communications,
the Company will arrange for a sapiing tree to be planted in the UK for
each shareholder who chooses to receive alt future communications
electronically. The next opportunity for us to notify you elecironically
will be for the Interim Report, which will be published in Spring 2007.

Share dealing

UK-based sharehelders are also offerad a simple and convenient
telephone and internet share sale and purchase service by our
registrars. Shareview dealing is availablg for telephone purchases
and sales on: 0870 850 (3852 betweean 8:30am and 4:30pm,
Monday to Friday and for intemet purchases and sales via
www.shareview.co.uk/dealing. A postal dealing senvice is also
avallable and a form together with terms and conditions can be
obtained from Loyds TSB Registrars by calling +44 ({870 242 4244,

Stock Exchange listings

The ordinary shares of 25 pence each of the company are listed on
the London Stock Exchange. Ordinary shares of the Company are
also traded on the New York Stock Exchange in the form of American
Depositary Shares and held in the form of American Depositary
Receipts ("ADRs”). ADR holders receive the annual and interim reports
issued to shareholders. The Company also files a Form 20-F each
year with the United States Securities and Exchange Coemmiission.
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Published information

Further copies of the Annual Report and the 2006 Form 20-F

may be obtained from the Corporate Communications Department,
Wolseley plc, Parkview 1220, Adington Business Park, Theale,
Reading RG7 4GA. Company information may also be viewed

on the Company’s website at www.wilseley.com.

If you would like to receive a copy of the Annual Report

in an alternative format, such as Braille or an audio version
on CD, please contact the Group Company Secretariat on
+44 (0)118 829 8700.

Corporate timetable

9 November 2008 -  Final date for DRiP elections

29 November 2006

Annual General Meeting

30 November 2006 Proposed final dividend of 19.55 pence
per share to be paid to shareholders
who are on the Register of Members

on 6 Ociober 2006

18 March 2007~ Interim rasults for the half year ended

31 January 2007 announced
3 April 2007* - Interim statement posted to shareholders

31 May 2007*

Interim dividend to be paid to shareholders
who are on the Register of Members on

30 March 2007
31 July 2007 - End of financial year 2006/07
24 September 2007* -~ Preliminary results for the year ended

31 July 2007 announced
*Dates are based on current expectations.

The interim results and preliminary results announcements will be
available on our website at www.wolseley.com following their release.




Notice of meeting

This document is important and requires your immediate
attention. If you have any doubits about what action you need to
take, you should contact your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor

or accountant or other independent professional adviser authorised
pursuant to the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 immediately.
If you have sold or transferred all of your holding of ordinary shares you
should pass this Notice and accompanying documents to the person
through whom the sale or transfer was effected, for transmission to the
purchaser or transferee.

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting

of Wolseley plc will be held at Haberdashers' Hall, 18 West
Smithfield, London ECG1A 9HQ on Wednesday 28 November
2006 at 12 noon.

Routine business
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions:

Resolution 1

That the Directors’ Annual Report and Accounts and the auditors’
report thereon for the year ended 31 July 2006 be received

and adopted.

Resolution 2
That the Directors’ remuneration report for the year ended
31 July 2006 be received and adapted.

Resolution 3
To declare a final dividend of 19.55 pence per ordinary share.

Resolution 4
That Mr Frank Roach be elected as a Director of the Company.

Resolutions 5,6 and 7
That Messrs Davis, Hord and Stein be re-elected as Directors
ot the Company.

Resolution 8

That the auditors PricewaterhouseCeoopers LLP be re-appointed
as the Company’s auditors, until the conclusion of the next Annual
General Mesting of the Company.

Resolution 9
That the Directors be authorised to agree the remuneration
of the auditors.

Non-routine business

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions which
will be proposed as to Resolutions 10 and 13 as ordinary resalutions
and as to Resolutions 11 and 12 as special resclutions.

Resolution 10

That the Directors be and hereby are generally and unconditionally
authorised to exercise all powers of the Company 1o allot relevant
sacurities (within the meaning of section 80 of the Companies Act
1985 ("the Act™), up to a maximum nominal amount of £35,697,279,
which authority shall expire at the conclusion of the next Annua/
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General Meeting of the Company after the passing of this resolution
and in any event no later than 15 months after the passing of this
resolution (unless previously revoked or varied by the Company in
general mesting). The power conferred by this resolution shall enable
and allow the Dirgctors 1o make an offer or an agreerment before the
expiry of the power which would or might require relevant securities
to be allotied after such expiry and the Board may allot relevant
securities in pursuance of such an offer or agreement as if the
authority conferred hereby had not expired.

Resolution 11

That the Directors bé and hereby are empowered, pursuant to section
95 of the Companies Act 1985 ("the Act™, to allot eauity securities

{as defined in section 84 of the Act) for cash, at any time when they
are generally authorised for the purposes of section 80 of the Act,

as if section 89 (1) of the Act did not apply to any such allotment,
provided that this power shall be limited:

11.1 to the allotment of equity securities in connection with, or
pursuant 1o, a rights issue in favour of the holders of ordinary shares
in the Company where the equity securities respectively attributable to
the interests of the ordinary shareholders are proportionate (as nearly
as may be) 1o the respective numbers of ordinary shares desmed to
be held by them, subject only to such arrangernents or exclusions as
the Directors may feel necessary or expedient t0 deal with fractionat
entitlements otherwise existing or legal or practical problems arising
by virtue of shares being represented by depositary receipts ar
otherwise under the laws of or any other requirements of any
regulatory body or stock exchange in any temitory or any matter
whatsoever; and

11.2 1o the allotment (otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph 11.1
above) of equity securities up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£8,215,136 equal to 5% of the issued ordinary share capital of the
Company as at 25 September 2006 and shall expire at the conclusion
of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company after the passing
of this resolution and in any event no later than 15 months after the
passing of this resolution.

The power confarrad by this resolution shall enable and afiow the
Directors 1o make an offer or an agreement before the expiry of the
power which would or might require equity securities to be allotted
after such expiry and the Directors may aliot equity securities in
pursuance of such offer or agreement as if the authority conferred
by this resolution had not expired.

Resolution 12

That the Company be and hereby is generally and unconditionally
authorised in accordance with Part VIl of the Companies Act 1985
(“the Act”) to make market purchases (within the meaning of section
163 of the Act} of ordinary shares of 25 pence each in the capital of
the Company provided that:

12.1 the maximum number of ordinary shares hereby authorised to
be purchased is 65,721,088,

12.2 the minimum price which may be paid for each ordinary share
is 28 pence, exclusive of expenses;
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12.3 the maxirmum price which may be paid for each ordinary share
is, in respect of a share contracied to be purchased on any day, an
amount equal to 105% of the average middle market quotations for
the ordinary shares of the Company derived from the Daily Official List
of the London Stock Exchange on the five business days immediately
preceding the day on which the ordinary share is purchased, exclusive
of expenses;

12.4 the power hergby granted shall expire at the conciusion of the
next Annual General Meeting of the Company after the passing of
this resolution; and

12.5 the Company may under the authority conferred by this
resolution and prior to the expiry of the authority make a contract
to purchase its own ordinary shares which will or may be executed
wholly or partly after the expiry of the authority and may make a
purchase of its own ordinary shares in pursuance of such contract.

Resolution 13

That the Company and any company which is or becomes its
subsidiary during the pericd to which this resolution relates,
be and is hereby authorised to:

13.1 make denatichs to EU political organisations; and
13.2 incur EU political expenditure

{both as defined in Part XA of the Companies Act 1885, as amended
by the Political Parties, Elections and Refetendums Act 2000) in

a total amount, including any amounts incurred by the Company

or any of its subsidiaries during the period to which this resolution
relates, not exceeding £125,000 during the period commencing

on the date of this Annual General Meeting and ending on the date
af the Company’s naxt Annual General Mesting.

By order of the Board

Mark J White

Group Company Secretary and Counsel
8 October 2006

Wolseley plc

Registered No. 298486, England
Parkview 1220

Arlington Business Park

Theale

Reading RG7 4GA
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Explanatory notes

Resoiution 1

The Diractors are required 1o present to the Meeting the audited
accounts and the Directors’ and auditors’ report for the financial year
ended 31 July 20086.

Resolution 2

The Dirgctors’ report on remuneration incluces the Company’s policy
on Directors' remuneration for the next financial year and for the
years subsequent to that, a table containing details of the Directors'
emoluments and a line graph that shows total shareholder retun
(“TSR") from 1 August 2001, together with the TSR for the FTSE 100
index since that date.

Resolution 3

If resolution 3 is approved by sharehclders the final dividend for
the year ended 31 July 2006 will be paid on 30 November 2006
to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
at close of business on 6 Cctober 2008,

Resolution 4

The Companys Articies of Association permit any Diractor appointed
by the Board since the date of the last Annual General Mesting to
hold office only until the date of the next Annual General Meeting.

The Director is then eligible for election tiy sharsholders. Mr Roach

is standing for election as an Executive Director following his
appointment on 16 Dacember 2005. Mr Roach has a service contract
with the Company terminable by not less than six months’ notice
given by him or 12 months’ notice if given by the Company.

Resolutions 5, 6 and 7

Under the Company’s Articles of Association, cne-third of the
Directors are reguired to retire by rotation each year and, in addition,
no Director may serve for more than three years without being
re-gected by shareholders. Messrs Davis, Hord and Stein will retire
by rotation this vear in accordance with the Articles of Association and
are proposed for re-election through separate resolutions numbered
5, B and 7. Mr Davis is standing for re-election as a Non Executive
Director. Mr Davis is the Senior independent Non Executive Director
and is a member of he remuneration, audit and nominations
committees. Mr Davis does not have a service contract with the
Company but his appointment is terminable on six moenths' hotice.
Mr Hord is standing for re-election &s an Executive Director. Mr Hord
has a service contract with the Company terminable by not less than
six months’ notice given by him or 12 months’ natice if given by the
Company. Mr Stein is standing for re-election as a Non Executive
Director. He is a member of the audit committee. Mr Stein does not
have a service contract with the Company but his appointment is
terminable on six months’ notica.

Biographical details of all the Directors standing for election and
re-election appear on pages 42 and 43 of the Annual Report
and Accounts,




Resolutions 8 and 9

Auditors have to be appointed at every general meeting at which
accounts are presented to shareholders. The current appointment
of PricewaternouseCoopers LLP as the Company’s auditors will end
at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting and it has acvised
its willingness to stand for reappointment. It is normal practice for

a company's Directars to be authorised to agres how much the
auditors should be paid.

Resolutions 10 and 11

The Companies Act 1985 pravents Directors from allotting unissued
shares without the authority of shareholders in general meeting.

The Company's Ariicies of Association permit the Directors to allot
unissued shares but this power is subject 1o renewal by shareholders.
Resolution 10 empowers the Directors to allot shares of up to
£35,697,279 in nominal amount representing the autharised but
unissued ordinary share capital as at 25 September 2008, being a
date not more than one month prior to this Notice. The Directors were
last given this autherity at the Annual General Mesting held in 2005
and it is interded that renewal of this authority will be sought on an
annual basis, Resolution 11 empowers the Directors to allot shares
for cash or sel/transter shares out of treasury otherwise than pro rata
1o existing shareholders but this power is limited tc allotments in
conrection with a rights issue and otherwise up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £8,215,136 (approximately 5% of the issued
ardinary share capital as at 25 September 20086, being 2 date not
more than one month prior to this Notice). Save for the issue of
shares pursuant to the Company’s various employee share schemes
and any share divicend alternatives, the Directors do not presently
intend to aflot any unissued shares. Treasury shares and the regulations
which came into force on 1 Dacember 2003 in relation to them,

are more fully explained in the note to Resolution 12,

The authority conferred by these Resclutions will expire no fater than
15 months from the date on which the resolution is passed, or at
the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in 2007,
whichever is the sooner.

Similar resolutions have been approved by shareholders at sach
Annual General Meeting since 1984,
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Resolution 12

This resolution empowers the Directors to make limited on-market
purchases of the Company’s ordinary shares. The power is limited

to a maximurm of 65,721,088 shares (10% of the issued share capital
as at 25 September 2006) and details the minimum and maximum
prices that can be paid, exclusive of expenses. The authority
conferred by this resolution will expire at the conclusion of the
Company’s next Annual General Meeting.

The Companies (Acguisition of Own Shares) (Treasury Shares)
Regulations 2003 came into force on 1 December 2003. These
regulations allow shares repurchased by the Company to be held as
treasury shares. Treasury shares may be cancelled, sold for cash or
used for the purpose of employee share schemes. The authority to
e sought by this resolution is intended to apply equally to shares to
be held by the Company as treasury shares. No dividends will be paid
on shares which are held as treasury shares and no voting rights will
be attached to them. Shares held as treasury shares will be treated
as if cancelled. The Company holds no shares in treasury bt the
Directors currently intend that any shares which are repurchased

will be held in treasury.

Resolution 13

This resclution enables the Directors to incur expenditure of up to
£125,000 (including any such expenditure by & subsidiary cormpany)
without unintentionally breaching the provisions of the Political Parties,
Elections and Referendums Act 2000, which defines polftical
organisations and donations in a very broad manner. The authority
sought will, i granted, last until the conclusion of the 2007 Annual
General Mesting of the Company when the Directors intend to seek
renewal of this authority. The policy of not giving any cash
contributions to any political party will continue.

The Directors consider that each of the resolutions is in the best
interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole and
recommend all shareholders to vote in favour of all resolutions,
as the Directors intend to do in respect of their own shares.
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Electronic communications

The law now allows the Company to send shareholder information,
including Annuai Reports, Notices of General Meetings and Forms
of Proxy 10 you electronically, provided only that you agree to receive
them in this format.

This will have a number of advantages, including:

* Speedier defivery of documents;

* Cost savings for the Company on the delivery of documents;
* Saving on environmental resources;

¢ Confirmation of recelpt of proxy appeintments.

To receive your shaseholder documentation electronically, you will need
to register with our Registrars' online service, www.shareview.co.uk.
This is a secure service enabling shareholders to set up and view
personal shareholding details. When you register please have your
shareholder reference number to hand (this can be found on your
share certificate ¢r your proxy form).

To encourage maore shareholders to convert to e-communications,

if you make the choice to receive all future communications electronically,
we will arrange for a sapling tree to be planted in the UK to be
dedicated to you.

This offer and the provision of a facility to communicate with
shareholders electronically, does not discriminate between registered
shareholders of the same class. The facility is availzble to all registered
shareholders on equal terms and participation is made as simple as
passihie. Please note that it is the shareholder’s responsibility to notify
our Registrars through www.shareview.co.uk of any change to their
e-mail address.

The next opportunity for us to notify you electronically will be for the
Interim Report for 2007, which will be published in Spring 2007. 1 you
have registered, an e-mail will be sent in March/April 2007 notifying
you that the report has been published and this will include a link to
the relevant page on our website, A similar procedure will be foflowed
for future shareholder documentation. There are no particular software
requirements to view these documents, other than those described
and available on our website www.wolseley.com. Shareholders wishing
to continue to receive shareholder information in the traditional paper
format should take no action.

Before electing for electronic communication, shareholders shoutd
ensure that they have the appropriate computer capabilities. The
Company takes all reasonable precautions to ensure no viruses are
present in any communication it sends out, but cannot accept any
responsibility for loss or damage arising from the opening or use of
any e-mail or attachments from the Company and recommends that
shareholders subject all messages to virus checking procedures prior
to use. Please note that any electronic communication sent by a
shareholder to the Company or the Registrar containing a computer
virus wifl not be accepted.
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The Company’s obligation is satisfied when ft transmits an electronic
message. It cannot be held responsible for a failure in transmission
bayond its control. In the event that the Company becomes aware
that an electronic transmission is not successfully transmitted, a paper
notification will be sent to the shareholder at their registered address.
The Company also reserves the right, irrespective of your election, to
revert 10 sending paper documentation by post, whenever the Board
considers it necessary or desirable to do so.

Enquiries

Lloyds TSB Registrars maintain the Company's share register. They
also provide a telephone helpline service. If you have any enquiries
about the Annual General Mesting or about your Wolseley plc
shareho!ding, you may contact Lioyds TSB Registrars:

by telephone to the Shareholder helpline:
from the UK - 0870 241 3934
from outside the UK - +44 121 415 7047

Lioyds TSB Registrars (0049)
The Caussway

Worthing

West Sussex

BNIS 6DA

or in writing to -

website - www.Boydstsb-registrars.co.uk

The Bank of New York maintains the Company’s American Depositary
Receipt register. They also provide a telephone helpling service,

If you have any enquiries about your holding of Wolseley American
Depositary Shares, you may contact the Bank of New York:

by telephone to the Shareholder helpline:
within the US - 1-888-BNY-ADRS {toll-frec)
from outside the US - +1 212 815 3700

Bank of New York

Investor Relations

PO Box 11258 Church Strest Station
New York, NY 10286-1258

or in writing to ~

website - hitps://www.stockbny.com

Data protection statement

Your personal data includes all data provided by you, or on your
behalf, which relates to you as a shareholder, including your name
and contact details, the votes you cast and your Reference Number
{attributed 1o you by the Company). The Company detenmines the
purposes for which and the manner in which your personal data

is to be processed. The Company and any third party to which it
discloses the data (including the Company’s Registrars) may process
your personal data for the purposes of compiling and updating the
Company's records, fuffiling its legal obligations and processing the
shargholder rights you exercise.

Published information

The Notice of Annual General Meeting is also available in Braille
or on an audio version on CB, depending on your vequirements.




Certain staterments included in this Annual Report and Accounts may
be forward-looking and may (and often do) involve risks, assumptions
and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially
from those expreased or implied by the forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements include, without limitation, projections
relating 1o results of operations and financial conditions and the
Company's plans and objectives for future operaticns including, without
limitation, discussions of the Company's business and financial plans,
expected future revenues and expenditures, investments and disposals,
risks associated with changes in economic conditions, the strength of
the plumbing and heating and building materials market in North America
and Europe, fluctuations in product prices and changes in exchange
and interest rates. Al forward-looking statements in this respect are
based upon information known to the Company on the date of this
Report. Accordingly, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance
on forward-fooking staterments, which speak only at their respective
dates. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update

or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise. It is not reasonably possible

to itemise all of the many factors and events that could cause the
Company's forward-looking statements to be incorrect or that could
otherwise have a material adverse effect on the future operations

or results of the Company.
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